
 
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
AGENDA 

 
 FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
MONDAY, MAY 23, 2022 990 E. MISSION RD., FALLBROOK, CA 92028 
4:00 P.M. PHONE:  (760) 728-1125 

 
THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953(e)(1)(A), WHICH WAIVES 

CERTAIN BROWN ACT TELECONFERENCING REQUIREMENTS DURING A PROCLAIMED STATE OF 
EMERGENCY WHEN STATE OR LOCAL OFFICIALS HAVE IMPOSED OR RECOMMENDED MEASURES TO 
PROMOTE SOCIAL DISTANCING, AND ALLOWS SOME OR ALL OF THE MEMBERS OF THE FALLBROOK 

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO ATTEND THIS MEETING TELEPHONICALLY OR VIA 
VIDEO CONFERENCE. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHO DO NOT WISH TO ATTEND IN PERSON ARE 

ENCOURAGED TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIA WEB CONFERENCE USING THE BELOW CALL-IN AND 
WEBLINK INFORMATION. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY ALSO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING BY 

ATTENDING IN PERSON AT THE DISTRICT OFFICE LOCATED AT 990 E. MISSION RD., FALLBROOK, CA 92028. 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82003172211?pwd=UU10YWltMkVwWGVaUFNkQnA2bHA4Zz09 
MEETING ID:  820 0317 2211 
AUDIO PASSCODE:  363170 

 
Dial by your location 

+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston); +1 720 707 2699 US (Denver); +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma);  
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago); +1 646 558 8656 US (New York); +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 

Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kb7TPD4AEt  
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Members of the public may submit public comments and comments on agenda items in one of 

the following ways: 
 
SUBMIT COMMENTS BEFORE THE MEETING:  

 By emailing to our Board Secretary at leckert@fpud.com  

 By mailing to the District Offices at 990 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook, CA 92028 

 By depositing them in the District’s Payment Drop Box located at 990 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook, CA 92028  
 

All comments submitted before the meeting by whatever means must be received at least 1 hour in advance of the 
meeting. All comments will be read to the Board during the appropriate portion of the meeting. Please keep any written 
comments to 3 minutes.   
 
REMOTELY MAKE COMMENTS DURING THE MEETING: The Board President will inquire prior to Board discussion 

if there are any comments from the public on each item. 

 Via Zoom Webinar go to the “Participants List,” hover over your name and click on “raise hand.” This will notify the  
 moderator that you wish to speak during oral communication or during a specific item on the agenda.  

 Via phone, you can raise your hand by pressing *9 to notify the moderator that you wish to speak during the current  
 item. 
MAKE IN-PERSON COMMENTS DURING THE MEETING: The Board President will inquire prior to Board discussion 

if there are any comments from the public on each item, at which time members of the public attending in person may 
make comments. 
 
THESE PUBLIC COMMENT PROCEDURES SUPERSEDE THE DISTRICT’S STANDARD PUBLIC COMMENT 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES TO THE CONTRARY. 
 

If you have a disability and need an accommodation to participate in the meeting, please call the Secretary 
at (760) 999-2704 for assistance so the necessary arrangements can be made.   

001

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82003172211?pwd=UU10YWltMkVwWGVaUFNkQnA2bHA4Zz09
https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kb7TPD4AEt
mailto:leckert@fpud.com


Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Page 2 May 23, 2022 

 
I. PRELIMINARY FUNCTIONS 
 
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 

A. CONSIDER FINDINGS TO CONTINUE HOLDING REMOTE/ 
TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS PURSUANT TO ASSEMBLY BILL 361 

  

Recommendation:  
1. That the FPUD Board of Directors make the following findings by majority vote: 

a. The Governor-declared COVID-19 State of Emergency remains in 
effect and the Board of Directors has reconsidered the circumstances 
of the COVID-19 State of Emergency; and 

b. State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to 
promote social distancing. 

2. That the FPUD Board of Directors determine that, for the next thirty (30) days, 
the meetings of the Board and committees shall be held pursuant to the 
provisions of Government Code section 54953(e), allowing legislative body 
members and members of the public to participate in meetings remotely in 
accordance with that section. 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ADDITIONS TO AGENDA PER GC § 54954.2(b) 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Members of the public are invited to address the Board of Directors on any item that is 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body.  The Board President may 
limit comments to three (3) minutes. 
 

B. EMPLOYEE OF THE QUARTER FOR MAY 2022 
1. Donald Parker 

 
C. YEARS OF SERVICE 

1. Jason Jared – 5 years 
2. Christian Hernandez – 5 years 

 
 D. NEW EMPLOYEE ANNOUNCEMENT 
  1. Jorge Lopez, Instrumentation, Electrical & Controls Technician I 
 
 E. INTRODUCTION OF NEW OPERATIONS MANAGER 
  1. Carl Quiram 
 
 F. JPIA PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM COMPLETION 

002



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Page 3 May 23, 2022 

 
  1. Chad Wodarczyk 
 
II. CONSENT CALENDAR -------------------------------------------------------- (ITEMS G – J) 

All items appearing on the Consent Calendar may be disposed of by a single 
motion.  Items shall be removed from the Consent Calendar if any member of the 
Board of Directors or the public requests removal prior to a vote on a motion to 
approve the items.  Such items shall be considered separately for action by the 
Board.  
 
G. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. April 25, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
 

Recommendation:  The Board approve the minutes of the aforementioned meeting 
of the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District.  

 
H. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF 2022-23 APPROPRIATION GROWTH RATE; 

RESOLUTION NO. 5027 
 

Recommendation:  That the Board adopt attached Resolution No. 5027 setting the 
tax appropriation limit for 2022-23 at $3,748,770, which includes the Fallbrook and 
DeLuz service areas and Improvement District “S”. 
 
I. CONSIDER ADVANCE APPROVAL (LAFCO PROTEST HEARING) 
 

 Recommendation:  That the Board authorize and approve, in advance, Directors' 
attendance to the Protest Hearing, noticed by SDLAFCO, scheduled for May 31, 
2022 at the FPUD District office.  

 
J. CONSIDER NOTICE OF COMPLETION – SANTA MARGARITA 

CONJUNCTIVE USE PROJECT                                                 
 
Recommendation: That the Board authorize staff to file the attached Notice of 
Completion with the San Diego County Recorder. 
 

III. INFORMATION ------------------------------------------------------------------- (ITEMS K – M) 
 

K. RATE STUDY UPDATE 
 
Presented by: Dave Shank, Assistant General Manager/CFO 

 
L. REVIEW PRELIMINARY DRAFT FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 OPERATING 

AND CAPITAL BUDGET  
 

Presented by: Dave Shank, Assistant General Manager/CFO 
 

003



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Page 4 May 23, 2022 

 
M. EMPLOYEE SATISFACTION SURVEY RESULTS 

 
Presented by: Lisa Chaffin, Human Resources Manager 

 
IV. ACTION / DISCUSSION CALENDAR ------------------------------------- (ITEMS N – T) 

 
N. CONSIDER REAPPOINTING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SERVE AS 

THE DISTRICT’S REPRESENTATIVE TO THE SAN DIEGO COUNTY 
WATER AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AND ADOPTING 
RESOLUTION NO. 5028 

 
Recommendation: That the Board adopts Resolution No. 5028 reappointing 
General Manager Jack Bebee to serve as the District’s representative on the 
SDCWA Board of Directors. 
 
O. CONSIDER SMRCUP CHANGE ORDER 
 
Recommendation: That the Board approve of the change order for Filanc-Alberici 
to complete all additional work at a cost of $758,582, and to approve the 
professional services agreement amendment for Terrapin Group to complete all 
Construction Management services.  
 
P. CONSIDER UPDATE ON THE EMERGENCY DECLARATION FOR 

PIPELINE REPLACEMENTS  
 
Recommendation: That the Board determine there is a need to continue the 
emergency action to replace failed pipelines and restore essential service to 
customers.  

 

Q. CONSIDER DECLARING A “WATER SHORTAGE RESPONSE LEVEL 2 
– WATER SHORTAGE WATCH” 

 
Recommendation: That the Board declare of a “Water Shortage Response Level 
2 – Water Shortage Watch”. Upon declaration, public announcement would be 
made on all FPUD water bills, physical posting in the District lobby, on the District 
website and social media outlets, and by publication in the Village News.  Given 
the voluntary nature of the state’s order to reduce water use by 20 percent, and 
the District’s expanding educational approach to promoting water conservation, it 
is not recommended that drought rates would be implemented.    

 

R. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MEMORANDA OF UNDERSTANDING 
(MOUS) WITH FPUDEA AND FMEA (EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2022-JUNE 30, 
2027) BY ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 5029    

 

004



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Page 5 May 23, 2022 

 
Recommendation: That the Board adopt Resolution No. 5029 approving the 
Memoranda of Understanding (MOUs) with FPUDEA and FMEA for July 1, 2022-
June 30, 2027. 
 
S. CONSIDER INTERNSHIP PROGRAM 
 
Recommendation: That the Board approve the addition of a second intern to the 
program.   
 
T. CONSIDER REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO AWARD ONE-TIME PAVING 

PROJECT TO ASPHALT & CONCRETE ENTERPRISES, INC. 
 
Recommendation: The Board approve a one-time paving project to Asphalt & 
Concrete Enterprises, Inc. for $52,800.00. 

 
V. ORAL/WRITTEN REPORTS--------------------------------------------------- (ITEMS 1—8)  
 

1. General Counsel 
2. SDCWA Representative Report 
3. General Manager 

a. Engineering and Operations Report 
4. Assistant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer 

a. Financial Summary Report 
b. Treasurer’s Report  
c. Budget Status Report  
d. Warrant List 

5. Public Affairs Specialist 
6. Notice of Approval of Per Diem for Meetings Attended 
7. Director Comments/Reports on Meetings Attended 
8. Miscellaneous 

 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
VI. CLOSED SESSION ---------------------------------------------------------------- (ITEMS 1–2) 
 
 1. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION PER 

GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957:   
 

Discuss Performance Evaluation of General Manager 
 
 2. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION PER 

GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957:  
 
  Discuss Performance Evaluation of General Counsel 
 

005



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Page 6 May 23, 2022 

 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 
REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
VII. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING 
 

* * * * * 
DECLARATION OF POSTING 

 
 I, Lauren Eckert, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary of the Fallbrook Public Utility 
District, do hereby declare that I posted a copy of the foregoing agenda in the glass case 
at the entrance of the District Office located at 990 East Mission Road, Fallbrook, 
California, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting in accordance with Government Code § 
54954.2(a).   
 
 I, Lauren Eckert, further declare under penalty of perjury and under the laws of the 
State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.   
 
 
May 18, 2022  /s/ Lauren Eckert  
Dated / Fallbrook, CA  Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 

006



A 
M E M O 

 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Paula de Sousa, General Counsel 
DATE: May 23, 2022 
SUBJECT: Findings to Continue Holding Remote/Teleconference Committee Meetings 

Pursuant to Assembly Bill 361 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose 
 
Consider findings necessary to continue holding remote/teleconference meetings 
pursuant to Assembly Bill 361. 
 
Summary 
 
As more fully described in the Board memo for the October 25, 2021 Board of Directors 
meeting related to AB 361, the State of California has adopted legislation (AB 361), which 
allows public agencies to hold fully or partially virtual meetings under certain 
circumstances without being required to follow certain standard Brown Act 
teleconferencing requirements.  
 
Under AB 361, a legislative body holding a fully or partially virtual meeting pursuant to AB 
361 must make certain findings at least every thirty (30) days in order to continue holding 
such meetings.  Because the Board of Directors last made the required findings on behalf 
of the Board and all FPUD Committees more than 30 days ago, the Board of Directors is 
required to make the findings to proceed with holding this meeting pursuant to AB 361.  
The findings would remain in effect for the Board of Directors for the next 30 days. 
 
If the Board of Directors desires to hold the meeting in a manner allowing remote 
participation pursuant to AB 361, the Board must reconsider the COVID-19 State of 
Emergency, find that the proclaimed COVID-19 State of Emergency still exists, and find 
either of the following: (1) that state or local officials continue to impose or recommend 
measures to promote social distancing, or (2) that as a result of the COVID-19 emergency, 
meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.  
Based on the continued COVID-19 State of Emergency and required or recommended 
social distancing measures, as further described in the October 25, 2021 Board memo, 
the Board can make the required findings. 
 
If the Board does not make the required findings, any Board members participating 
remotely would not be able to participate in the rest of the meeting, which may deprive the 
Board of a quorum and result in meeting cancellation.  
 
Recommended Actions 
 

1. That the FPUD Board of Directors make the following findings by majority vote: 

007



a. The Governor-declared COVID-19 State of Emergency remains in effect 
and the Board of Directors has reconsidered the circumstances of the 
COVID-19 State of Emergency; and 

b. State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to 
promote social distancing. 

2. That the FPUD Board of Directors determine that, for the next thirty (30) days, the 
meetings of the Board and Committees shall be held pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code section 54953(e), allowing legislative body members and 
members of the public to participate in meetings remotely in accordance with that 
section. 

008



B 

 

M E M O 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Jack Bebee, General Manager 
DATE: May 23, 2022 
SUBJECT: May 2022 Employee of the Quarter 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Donald Parker was chosen as the May 2022 Employee of the Quarter for the following 
reasons:   
 

“Donald is extremely knowledgeable, dependable, is always available 
after hours, and has earned the respect of the entire District. During the 
last outbreak of leaks, Donald and his department worked countless hours 
through the night on several different repairs to restore water to our 
customers. Many of these leak repairs require the knowledge only 
achieved through years of experience. Donald’s reputation for following 
District standards and safety practices allows for peace of mind that 
repairs are performed effectively and to District standards.  Donald 
remains calm and communicates well with subordinates, fellow crew 
leaders, customers and supervisors. Donald’s clear communication allows 
a smooth transition of staff and work required to complete these repairs in 
a timely manner the following mornings.” 

 
Donald received a Certificate of Appreciation and a monetary award of $150.  
Additionally, Devin will have lunch with the General Manager, a member of the Board of 
Directors, and the previous Employee of the Quarter. 
   
 
  

009



C 

This page intentionally left blank. 

010



D 

This page intentionally left blank. 

011



E

This page intentionally left blank. 

012



F 

This page intentionally left blank. 

013



G 
M E M O 

 
 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Lauren Eckert, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 
DATE: May 23, 2022 
SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommended Action 
 
That the Board approve the minutes of the following meeting of the Board of Directors 
of the Fallbrook Public Utility District: 
 
1. April 25, 2022 Regular Meeting 
 

 

 

 

 

  

014



 
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
MINUTES 

 
 FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
MONDAY, APRIL 25, 2022 990 E. MISSION RD., FALLBROOK, CA 92028 
4:00 P.M. PHONE:  (760) 728-1125 

 
I. PRELIMINARY FUNCTIONS 
 
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / ESTABLISH A QUORUM 

 
President Baxter called the April Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Fallbrook Public Utility District to order at 4:00 p.m. President Baxter deferred to General 
Counsel de Sousa to make the following statements on the record regarding the 
proceedings for this meeting: 

 
General Counsel de Sousa announced, for the record that, pursuant to the state 

of emergency declared by Governor Newsom, and in order to promote social distancing 
during the evolving COVID-19 pandemic, this meeting was being conducted by web and 
teleconference pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e)(1)(A), which waives 
certain teleconferencing requirements in certain circumstances. She noted the first item 
on the agenda pertained to Board action to make the required findings pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54953(e). 
 

General Counsel de Sousa also announced the agenda provided notice that 
members of the public may participate in this meeting by attending in person, and that 
members of the public who do not wish to attend in person were encouraged to participate 
in the Board meeting electronically using the call-in and weblink information included on 
the agenda.  Members of the public participating remotely may provide general public 
comments and comments on agenda items in real time by requesting to speak using the 
“Raise Hand” function on Zoom or, if they were participating by phone, by pressing *9 to 
raise their hand.  In addition, the agenda provided notice to members of the public on how 
they may submit comments in advance of the meeting to be read at the appropriate 
portion of the meeting (up to a limit of 3 minutes per comment). There were no written 
public comments submitted in advance of the meeting, for general public comment or for 
any agenda items. 
 

General Counsel de Sousa announced that President Baxter would ask the Board 
Secretary if there were any members of the public who wished to make comments on the 
item either in person or through Zoom webinar or Zoom teleconference. After public 
comments, President Baxter would then call on staff to make a presentation for the item 
on the agenda. After the presentation was made, to avoid everyone speaking at once, 
President Baxter would then call on each Director to see if there were questions for staff 
regarding their presentation. After the round of questions, President Baxter would then 
ask for a motion and request that each Director identify themselves when making a motion 

015



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Minutes Page 2 April 25, 2022 

 
or seconding a motion. Next, President Baxter would call on each Director to see if there 
were any comments. General Counsel de Sousa also announced there was a public 
hearing to be held during the meeting. General Counsel de Sousa announced, if there 
were any Directors participating remotely, which there were not, all votes would have had 
to be done by roll call. Because no Directors were participating remotely, there was no 
need to have votes done by roll call.  

 
A quorum was established, and attendance was as follows:   

 
Board of Directors 
 
Present: Dave Baxter, Member/ President 
 Charley Wolk, Member/Vice President 
 Ken Endter, Member 
 Jennifer DeMeo, Member 
 Don McDougal, Member 
   
Absent: None 
  
General Counsel/District Staff 
 
Present: Jack Bebee, General Manager 
 Paula de Sousa, General Counsel 
 Dave Shank, Assistant General Manager/CFO 
 Devin Casteel, Systems Operations Supervisor 
 Aaron Cook, Engineering Manager 
 Mick Cothran, Engineering Technician 
 Noelle Denke, Public Affairs Specialist 
 Jodi Brown, Management Analyst 
 Steve Stone, Field Services Manager  
 Francisco Cardenas, Systems Operator I 
 Miguel Castellanos, Systems Operator I 
 Lauren Eckert, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 
 
Also present were others, including, but not limited to: Craig Balben, Ross Pike, and 
Diane Radack 
 

A. CONSIDER FINDINGS TO CONTINUE HOLDING REMOTE/ 
TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS PURSUANT TO ASSEMBLY BILL 361 

  
Recommendation:  
1. That the FPUD Board of Directors make the following findings by majority vote: 

a. The Governor-declared COVID-19 State of Emergency remains in 
effect and the Board of Directors has reconsidered the circumstances 
of the COVID-19 State of Emergency; and 

016



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Minutes Page 3 April 25, 2022 

 
b. State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to 

promote social distancing. 
2. That the FPUD Board of Directors determine that, for the next thirty (30) days, 

the meetings of the Board and committees shall be held pursuant to the 
provisions of Government Code section 54953(e), allowing legislative body 
members and members of the public to participate in meetings remotely in 
accordance with that section. 

 
There were no public comments on agenda item A. 

 
MOTION: Director McDougal moved to find that the Governor-declared 

COVID-19 State of Emergency remains in effect and the Board of 
Directors has reconsidered the circumstances of the COVID-19 
State of Emergency; and State or local officials continue to impose 
or recommend measures to promote social distancing and that 
meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees shall be held 
pursuant to provisions of the Government Code section 54953(e), 
allowing legislative body members and members of the public to 
participate in meetings remotely in accordance with that section; 
Director Endter seconded.  Motion passed; VOTE:  

 
AYES:  Directors Baxter, DeMeo, Endter, McDougal and Wolk 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 

  ABSENT:  None 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
  President Baxter led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
ADDITIONS TO AGENDA PER GC § 54954.2(b) 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION: Director McDougal moved to approve the agenda as presented; 
Director Endter seconded.  Motion carried; VOTE: 

 
 AYES:  Directors Baxter, DeMeo, Endter, McDougal, and Wolk 
 NOES: None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 There were no public comments for non-agenda items.  
 

017



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Minutes Page 4 April 25, 2022 

 
Members of the public are invited to address the Board of Directors on any item that is 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body.  The Board President may 
limit comments to three (3) minutes. 
 

B. NEW EMPLOYEE ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 1. Carl Quiram, Operations Manager 
 2. Francisco Cardenas, Systems Operator I 
 
 There were no public comments on agenda item B.  
 

The Board welcomed Carl Quiram as the new Operations Manager and 
Francisco Cardenas as the new Systems Operator I, noting Mr. Cardenas has 
been a temporary employee at the District and is now a permanent employee.  

 
General Manager Bebee reported that Operations Manager Quiram was 

unable to attend this meeting and that he would bring him back for introduction at 
the May regular Board meeting.  

 
C. EMPLOYEE PROMOTION ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 1. Jacob Hyink, Equipment Mechanic 
 2. Miguel Castellanos, Systems Operator I 
 
 There were no public comments on agenda item C.  
 

The Board recognized Jacob Hyink for his promotion to Equipment 
Mechanic and Miguel Castellanos for his promotion to Systems Operator I.  
 

II. CONSENT CALENDAR -------------------------------------------------------- (ITEMS D – E) 
All items appearing on the Consent Calendar may be disposed of by a single 
motion.  Items shall be removed from the Consent Calendar if any member of the 
Board of Directors or the public requests removal prior to a vote on a motion to 
approve the items.  Such items shall be considered separately for action by the 
Board.  
 
 There were no public comments on Consent Calendar items.  
 
D. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. March 28, 2022 Regular Board Meeting/Public Hearing 
2. April 11, 2022 Special Board Meeting/Public Hearing 

 
Recommendation:  That the Board approve the minutes of the aforementioned 
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District.  
 
E.  CONSIDER ADVANCED APPROVAL TO ATTEND MEETINGS 
 

018



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Minutes Page 5 April 25, 2022 

 
 Recommendation: That the Board authorize and approve, in advance, Directors' 

attendance to the Town Hall Meeting scheduled for May 2, 2022 at the FPUD 
District office.  

 
 General Manager Bebee announced that for Consent Calendar item E, only 
two Directors were allowed to attend the Town Hall meeting scheduled for May 2, 
2022, unless the Board wished to treat the Town Hall as a special Board meeting.  
 
MOTION: Director McDougal moved to approve the Consent Calendar as 

presented; Director Endter seconded.  Motion carried; VOTE: 
 
 AYES:  Directors Baxter, DeMeo, Endter, McDougal, and Wolk 
 NOES: None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: None 
 
III. INFORMATION ------------------------------------------------------------------- (ITEMS F – G) 
 

F. REVIEW STRATEGIC PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 
 

 There were no public comments on agenda item F.  
 
 General Manager Bebee reported every year he updates the strategic plan, 
as the budget is prepared. He wanted the Board to be aware of what is in the plan, 
and where the District is currently with the latest document and also queue up 
conversation about any comments related to what is in the document.  
 
 Director Endter asked how the supply chain issues would affect the projects 
included in the strategic plan. General Manager Bebee explained the strategic 
objective would remain the same, but procurement process to achieve that would 
need to change moving forward.  
 
G. BOARD NOTIFICATION OF EMERGENCY DECLARATION FOR 

PIPELINE REPLACEMENTS 
 

There were no public comments on agenda item G.  
 
General Manager Bebee explained there were a number of leaks due to a 

small surge in pressure in one of the pressures zones, unfortunately exposing pipe 
that was corroded and ready to be replaced. General Manager Bebee reported 
that in order to get this done right away and to prevent property damages or other 
issues, he declared an emergency.  

 
General Manager Bebee explained the District was using an existing 

contractor to complete this work, and the District supplied the pipe. He noted our 
crews were busy with leaks at the same time. General Manager Bebee explained 

019



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Minutes Page 6 April 25, 2022 

 
if this emergency continues, it will come back to the Board to approve at the May 
meeting. He did note that the District had budgeted more for pipeline replacement, 
and that this was still within the overall budget.  

 
IV. ACTION / DISCUSSION CALENDAR -------------------------------------- (ITEMS I – K) 
 

H. CONSIDER UPDATE OF EXPANSION OF LATENT POWERS 
(COMMUNITY BENEFIT PROGRAM) 

 
Recommendation: That the Board establish an ad-hoc Board committee to 
develop the draft administrative requirements and framework for the Community 
Benefit Program with input from the community.  
 
 There were no public comments on agenda item H.  
 
 General Manager Bebee gave an update on the status of the District’s 
application to LAFCO for the expansion of latent powers. He explained LAFCO 
has conditionally approved this, and the next step is a protest hearing, scheduled 
for May 31, 2022. General Manager Bebee reported there will be outreach to 
explain the process as well. He noted, if everything was successful, this program 
would be established around January. General Manager Bebee requested the 
Board consider forming an ad-hoc Board committee to assist in developing the 
administrative requirements for the program, as well as to engage the public for 
their input.  
 

Director McDougal expressed his interest in continuing to serve on the ad-
hoc Board committee. Director Endter also expressed his interest. President 
Baxter appointed Directors McDougal and Endter to serve on this ad-hoc Board 
committee.  

 
MOTION: Director McDougal moved to establish an ad-hoc Board committee 

to develop the draft administrative requirements and framework for 
the Community Benefit Program with input from the community; 
Director DeMeo seconded.  Motion carried; VOTE: 

 
 AYES:  Directors Baxter, DeMeo, Endter, McDougal, and Wolk 
 NOES: None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: None 
 

I. DISCUSSION ON WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN  
 
Recommendation: That the Board take the Governor’s executive order under 
advisement as more detailed State guidance regarding non-functional turf, 
regulatory mandates and further developments in regional conservation program 
outreach and expansion comes to fruition.  At this time the Board directs District 

020



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Minutes Page 7 April 25, 2022 

 
staff to prepare for a Board declaration of a “Water Shortage Response Level 2 – 
Water Shortage Watch”.   
 
 There were no public comments on agenda item I.  
 
 General Manager Bebee provided an update of the Governor’s executive 
order due to drought conditions, which required a level 2 water response. He 
reported the District had already seen a 9-10% drop in demand. General Manager 
Bebee announced the District would begin preparing for a level 2 response, which 
would include outreach to customers, however there was no formal action needed 
at this point.  
 
 President Baxter asked what high-level approach this would require. 
General Manager Bebee answered that it was mostly outreach. He did report this 
may affect the special agricultural rate depending on what actions were taken by 
MWD.  
 
 Director Endter asked if there was a conflict of interest if the Board does a 
“watch and wait.” General Counsel de Sousa explained that the way it is written, it 
is up to the State Board to decide, which is what the District will need to react to. 
The State Board will adopt emergency regulations at their May meeting and go 
through the administrative procedure. General Counsel de Sousa did note the 
supply and demand assessment was now due June 1st, instead of the usual July 
1st. The guidelines for this were just released.  
 
 President Baxter asked if there were ways around this reduction since we 
have our own water sources. General Counsel de Sousa noted the District would 
still need to comply, or would face fines.  
 
MOTION: Director McDougal moved to direct District staff to prepare for a 

Board declaration of “Water Shortage Response Level 2 – Water 
Shortage Watch,” Director DeMeo seconded.  Motion carried; VOTE: 

 
 AYES:  Directors Baxter, DeMeo, Endter, McDougal, and Wolk 
 NOES: None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: None 

 
J. CONSIDER REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO SELL SURPLUS 

PROPERTY (APNS 102-30-039, 105-49-215, AND 101-45-014) 
 
Recommendation: That the Board adopt the attached resolution making findings 
and declaring the parcels surplus land and authorizing District staff to proceed with 
the sales process.  
 
 There were no public comments on agenda item J.  

021



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Minutes Page 8 April 25, 2022 

 
 
 Engineering Manager Cook reported there were three parcels identified that 
the District owned that were not be used. He explained the recommendation was 
to go through the process to declare these parcels as surplus, which would allow 
the District to go through the steps to sell them. Engineering Manager Cook briefly 
detailed each parcel.  
 
 Director McDougal noted this went through the Engineering and Operations 
Committee, and it made sense to get rid of these parcels, as it would also save on 
maintenance costs.  
 
 Director Endter asked if we have already reached out to other public 
agencies regarding the sale of these parcels. General Counsel de Sousa then 
outlined the process of selling public agency owned parcels.  

 
MOTION: Director McDougal moved to adopt Resolution No. 5026, making 

findings and declaring the parcels surplus land and authorizing 
District staff to proceed with the sales process; Director Endter 
seconded.  Motion carried; VOTE: 

 
 AYES:  Directors Baxter, DeMeo, Endter, McDougal, and Wolk 
 NOES: None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: None 

 
K. CONSIDER GUM TREE PIPELINE REPLACEMENT PROJECT CHANGE 

ORDER 
 

Recommendation: That the Board approve the pending change orders requests 
for work performed by SRK Engineering. 

 
 There were no public comments on agenda item K.  
 
 Engineering Manager Cook provided an overview of the project, as well as 
the pending change orders for the Gum Tree Pipeline Replacement project. He 
explained towards the end of this project, removal of existing pipeline was found 
to have asbestos, which required an additional cost for disposal. There was also 
an additional cost for erosion control. Engineering Manager Cook also reported 
SRK Engineering was the contractor helping with the emergency pipeline repairs 
mentioned earlier.  

 
Vice President Wolk stated it would be beneficial to know which projects 

were under budget. General Manager Bebee stated this could be included going 
forward.  
 

022



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Minutes Page 9 April 25, 2022 

 
MOTION: Director Endter moved to approve the pending change orders 

requests for work performed by SRK Engineering for the Gum Tree 
Pipeline Replacement Project; Director McDougal seconded.  Motion 
carried; VOTE: 

 
 AYES:  Directors Baxter, DeMeo, Endter, McDougal, and Wolk 
 NOES: None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: None 
 
V. ORAL/WRITTEN REPORTS----------------------------------------------------- (ITEMS 1–8)  
 
  There were no public comments on oral/written reports.  
 

1. General Counsel 
2. SDCWA Representative Report 

 General Manager Bebee provided an overview of the written report 
included in the agenda packet.  

 Vice President Wolk asked if there was a legal precedent for a 
wholesale agency to direct a retail agency how to allocate their 
water.  

3. General Manager  
a. Engineering and Operations Report 

 General Manager Bebee provided an overview of the written report 
included in the agenda packet.  

4. Assistant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer 
a. Financial Summary Report 
b. Treasurer’s Report 
c. Budget Status Report 
d. Warrant List 

 AGM/CFO Shank provided an overview of the written report included in 
the agenda packet.  

 AGM/CFO Shank reported there was almost $4M outstanding from the 
state. A payment had not been received since January.  

 AGM/CFO Shank reported shutoffs were starting, which will start with 
accounts that are 120 days late. He also noted the District received 
funds for wastewater from the state arrearage program.  

 Vice President Wolk asked why $595,000 was pulled out of LAIF. 
AGM/CFO Shank explained all money pulled out of LAIF was for 
CIP due to not receiving a check from the state for SMCUP.  

5. Public Affairs Specialist 

 Public Affairs Specialist Denke reported that the District had a booth at 
the Avocado festival and will also have a booth at Arts in the Park on 
May 1, 2022.  

 Public Affairs Specialist Denke reported she was working on the 100th 
Anniversary event as well.  

023



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Minutes Page 10 April 25, 2022 

 
6. Notice of Approval of Per Diem for Meetings Attended 

 President Baxter and Director Endter both reported on the CSDA SDLA 
event in April.   

7. Director Comments/Reports on Meetings Attended 
8. Miscellaneous 

 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
 

General Counsel de Sousa announced the Board would be going into Closed 
Session and that members of the public participating via web or teleconference were 
welcome to continue to stay on the line while the Board was in Closed Session, however 
they would only hear silence. Following Closed Session and prior to adjournment, an oral 
announcement of reportable action, should there be any, would be made to the public on 
the teleconference line. 
 
 There were no public comments on Closed Session items. 
 
 The Board of Directors adjourned to Closed Session at 5:09 p.m. following an oral 
announcement by General Counsel de Sousa of Closed Session Items VI.1–3. 
 
VI. CLOSED SESSION ---------------------------------------------------------------- (ITEMS 1–3) 
 

1. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION PER 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957: 

  
Discuss Performance Evaluation of General Manager 

 
 2. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION PER 

GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957: 
 
  Discuss Performance Evaluation of General Counsel 
 

3. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(d)(2):  

 
One (1) Potential Case. 

 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 

The Board came out of Closed Session and reconvened to Open Session at 5:29 
p.m. 
 
REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION (As Necessary) 
 

There was no reportable action taken in Closed Session.  
 

024



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Minutes Page 11 April 25, 2022 

 
VII. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the April Regular Meeting of the Board 
of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District was adjourned at 5:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
   
 President, Board of Directors 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Secretary, Board of Directors 
 

025



H 
M E M O 

 

 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: David Shank, Assistant General Manager/CFO 
DATE: May 23, 2022 
SUBJECT: 2022-23 Appropriation Growth Rate - Resolution No. 5027 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose 
 
To set the tax appropriation limitation for 2022-23. 
 
Summary 
 
In November 1979, the voters of California approved the addition of Article XIIIB to the 
State Constitution.  This amendment provided a maximum annual percentage that 
proceeds of taxes could increase.  This calculation is what the County of San Diego 
uses when determining what portion of the County’s taxes that Fallbrook Public Utility 
District will receive for the Fallbrook service area, De Luz service areas, and 
Improvement District “S”.   
 
The California Revenue and Taxation Code section 2227 mandates the Department of 
Finance transmit an estimate of the percentage change in population to local 
governments.  Each jurisdiction uses their change in population factor for January 1, 
2022, in conjunction with a change in the cost of living, or price factor, to calculate their 
appropriations limit for FY 22-23.   
 
A certified copy of the attached Resolution must be sent to the State Controller’s 

office by June 1, 2022. 
 
Recommended Action 
 
That the Board adopt attached Resolution No. 5027 setting the tax appropriation limit 
for 2022-23 at $3,748,770, which includes the Fallbrook and DeLuz service areas and 
Improvement District “S”. 
 

026



RESOLUTION NO. 5027 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT ESTABLISHING THE LIMIT 

FOR APPROPRIATION OF PROCEED OF TAX SUBJECT TO 
LIMITATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 IN COMPLIANCE WITH 

ARTICLE XIIIB OF THE CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
 WHEREAS, the determination of appropriation limitation documentation and the 
population and cost of living per capita income increase provided by the State of California 
Department of Finance used to determine the appropriation limitations under Article XIIIB 
of the Constitution of the State of California is on file and available for public inspection 
and is attached as Exhibit "A" to this Resolution. 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the calculated maximum limit applicable 
to the 2022-23 appropriations of proceeds of tax subject to limitation established in 
compliance with Article XIIIB of the Constitution of the State of California, including 
Fallbrook and DeLuz services areas and Improvement District “S”.  The calculated 
maximum limit is as follows: 
 

 TOTAL MAXIMUM LIMIT APPLICABLE TO 2022-23:  $3,748,770 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility 
District at a regular meeting of the Board held on the 23rd day of May, 2022, by the 
following vote: 

 
 AYES:  
 NOES:   
 ABSENT:  
 ABSTAIN:  
 
 
       __________________________ 
       President, Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
 

027



Determination of Permitted Growth Rate Appropriations 2022-23

Given by Department of Finance:

Per Capita Income Change 7.55

Population Change -0.35

Per Capita Income Change Converted to a Factor: 1.0755

Population Change Converted to a Factor: 0.9965

2022-23 Growth Factor:

1.0755 X 0.9965 = 1.0717

Appropriation Limit Adjustment Factor 2022-23 1.0717

2021-22 $1,940,784.88

2021-22

Parent $121,848
I.D. # 1&2 $420,796

2021-22 $1,014,544

2021-22 $3,497,966

2022-23

$3,497,966 X 1.0717 $3,748,770

Appropriation For Proceeds to Tax Subject to Limitation 
per Resolution No. 4400 - I.D. "S"

Total Appropriation Limit for Proceeds of Tax Subject to 
Limitation - All Districts

Total Appropriation Limit for Proceeds of Tax Subject to 
Limitation - Combined Districts

Exhibit "A"
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

DETERMINATION OF PERMITTED GROWTH RATE IN APPROPRIATION 

2022-23

Appropriations for Proceeds to Tax Subject to Limitation 
per Resolution No. 4489 - FPUD:

Appropriations for Proceeds to Tax Subject to Limitation 
per Resolution No.  89-14 - DLHMWD:

028



I 
M E M O 

 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Lauren Eckert, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 
DATE: May 23, 2022 
SUBJECT: Consider Advance Approval to Attend Meetings 
 
 
Purpose 
 
To authorize Directors’ attendance, travel, and expenses to events requiring approval 
by the Board of Directors in advance.   
 
Summary 
 
Article 2 of the Administrative Code prescribes that compensation for attendance and 
reimbursement for expenses at occasions, events, or meetings related to District 
business, other than those listed in section 2.12, shall be determined by the Board of 
Directors, in advance, on a case-by-case basis.   
 
The request is for advance approval to the following event:  

 
1. Protest Hearing, noticed by San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission,  on 

the conditional approval of the Fallbrook Public Utility District Latent Powers 
Activation on May 31, 2022 at the FPUD District office. 

 
Recommended Action 
 
That the Board authorize and approve, in advance, Directors' attendance to the Protest 
Hearing, noticed by SDLAFCO, scheduled for May 31, 2022 at the FPUD District office.  

029



J 
M E M O 

 
 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Aaron Cook, Engineering Manager 
DATE: May 23, 2022 
SUBJECT: Notice of Completion – Santa Margarita Conjunctive Use Project                                                 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose 
 
To file a Notice of Completion for the Santa Margarita Conjunctive Use Project with the 
San Diego County Recorder. 
 
Summary 
 
The completion date for Santa Margarita Conjunctive Use Project, Job Number 3095-
CUCX, is May 23, 2022.  Filanc-Alberici Joint Venture completed the Contract.  The final 
total contract amount was $59,105,832.  The original contract award date is July 22, 2019, 
in the amount of $54,398,232. The final cost was higher than originally contracted due to 
the addition of the GAC treatment system, unforeseen site conditions, and necessary 
design changes. 
 
Budgetary Impact  
 
There is no budgetary impact to record the Notice of Completion. As noted, there were 
additional costs to complete the project, but the additional costs were approved in 
previous change orders and within the overall project budget. 
 
Recommended Action 
 
That the Board authorize staff to file the attached Notice of Completion with the San Diego 
County Recorder. 

030



RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 
Fallbrook Public Utility District 
 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 
Fallbrook Public Utility District 
990 E. Mission Road 
Fallbrook CA 92028 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT: 
1. The undersigned is the owner of the interest or estate stated below in the property hereinafter described. 
2. The full name of the undersigned is Fallbrook Public Utility District. 
3. The full address of the undersigned is 990 E Mission Road, Fallbrook CA 92028.   
4. The nature of the title of the undersigned is public utility district in fee.   
5. The full names and full addresses of all persons, if any, who hold title with the undersigned as joint tenants or as 

tenants in common are: 
 

 NAMES ADDRESSES 
 Fallbrook Public Utility District 990 E. Mission Rd, Fallbrook CA 92028 
 

6. The names of the predecessors in interest of the undersigned, if the property was transferred subsequent to the 
commencement of the work of improvement herein referred to are (OR IF NO TRANSFER WAS MADE INSERT 
THE WORD “None”) 

 
 NAMES ADDRESSES 
 None None 
 

7. The work of improvement on the property hereinafter described was completed on May 23, 2022. 
8. The name of the original contractor, if any, for the work of improvement was:  Filanc-Alberici Joint Venture 

The kind of work done or material furnished was for the Santa Margarita Conjunctive Use Project 
9. The property on which the work of improvement was completed is in the unincorporated area of Fallbrook, 

county of San Diego, state of California, and is described as follows:  7.6 acre parcel west of Alturas 
10. The street address of the said property is: 1641 Alturas Road, Fallbrook CA 92028 

 
DATED: May 10, 2022   
 Aaron Cook, Senior Engineer 
 Fallbrook Public Utility District 
 

VERIFICATION 
 

I, the undersigned, say:  
I am the person who signed the foregoing notice.  I have read the above notice and know its contents, and the facts 
stated therein are true of my own knowledge. 
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 
Executed on May 10, 2022, at Fallbrook, California. 
 
   
 Signature 

031



K 

This page intentionally left blank. 

032



L 
M E M O 

 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Fiscal Policy and Insurance (FP&I) Committee 
DATE:  May 23, 2022 
SUBJECT: Review Preliminary Draft Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating and Capital Budget  
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose 
As laid out in the District’s budget development process, the initial steps in developing an 
annual budget include staff and management developing and reviewing the preliminary 
operating and capital budgets.  This is followed by the Fiscal Policy and Insurance 
Committee’s (Committee) review and consideration.  The review is intended to provide 
detailed cost data and solicit the Committee’s feedback and comments.  With the completion 
the Santa Margarita Groundwater Treatment Plant (SMGTP) in December 2021, the District 
has taken a significant step towards diversifying its water supplies.  The SMGTP allows the 
District to take Santa Margarita River (SMR) water and deliver it to customers.  This year the 
budget discussion will focus on the budgetary changes driven by the District’s supply mix and 
water sales uncertainty.   
 
Summary 
Water Supply Challenges: 
With the State already in voluntary use restrictions and tighter restrictions anticipated, 
estimating next year’s water sales and supplies is difficult.    Not only is the drought impacting 
the State water supplies but also the hydrology of the SMR.  This impacts the amount of SMR 
water available to the District.  With reduced levels of SMR water available, the District is 
budgeting to purchasing more water from the San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA).  
Developing a budget under these conditions requires assumptions that deviate from “normal” 
levels, this can cause temporary spikes in budget levels.  This is highlighted by the increase 
in the District’s budgeted Cost of Water shown in the table below.  Under normal conditions 
this cost will be lower due to water production at SMGTP.   
 
OPERATING BUDGET: 
Attachment A provides the Preliminary Draft Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget’s labor 
and non-labor expenses and benefit allocations for the District’s Services.  The attachment 
includes the District’s Services which include Administrative (two pages), Water (two pages), 
Recycled Water and Wastewater Services and the new Community Benefit Program.  The 
tables show the actual expenditures for Fiscal Year 2020-21, the budgeted and projected 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 expenditures and the Fiscal Year 2022-23 preliminary draft budget.  
Attachment E is a summary of significant (greater than 5%) change budget to budget in any 
line item.  The code in red to the right in Attachment A corresponds to the description of the 
change provided in Attachment E.  A full Draft Budget is included for Board review as 
Attachment F.   
 
The total District operating expenditures are shown in the table below.  A discussion of each 
category of the Operating Budget is discussed in detail below.  Overall the total increase 
shown in this table is being driven by Water Supply Costs, which cannot be finalized until 

033



 

SDCWA has set CY 2022 Rates and Charges.  In addition, the expenditures related to the 
Community Benefit Program are also included in this budget.   
Looking at Fiscal Year 2021-22 Projected expenditures, staff are currently projecting a 
surplus in the budget appropriations.  At this point, staff is not asking for any changes to the 
budget appropriations.   
 

 
     
Cost of Water   
The increase in the Cost of Water, which is what the District pays to other entities for its water, 
is being driven by a shift towards SDCWA supplies due to the reduced SMR water available 
to the District.  While this is not ideal, this volatility in supplies is embedded in the mechanics 
of the SMR water rights agreement and expected.  In addition to more supplies from SDCWA 
this budget cycle, in light of the water supply conditions sales are being projected at 7,800 
AF.  This is slightly below the expected sales level of 8,100, which has been used in prior 
years for the water sales forecast.  With SDCWA’s rates and charges for CY 2023 not yet set, 
staff are assuming an overall 5% increase on SDCWA rates.  Attachment B shows a detailed 
breakdown of the District’s budgeted Cost of Water. 
 
Labor 
Labor is showing an increase in line with the proposed cost of living increase and other 
changes in the most recent Memorandums of Understanding (MOUs).  As shown in 
Attachment A, the increase varies depending on the impact of the MOUs on the Division 
staffing.  Overall, the increase is under the actual level of regional inflation.   
 
Non-labor  
The non-labor expenses are broken into eight main categories to make the budget more 

reader friendly.  The expense categories include Director Expenses, Contractor Services, 

Equipment (Non Capital), Materials/Services/Supplies, Professional Services, 

Membership/Training/Permit, Santa Margarita Water master and Utilities.  Attachment E 

provides detail on the drivers behind the changes.  Use the Reference Codes in Attachment 

A (on right in red) to find the details in Attachment E.  Non-labor is down due to the reduction 

in variable operating costs for the SMGTPs.  This is being driven by the reduced volume of 

water expected to be treated at this facility during the next budget cycle.  Offsetting this 

decrease is $539,039 in expenses for the Community Benefit Program, which is a new 

element in the Budget.  This additional activity accounts for 1.7% of the overall increase of 

7.8%.  

  
Benefits 

FY 2020-21 FY 2022-23 Bgt to Bgt

Actuals Budget Projected Recommended % Change

Cost of Water 13,955,908$ 11,547,729$          12,769,032$ 13,791,080$     19.4%

Debt Service 3,101,093      3,685,471              3,621,118      3,730,508         1.2%

Total Labor 5,204,642      5,716,546              5,681,295      6,064,174         6.1%

Total Non-Labor* 4,288,444      6,667,765              5,161,755      6,309,478         -5.4%

Operating Expense Total 26,550,087$ 27,617,511$          27,233,199$ 29,895,240$     8.2%

Benefits Expenditures (Ops) 3,674,696      3,874,164              3,874,164      4,057,087         4.7%

Total 30,224,783$ 31,491,675$          31,107,363$ 33,952,327$     7.8%

*Total Non-Labor Includes $539,039 for Community Benefit Program

FY 2021-22

034



 

The increase in benefits is primarily due to the scheduled increase in pension payments. The 
District’s total benefit budget, which includes both operating (87%) and capital (13%) portions 
and is shown in Attachment C, is increasing 4.7%.  The increase in pension related costs are 
driven by CalPERS policies.  The Board could elect to offset the Pension and or other 
increases by decreasing its voluntary contribution to the District’s Pension/OPEB Liability 
Trust, which is currently budgeted at $500,000. 
 
Debt Service 
The District’s debt service schedule and payments for Fiscal Year 2022-23 are provided in 
Attachment D.  The debt service payment for Fiscal Year 2022-23 is shown below the debt 
service schedules and is increased as the District begins paying full debt service on debt 
related to the Santa Margarita Conjunctive Use Project.       
 
CAPITAL BUDGET: 
 
Utility districts require long-term investments in extensive capital facilities. The District 
maintains over 370 miles of buried water and sewer pipe that must be maintained and 
replaced. The District also has pump stations, lift stations and treatment facilities that require 
significant expenses to replace and maintain. It is critical to develop plans to reduce the 
overall cost of operating these facilities by completing pro-active capital projects to replace 
and rehabilitate these assets versus waiting for system failures.  A well-planned Capital 
Program is critical to the long-term stability of the District. 
 
The annual Capital Improvement Budget is used to implement the District’s long-range capital 
goals. These goals are developed using the District’s Strategic Plan, Urban Water 
Management Plan, Asset Management Plan and Master Plans. These plans are utilized to 
develop the lowest lifecycle cost to meet water and wastewater needs and maintain system 
reliability for the District’s customers. Projects are selected based on prioritized needs verses 
available capital funds. Individual project costs are estimated based on current construction 
cost information. While some projects are well into the design phase and costs can be fairly 
accurately estimated, others are based on early stage planning estimates. Additionally, 
unforeseen changes to priorities can result from changing materials and construction costs, 
pipeline failures, extreme weather, etc. Changing conditions resulting from these complexities 
can alter the individual project priorities. Continuous capital project updates are provided 
throughout the year to provide key performance metrics and to inform the board and the public 
of any changes to priorities.  
 
A summary of the CIP is provided below. 

 

Water Capital Projects: 
 
The most crucial component of the water capital plan is the pipeline and valve 
replacement program. The portion of the annual budget for these efforts is based on 
asset analysis performed in 2017, and routinely updated, with the intent to increase the 
annual budget in 20-year increments in order to achieve a 100-year replacement cycle. 
The Board also adopted a capital improvement charge and an escalation value to the 
charge to help make incremental progress towards reaching the 100 year replacement 
target. There are 6,872 total valves and 268 miles (1,415,040 feet) of water main in the 

035



 

existing distribution system. Currently the goal is to replace 100 valves and 5,000 linear 
feet of water main per year. Because the pipeline replacement goal was not met in 
FY20-21, the goal for FY21-22 was increased to 7,680. However, due to longer than 
previously normal procurement times, current projections show the year will likely end 
with about 6,700 linear feet replaced. The goal for FY22-23 will be 7,500 linear feet of 
pipe replaced, again above the typical 5,000 linear feet, in order to gain on the overall 
pipeline replacement plan. Based on the favorable bid prices on the larger Winter 
Haven Pipeline Replacement project, staff intend to bid all planned pipeline replacement 
for the year as a single project with the expectation that the larger project will help 
mitigate cost increases and attract bids more experienced contractors.   
 
The table below shows Budget vs Projected Actuals for FY 2021-22 and the proposed 
budget for FY 2022-23. 
 

 
 
The major pipeline projects for Fiscal Year 2022-23 include:  

 Completion of the 2nd phase of the Winter Haven Pipeline Replacement 
Project. The project consists of the replacement of approximately 5,580 
linear feet of 12-inch water main. The majority of this project will be 
completed by the end of FY21-22. 

 Replacement of water mains on various streets around the downtown area. 

Approximately 7,500 linear feet of pipeline ranging in size from 6-inch 
diameter to 12-inch diameter.  

 
Wastewater/Recycled Water Capital Projects: 
 

As part of the long-term sewer system replacement plan, the focus will be on 
relining manholes and mainlines and installation of a new gravity sewer main 
enabling the decommissioning of the Hawthorn Lift Station.   
 

Water Capital Projects

Budget 

FY 2022

Projected 

FY 2022

Proposed 

FY 2023

Pipelines and Valve Replacement Projects by District $670,000 $491,617 $570,000

Pipeline Replacement Projects by Contractors $3,388,000 $2,601,210 $4,543,350

Deluz ID Projects $100,000 $67,394 $100,000

Pump Stations $412,500 $57,834 $300,000

Meter Replacement $275,000 $127,170 $25,000

Pressure Reducing Stations $0 $0 $65,000

Red Mountain Reservoir Improvements $112,000 $101,595 $175,000

Steel Reservoir Improvements $180,000 $157,134 $10,000

Santa Margarita Conjunctive Use Project (Construction) $8,450,000 $7,280,290 $0

SMGTP Improvements $0 $0 $200,000

SCADA Upgrades/ Security/Telemetry $95,000 $77,409 $90,000

Total PAYGO Water Capital Projects $5,232,500 $3,681,363 $6,078,350

Total Water Capital Projects (Including SMRCUP) $13,682,500 $10,961,653

036



 

At the Water Reclamation Plant (WRP), planned work includes the replacement 
of aging mechanical equipment, resealing the yard pavement, coating of 
concrete basins and equipment, and finishing the new storm water basins started 
in the current fiscal year.  
 
For the recycled water system, the primary focus will be on replacement of small 
sections of mainline, as well as strategic planning to identify future expansions of 
service area. The water supply reliability project will be completed in the Fall. The 
remaining portion of this project is funded by an Integrated Regional Water 
Management Proposition 1 Grant.  
 
The table below shows Budget vs Projected Actuals for FY 2021-22 and the proposed 
budget for FY 2022-23. 
 

 
 
 
Administrative Capital Projects: 
 
Administrative capital projects in the coming year will be focused on improved 
network/server reliability and security, and replacement of the main office roof. The 
table below shows Budget vs Projected Actuals for FY 2021-22 and the proposed 
budget for FY 2022-23. 
 

 
 

Recycled Water Capital Projects

Budget 

FY 2022

Projected 

FY 2022

Proposed 

FY 2023

Recycled Water Improvements $270,000 $325,804 $114,000

Total Recycled Water Capital Projects $270,000 $325,804 $114,000

Waste Water Capital Projects

Budget 

FY 2022

Budget 

FY 2022

Planned 

FY 2023

WRP Improvements $315,000 $487,805 $281,000

Collection System Improvements $595,000 $593,992 $275,000

Outfall Improvements $50,000 $0 $50,000

Total Waste Water Capital Projects $960,000 $1,081,797 $606,000

Administrative Capital Projects

Budget 

FY 2022

Projected 

FY 2022

Proposed 

FY 2023

Administrative Upgrades $65,000 $55,000 $105,000

Engineering and Operations Information Systems $0 $0 $30,000

Facility Improvements/Upgrades/Security $120,000 $119,057 $290,000

District Yard Improvements $25,000 $19,636 $0

Vehicles and Heavy Equipment $615,500 $564,082 $255,000

Total Administrative Capital Projects $825,500 $757,775 $680,000

037



 

Total Capital Budget Summary: 
 

  

Budget  
FY 2022 

Projecte
d  

FY 2022 

Propos
ed  

FY 2023 

Total all PAYGO Capital Budget 
Projects 

$7,288,00
0 

$5,846,73
9 

$7,478,3
50 

Total all Capital Projects (Including 
SMRCUP) 

$15,738,0
00 

$13,127,0
29 

$7,478,3
50 

 
Next steps: 
It should be noted that the revenues and financial projections can only be developed once 
the SDCWA’s rates and the District’s fixed charge allocations are available.  Staff anticipate 
having a Final Draft Fiscal Year 2021-22 Budget for the Committee to review in early June 
and then ready for the June Board meeting.  
 
The following Attachments have been included to provide time to review in advance of the 
meeting: 

 Attachment A – Draft Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating Budget for labor and non-labor 
expenses and benefit allocations for the District’s Services   

 Attachment B – Draft Fiscal Year 2022-23 Cost of Water   

 Attachment C – Draft Fiscal Year 2022-23 benefit expenditures.   

 Attachment D – Fiscal Year 2022-23 debt service schedule. 

 Attachment E – Summary of Significant Percent Changes by Budget Category 

 Attachment F – Draft Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended  Annual Budget 
   

 
Recommended Action 
This item is for discussion only.  No action is required. 

038



Attachment A 
 

Draft Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating Budget for  
Labor and Non-Labor Expenses and Benefit 

Allocations for the District’s Services 
 

039



FPUD Expense Summary
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating Budget
FY 2020-21 FY 2022-23 % Change Reference

Description Div Actual Budget Projected Budget Bgt to Bgt Code

Administrative Services
Office of the General Manager 50

          Labor Expenses:
Salaries 421,619$       453,099$       443,846$       471,492$       4.1%

          Non-Labor Expenses:
Director Expenses 22,311 40,000 32,164           40,000 0.0%

Contractor Services C 14,765 12,700 12,983           14,500 14.2% 1-1
Materials/Services/Supplies M 56,338 92,300 93,482           84,800 -8.1% 1-2

Equipment (Non Capital) E -                    0 NA
Professional Services P 502,742 400,000 433,437         410,000 2.5%

Memberships/Training/Permits T 73,428 96,600 87,435           88,000 -8.9% 1-3
Santa Margarita Watermaster 116,402 128,412 128,412         135,073 5.2% 1-4

Total Non-Labor 785,985$       770,012$       787,912$       772,373$       0.3%

Division Operating Total 1,207,603$    1,223,111$    1,231,759$    1,243,865$    1.7%

Finance & Customer Service 53

         Labor Expenses: 54

Salaries 766,698$       793,026$       728,528$       856,036$       7.9% 1-5

         Non-Labor Expenses:
Contractor Services C 31,390 21,000           20,688           24,000           14.3% 1-6

Equipment (Non Capital) E 0 4,000             4,121             4,500             12.5% 1-7
Materials/Services/Supplies M 131,892 197,200 151,131         145,200         -26.4% 1-8

Professional Services P 92,301 166,000         157,255         181,500         9.3% 1-9
Memberships/Training/Permits T 790 2,700             1,837             2,700             0.0%

Utilities U -                    -                    -                    -                    NA

Total Non-Labor 256,374$       390,900$       335,031$       357,900$       -8.4%

Division Operating Total 1,023,072$    1,183,926$    1,063,559$    1,213,936$    2.5%

Warehouse & Purchasing 60

         Labor Expenses:
Salaries 217,145$       171,869$       167,911$       174,529$       1.5%

         Non-Labor Expenses:
Contractor Services C 124,588         120,000         140,000         135,000         12.5% 1-10

Equipment (Non Capital) E 658                500                284                500                0.0%
Materials/Services/Supplies M 123,734         106,800         104,863         119,500         11.9% 1-11

Professional Services P -                    -                    -                    -                    NA
Memberships/Training/Permits T 1,132             1,000             1,063             1,000             0.0%

Utilities U 43,212           45,000           44,458           45,000           0.0%

Total Non-Labor 293,323$       273,300$       290,668$       301,000$       10.1%

Division Operating Total 510,468$       445,169$       458,579$       475,529$       6.8%

Human Resources 70

          Labor Expenses:
Salaries 225,288$       239,473$       231,252$       249,371$       4.1%

         Non-Labor Expenses:
Contractor Services C 16,729           61,325           61,325           20,000           -67.4% 1-12

Equipment (Non Capital) E -                    -                    -                    -                    NA
Materials/Services/Supplies M 17,473           27,400           15,006           27,400           0.0%

Professional Services P 7,651             10,000           7,398             10,000           0.0%
Memberships/Training/Permits T 47,890           95,550           59,338           98,050           2.6%

Education Funding NA 5,040             3,000             7,674             7,000             133.3% 1-13
Utilities U -                    -                    -                    -                    NA

Total Non-Labor 94,783$         197,275$       150,740$       162,450$       -17.7%

Division Operating Total 320,071$       436,748$       381,992$       411,821$       -5.7%

FY 2021-22

Page 1 of 7 040



FPUD Expense Summary
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating Budget
FY 2020-21 FY 2022-23 % Change Reference

Description Div Actual Budget Projected Budget Bgt to Bgt Code

Administrative Services

FY 2021-22

Information Management 51

         Labor Expenses:
Salaries 88,880$         96,286$         100,565$       98,800$         2.6%

         Non-Labor Expenses:
Contractor Services C 59,681           62,150           62,380           65,150           4.8%

Equipment (Non Capital) E 34,121           25,000           24,500           25,000           0.0%
Materials/Services/Supplies M 162,109         185,728         175,695         193,068         4.0%

Professional Services P -                    -                    -                    75,000           100.0% 1-14
Memberships/Training/Permits T -                    -                    -                    -                    NA

Utilities U -                    -                    -                    -                    NA

Total Non-Labor 255,911$       272,878$       262,575$       358,218$       31.3%

Division Operating Total 344,791$       369,164$       363,140$       457,018$       23.8%

Engineering Services 52

         Labor Expenses:
Salaries 482,965$       480,913$       496,169$       530,440$       10.3% 1-15

         Non-Labor Expenses:
Contractor Services C 29,838           10,000           -                    10,000           0.0%

Equipment (Non Capital) E -                    -                    -                    -                    NA
Materials/Services/Supplies M 37,912           42,000           42,565           42,000           0.0%

Professional Services P -                    -                    -                    -                    NA
Memberships/Training/Permits T -                    500 250                500                0.0%

Utilities U -                    -                    -                    -                    NA

Total Non-Labor 67,750$         52,500$         42,815$         52,500$         0.0%

Division Operating Total 550,715$       533,413$       538,984$       582,940$       9.3%

Safety & Risk 57

         Labor Expenses:
Salaries 154,594$       213,682$       181,827$       217,428$       1.8%

         Non-Labor Expenses:
Contractor Services C 21,119           19,000           19,171           25,000           31.6% 1-16

Equipment (Non Capital) E 36,080           35,000           47,333           70,000           100.0% 1-17
Materials/Services/Supplies M 10,418           29,500           22,367           30,200           2.4%

Professional Services P 257,262         275,000         300,000         350,000         27.3% 1-18
Memberships/Training/Permits T -                    -                    3,550             3,000             100.0% 1-19

Utilities U -                    -                    -                    -                    NA

Total Non-Labor 324,880$       358,500$       392,421$       478,200$       33.4%

Division Operating Total 479,474$       572,182$       574,248$       695,628$       21.6%

Vehicle Services & Shop 65

         Labor Expenses:
Salaries 84,136$         107,811$       69,843$         114,913$       6.6% 1-20

         Non-Labor Expenses:
Contractor Services C 26,606           25,000           25,000           27,500           10.0% 1-21

Equipment (Non Capital) E -                    -                    107                -                    NA
Materials/Services/Supplies M 324,902         275,000         225,044         290,000         5.5% 1-22

Professional Services P -                    -                    -                    -                    NA
Memberships/Training/Permits T -                    -                    -                    -                    NA

Utilities U -                    -                    -                    -                    NA

Total Non-Labor 351,508$       300,000$       250,151$       317,500$       5.8%

Division Operating Total 435,644$       407,811$       319,994$       432,413$       6.0%

Total Labor 2,441,325$    2,556,158$    2,419,940$    2,713,010$    6.1%

Total Non-Labor Expenses 2,430,513      2,615,365      2,512,314      2,800,141      7.1%

Operating Total 4,871,838$    5,171,523$    4,932,255$    5,513,151$    6.6%

Allocated Benefits Expenditures* 1,723,678      1,732,336      1,732,336      1,815,073      4.8%

Total Budget 6,595,516$    6,903,859$    6,664,591$    7,328,223$    6.1%

* Includes transfer to Pension/OPEB Trusts

Page 2 of 7 041



FPUD Expense Summary
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating Budget
FY 2020-21 FY 2022-23 % Change Reference

Description Div Actual Budget Projected Budget Bgt to Bgt Code

Water Services 30

Treatment 30

          Labor Expenses:
Salaries -$                  180,473$       104,185$       237,424$         31.6% 2-1

          Non-Labor Expenses:
Contractor Services C -                    80,000           135,389         80,000             0.0%

Equipment (Non Capital) E -                    5,000             3,632             5,000               0.0%
Materials/Services/Supplies M -                    158,000         219,937         278,498           76.3% 2-2

Professional Services P -                    -                    -                    -                       NA
Memberships/Training/Permits T -                    50,000 27,285           -                       -100.0% 2-3

Utilities U -                    1,327,000      232,479         285,000           -78.5% 2-4

Total Non-Labor -$                  1,620,000$    618,722$       648,498$         -60.0%

Division Operating Total -$                  1,800,473$    722,906$       885,922$         -50.8%
.

Production & Distribution 31

          Labor Expenses:
Salaries 716,421$       633,161$       762,702$       651,941$         3.0%

          Non-Labor Expenses:
Contractor Services C 87,317           111,500         91,000           101,000           -9.4% 2-5

Equipment (Non Capital) E 9,386             20,000           18,000           20,000             0.0%
Materials/Services/Supplies M 208,632         218,000         201,142         224,000           2.8%

Professional Services P -                    -                    -                    -                       NA
Memberships/Training/Permits T 55,642           70,000 68,261           80,000             14.3% 2-6

Utilities U 93,202           120,000         62,687           90,000             -25.0% 2-7

Total Non-Labor 454,180$       539,500$       441,090$       515,000$         -4.5%

Division Operating Total 1,170,601$    1,172,661$    1,203,791$    1,166,941$      -0.5%
.

Pipeline Maintenance & Construction 32

          Labor Expenses:
Salaries 299,107$       457,939$       395,291$       439,956$         -3.9%

          Non-Labor Expenses:
Contractor Services C 19,280           30,000           30,000           40,000             33.3% 2-8

Equipment (Non Capital) E 8,334             10,000           11,326           10,000             0.0%
Materials/Services/Supplies M 25,690           98,000           54,329           40,000             -59.2% 2-9

Professional Services P -                    -                    -                    -                       NA
Memberships/Training/Permits T -                    -                    -                    -                       NA

Utilities U -                    -                    -                    -                       NA

Total Non-Labor 53,304$         138,000$       95,655$         90,000$           -34.8%

Division Operating Total 352,411$       595,939$       490,946$       529,956$         -11.1%

FY 2021-22

Page 3 of 7 042



FPUD Expense Summary
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating Budget
FY 2020-21 FY 2022-23 % Change Reference

Description Div Actual Budget Projected Budget Bgt to Bgt Code

Water Services 30

FY 2021-22

System Services 42

          Labor Expenses:
Salaries 353,661$       431,604$       521,790$       479,262$         11.0% 2-10

          Non-Labor Expenses:
Contractor Services C 64,282           76,000           85,000           106,000           39.5% 2-11

Equipment (Non Capital) E 866                -                    1,423             -                       NA
Materials/Services/Supplies M 72,249           125,000         103,036         105,000           -16.0% 2-12

Professional Services P -                    -                    -                    -                       NA
Memberships/Training/Permits T -                    -                    -                    -                       NA

Utilities U -                    -                    -                    -                       NA

Total Non-Labor 137,396$       201,000$       189,459$       211,000$         5.0%

Division Operating Total 491,058$       632,604$       711,250$       690,262$         9.1%

Total Labor 1,369,189$    1,703,177$    1,783,968$    1,808,584$      6.2%

Total Non-Labor 644,880         2,498,500      1,344,926      1,464,498        -41.4%

Operating Total 2,014,069$    4,201,677$    3,128,893$    3,273,082$      -22.1%

Allocated Benefits Expenditures 966,705         1,154,262      1,154,262      1,214,646        5.2%

Total Direct Water Costs 2,980,774$    5,355,939$    4,283,155$    4,487,727$      -16.2%

Allocation of Administrative Services 4,221,130      4,418,470      4,265,338      4,690,063        6.1%

Total Budget 7,201,905$    9,774,409$    8,548,493$    9,177,790$      -6.1%

Page 4 of 7 043



FPUD Expense Summary
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating Budget
FY 2020-21 FY 2022-23 % Change Reference

Description Div Actual Budget Projected Budget Bgt to Bgt Code

Wastewater Services 32

Collections 31

          Labor Expenses:
Salaries 533,233$       450,525$       547,952$       479,842$       6.5% 3-1

          Non-Labor Expenses:
Contractor Services C 35,075           56,000           42,104           75,000           33.9% 3-2

Equipment (Non Capital) E 1,070             5,000             54                  5,000             0.0%
Materials/Services/Supplies M 81,607           124,000         135,696         170,000         37.1% 3-3

Professional Services P -                     -                     -                     -                     NA
Memberships/Training/Permits T -                     900                900                900                0.0%

Utilities U 53,060           100,000         114,000         122,300         22.3% 3-4

Total Non-Labor 170,812$       285,900$       292,754$       373,200$       30.5%

Division Operating Total 704,044$       736,425$       840,706$       853,042$       15.8%

Treatment 30

          Labor Expenses:
Salaries 764,578$       824,770$       814,887$       895,700$       8.6% 3-5

          Non-Labor Expenses:
Contractor Services C 292,872         433,000         289,576         353,000         -18.5% 3-6

Equipment (Non Capital) E 9,433             9,000             5,473             7,000             -22.2% 3-7
Materials/Services/Supplies M 249,226         312,000         246,801         297,500         -4.6%

Professional Services P -                     -                     -                     -                     NA
Memberships/Training/Permits T 86,914           95,000           108,173         95,000           0.0%

Utilities U 214,951         197,000         178,717         157,600         -20.0% 3-8

Total Non-Labor 853,397$       1,046,000$    828,739$       910,100$       -13.0%

Division Operating Total 1,617,975$    1,870,770$    1,643,626$    1,805,800$    -3.5%

Total Labor 1,297,810$    1,275,294$    1,362,839$    1,375,541$    7.9%

Total Non-Labor 1,024,209      1,331,900      1,121,493      1,283,300      -3.6%

Operating Total 2,322,019$    2,607,194$    2,484,332$    2,658,841$    2.0%

Allocated Benefits Expenditures 916,309         864,281         864,281         920,272         6.5%

Total Direct Wastewater Costs 3,238,328$    3,471,475$    3,348,612$    3,579,114$    3.1%

Allocation of Administrative Services 2,308,431      2,416,351      2,332,607      2,564,878      6.1%

Total Budget 5,546,758$    5,887,826$    5,681,219$    6,143,992$    4.4%

FY 2021-22

Page 5 of 7 044



FPUD Expense Summary
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating Budget
FY 2020-21 FY 2022-23 % Change Reference

Description Div Actual Budget Projected Budget Bgt to Bgt Code

Recycled Water Services 31

Production 30

          Labor Expenses:
Salaries 89,456$         145,595$       91,822$         149,640$       2.8%

          Non-Labor Expenses:
Contractor Services C 25,453           34,000           29,284           36,000           5.9% 4-1

Equipment (Non Capital) E 3,616             4,000             3,178             4,000             0.0%
Materials/Services/Supplies M 64,072           77,000           73,443           89,500           16.2% 4-2

Professional Services P -                     -                     -                     -                     NA
Memberships/Training/Permits T -                     -                     -                     -                     NA

Utilities U 91,854           85,000           76,593           68,000           -20.0% 4-3

Total Non-Labor 184,995$       200,000$       182,498$       197,500$       -1.3%

Division Operating Total 274,451$       345,595$       274,319$       347,140$       0.4%

Distribution 31

          Labor Expenses:
Salaries 6,862$           36,321$         22,726$         10,438$         -71.3% 4-4

          Non-Labor Expenses:
Contractor Services C -                     -                     -                     -                     NA

Equipment (Non Capital) E -                     -                     -                     -                     NA
Materials/Services/Supplies M 3,332             22,000           -                     25,000           13.6% 4-5

Professional Services P -                     -                     -                     -                     NA
Memberships/Training/Permits T -                     -                     -                     -                     NA

Utilities U 514                -                     525                -                     NA

Total Non-Labor 3,846$           22,000$         525$              25,000$         13.6%

Division Operating Total 10,708$         58,321$         23,251$         35,438$         -39.2%

Total Labor 96,318$         181,916$       114,548$       160,078$       -12.0%

Total Non-Labor 188,841         222,000         183,022         222,500         0.2%

Operating Total 285,159$       403,916$       297,570$       382,578$       -5.3%

Allocated Benefits Expenditures 68,004           123,286         123,286         107,097         -13.1%

Total Direct Recycled Water Costs 353,163$       527,202$       420,857$       489,675$       -7.1%

Allocation of Administrative Services 65,955           69,039           66,646           73,282           6.1%

Total Budget 419,119$       596,241$       487,503$       562,957$       -5.6%

FY 2021-22

Page 6 of 7 045



FPUD Expense Summary
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating Budget
FY 2020-21 FY 2022-23 % Change Reference

Description Div Actual Budget Projected Budget Bgt to Bgt Code

Community Benefit Program New

Community Benefit Program New

          Labor Expenses:
Salaries -$                  -$                  -$                  6,961$             NA 5-1

NA
          Non-Labor Expenses: NA

Contractor Services C -                    -                    -                    539,039           NA
Equipment (Non Capital) E -                    -                    -                    NA

Materials/Services/Supplies M -                    -                    -                    NA
Professional Services P -                    -                    -                    NA

Memberships/Training/Permits T -                    -                    -                    NA
Utilities U -                    -                    -                    NA

Total Non-Labor -$                  -$                  -$                  539,039$         NA
NA

Division Operating Total -$                  -$                  -$                  546,000$         NA
.

Total Labor -$                  -$                  -$                  6,961$             NA

Total Non-Labor -                    -                    -                    539,039           NA
Operating Total -$                  -$                  -$                  546,000$         NA

Allocated Benefits Expenditures -                    -                    -                    -                       NA

Total Direct Water Costs -$                  -$                  -$                  546,000$         NA

Allocation of Administrative Services -                    -                    -                    -                       NA

Total Budget -$                  -$                  -$                  546,000$         NA

FY 2021-22

Page 7 of 7 046



Attachment B 
 

Draft Fiscal Year 2022-23 Cost of Water 
 

047



 

048



Attachment C 
 

Draft Fiscal Year 2022-23 Benefit Expenditures 
 

049



 

050



Attachment D 
 

Fiscal Year 2022-23 Debt Service Schedule 
 
 

051



 

 052



Attachment E 
 

Summary of Significant Percent Changes  
by Budget Category 

 

053



1 
 

FY 2022-23 Operating Budget Justifications (+/- 5%) 
Administration 
1-1 Increased budget based on actual costs from County for tax analysis 
1-2 Decreased budget for 100th anniversary expenses charged previous FY 
1-3 Decreased budget to align with projections for memberships/training/permits 
1-4 Increased budget based on court adopted Watermaster budget 
1-5 Increased budget due to Salary Survey Increases and COLA 
1-6 Increased budget for anticipated price increases 
1-7 Increased budget for additional equipment necessary for Customer Service 
1-8 Decreased budget due to elimination of FedEx charges 
1-9 Increased budget for final rate study payment, expected to end in Fall 2022 
1-10 Increased budget due to additional building service agreement contracts and increases to existing 

service contracts 
1-11 Increased budget due to inflation and raw material costs 
1-12 Decreased budget due to salary survey in previous Fiscal Year 
1-13 Increased budget for additional FTE’s utilizing Education Funding 
1-14 Increased budget for IT Master Plan 
1-15 Increased budget due to Salary Survey Increase and COLA 
1-16 Increased budget due to safety gap analysis training requirements 
1-17 Increased budget due to safety gap analysis equipment requirements 
1-18 Increased budget due to Property Insurance for the SMGTP 
1-19 Increased budget due to additional risk management memberships and safety publications  
1-20 Increased budget due to Salary Survey Increase and COLA 
1-21 Increased budget due to services used by Fleet 
1-22 Increased budget due to rising gasoline/diesel prices 

Water Services 
2-1 Increased budget due to more labor hours budgeted this FY for full year of SMGTP 
2-2 Increased budget due to more chemicals and lab supplies for SMGTP operations 
2-3 Decreased budget due to Permit fees moved to Production and Distribution Division 
2-4 Decreased budget due to reduced power based on projected deliveries 
2-5 Decreased budget due to reduction in temporary labor  
2-6 Increased budget due to Permit fees that were moved from Treatment  
2-7 Decreased budget due to a reduction in power to move SMGTP water 
2-8 Increased budget due to fire hydrant repair costs  
2-9 Decreased budget to align with projections for System Materials 
2-10 Increased budget due to Salary Survey Increase and COLA; Allocated labor hours to Meter Services  
2-11 Increased budget to fund additional paving projects 
2-12 Decreased budget to align with projections for stores inventory 

Wastewater Services 
3-1 Increased budget due to Salary Survey Increase and COLA  
3-2 Increased budget for SCADA contracts and SCADA Integrations  

054



2 
 

3-3 Increased budget due to Anthony's Corner Lift Station staying online and an increase in material 
costs  

3-4 Increased budget due to power consumption at Anthony's Corner Lift Station  
3-5 Increased budget due to Salary Survey Increase/COLA; More hours allocated to Treatment 
3-6 Decreased budget to align with projections for contract services 
3-7 Decreased budget to align with projections for small equipment & tools 
3-8 Decreased budget due to District energy savings from TESLA battery coming online 

Recycled Water Services 
4-1 Increased budget for SCADA related services for the Recycled Water treatment system 
4-2 Increased budget due to price increases for chemicals and lab supplies 
4-3 Decreased budget due to District energy savings from TESLA battery coming online 
4-4 Decreased budget due to allocating less time to distribution to budget in line with actuals 
4-5 Increased budget for general supplies for Recycled Electrical/Maintenance 

 

Community Benefit Program 
5-1 Added budget for Community Benefit Program 

 

055



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Attachment F 
 

Draft Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual 
Budget 

 

056



Current Board of Directors:

District Management: 

Fallbrook Public Utility District
990 East Mission Road
Fallbrook, CA 92028

760-728-1125
www.fpud.com

DRAFT

057



Fallbrook Public Utility District 

This page intentionally left blank

DRAFT

058



iFallbrook Public Utility District 

Table of Contents              Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

DRAFT

059



ii Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Table of Contents                    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

DRAFT

060



iiiFallbrook Public Utility District 

Table of Contents              Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

DRAFT

061



iv Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Table of Contents                    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

DRAFT

062



Transmittal Letter                    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

990 East Mission Road
Fallbrook, California
92028-2232
www.fpud.com
(760) 728-1125

Board of Directors

Dave Baxter
Division 1

Ken Endter
Division 2

Jennifer DeMeo
Division 3

Don McDougal
Division 4

Charley Wolk
Division 5

Staff 

Jack Bebee
General Manager

David Shank
Assistant General Manager/
Chief Financial Offi  cer

Lauren Eckert
Executive Assistant/
Board Secretary 

General Counsel

Paula de Sousa
Best Best & Krieger

 

1Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Budget Message

Overcoming Challenges 

Water AffordabilityDRAFT

063



Transmittal Letter                    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

990 East Mission Road
Fallbrook, California
92028-2232
www.fpud.com
(760) 728-1125

Board of Directors

Dave Baxter
Division 1

Ken Endter
Division 2

Jennifer DeMeo
Division 3

Don McDougal
Division 4

Charley Wolk
Division 5

Staff 

Jack Bebee
General Manager

David Shank
Assistant General Manager/
Chief Financial Offi  cer

Lauren Eckert
Executive Assistant/
Board Secretary 

General Counsel

Paula de Sousa
Best Best & Krieger

 

2 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Asset Management

Continuous ImprovementDRAFT

064



Transmittal Letter                    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

990 East Mission Road
Fallbrook, California
92028-2232
www.fpud.com
(760) 728-1125

Board of Directors

Dave Baxter
Division 1

Ken Endter
Division 2

Jennifer DeMeo
Division 3

Don McDougal
Division 4

Charley Wolk
Division 5

Staff 

Jack Bebee
General Manager

David Shank
Assistant General Manager/
Chief Financial Offi  cer

Lauren Eckert
Executive Assistant/
Board Secretary

General Counsel

Paula de Sousa
Best Best & Krieger

3Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Looking Forward

DRAFT

065



4 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Budget in Brief                    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Accomplishments

Fiscal Year 2022-23 Goals

DRAFT

066



5Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Budget in Brief              Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Sources of Funds

Chart #1 - Sources of Revenue Fiscal Year 2022-23 Total Revenue $41,725,677

DRAFT

067



6 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Budget in Brief                    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Use of Funds

Table #1 - Overview of Total Services’ Operating Budget

San Diego County Water Authority is 
increasing its treated water rate by 9.2% 
in CY 2023, pushing the District’s water 

supply costs higher.

DRAFT

068



7Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Budget in Brief              Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Chart #2 - Uses of Funds Fiscal Year 2022-23
Total Uses of Funds $41,725,677

Capital Budget

SDCWA Rate Lawsuit Rebate

Chart #3 - Fallbrook Public Utility District’s Annual Budgeted  CIP ExpendituresDRAFT

069



8 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Budget in Brief                    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Financial Summaries

Chart #4 - District’s Estimated Wholesale Water Costs

Chart #5 - District’s Fund Balances and Target Balance Level

CHANGING WATER 
WHOLESALER

The LAFCO decision on the District’s 
proposed detachment from SDCWA 
will determine if rate payers will 
see a 30% decrease in the wholesale 
cost of water or continued wholesale 
water rate increases as SDCWA 
pursues a high cost water reliability 
strategy.  

DRAFT

070



9Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Budget in Brief              Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

 Table #2 - Fallbrook Public Utility District’s Financial Summary

Budget User Guidance*

DRAFT

071



10 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Budget in Brief                    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

DRAFT

072



11Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Budget in Brief              Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

DRAFT

073



      
Service Area / STATISTICS

Introduction Section                   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

12 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

History

Diversifying the District’s Water Supply: The Santa Margarita RiverDRAFT

074



13Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Introduction Section                   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Wastewater and Recycled Water History and Mergers

DRAFT

075



Introduction Section                   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

14 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Water System
SANTA MARGARITA GROUNDWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

and PUMPING STATION / STATISTICS

Fallbrook Public Utility District anticipates having this project completed 
in 2021 and to begin having its own cost-effective supply that same year.

• Minimum Plant Capacity-1.2 Million 
Gallons per Day (MGD) 

• Maximum Plant Capacity-7.8 MGD

DRAFT

076



15Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Introduction Section                   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Wastewater System

Recycled Water System

Current Board of Directors:DRAFT

077



Introduction Section                   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

16 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Figure #1 - District Service Area

Figure #2 - District Pipelines

DRAFT

078



17Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Introduction Section                   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Strategic Focus Area | Water Supply

Strategic Focus Area | Infrastructure

Strategic Focus Area | EfficiencyDRAFT

079



Introduction Section                   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

18 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Strategic Focus Area | Community

Strategic Focus Area | Workforce

DRAFT

080



19Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Introduction Section                   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Figure #3 - Fallbrook District’s Annual Budget Process

DRAFT

081



Introduction Section                   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

20 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

DISTRICT ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

DRAFT

082



21Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Introduction Section                   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Figure #4 - Proposed Fiscal Year 2022-23 Organizational Structure 1

DRAFT

083



22 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Fund Structure & 
Financial Policies Section             Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Water Services Funds

Wastewater Services Funds

Recycled Water Services FundDRAFT

084



23Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Fund Structure & 
Financial Policies Section            Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Water Services Capital Fund

Wastewater Services Capital Fund

Recycled Water Services Capital Fund

Fund Summary

Table #1 - Total Fund BalancesDRAFT

085



24 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Fund Structure & 
Financial Policies Section             Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Section 115 Pension and OPEB Trust Fund

DRAFT

086



25Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Financial Summaries Section  Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Chart #1 - Projected Total Rate Revenues *

Looking Forward
The economic impacts and duration of the 
pandemic are still unknown.  While the Budget 
uses rate and charge increases in line with the 
Board’s financial plan, the Board will take 
action to set rates in December 2022.  At that 
time, both the economic impacts and duration 
of the pandemic will be more clear.  The Board 
will take these factors into consideration when 
adopting rates and charges and may elect to 
defer projects to mitigate rate increases. 

**

Chart #2 - Wholesale and Local Supply Mix

DRAFT

087



26 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Financial Summaries Section   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

  
Table #1 - Fallbrook Public Utility District’s Financial Projections

DRAFT

088



27Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Financial Summaries Section  Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Table #1 -  Fallbrook Public Utility District’s Financial Projections, cont.

Chart #3 - District Fund Balances and Target LevelDRAFT

089



Sources of Funds Section   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Fallbrook Public Utility District 28

Table #1 - Five-Year Production and Sales History

Chart#1 - Water Sales TrendsDRAFT

090



Sources of Funds Section  Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

29Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Figure #1 - State Reservoir Conditions

Table #2 - Water Services Sources of Revenue

DRAFT

091



Sources of Funds Section   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Fallbrook Public Utility District 30

Chart #2 - Fiscal Year 2022-23 Water Services Operating Revenues

DRAFT

092



Sources of Funds Section  Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

31Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Table #3 - Wastewater Services Sources of Revenue

Chart #4 - Fiscal Year 2022-23 Wastewater Services Operating Revenues

Chart #3 - Wastewater Services Annual Flows

DRAFT

093



Sources of Funds Section   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Fallbrook Public Utility District 32

Table #4 - Recycled Water Services Sources of Revenue

Chart #5 - Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recycled Water Services Operating RevenuesDRAFT

094



33Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section  Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Overview

Table #1 - Overview of Total Services’ Operating Budget

Administrative ServicesDRAFT

095



34 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Table #2 - Administrative Services Approved Positions

DRAFT

096



35Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section  Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

The Office of the General Manager

Finance and Customer Services

Warehouse and Purchasing

Human Resources

Information Management

DRAFT

097



36 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Engineering Services

Vehicle Services/Shop

Safety and Risk

Table #3 - Administrative Services Total Operating Budget Summary

DRAFT

098



37Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section  Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Table #4 - Administrative Services, Division Budget to Budget Comparison

DRAFT

099



38 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Table #4 - Administrative Services, Division Budget to Budget Comparison, cont.

DRAFT

100



39Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section  Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Table #4 - Administrative Services, Division Budget to Budget Comparison, cont.

Fiscal Year 2021-22 AccomplishmentsDRAFT

101



40 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Fiscal Year 2022-23 Goals and Objectives

Key Performance Indicators

DRAFT

102



41Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section  Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Water Services

Cost Allocation of Administrative Services Chart #1 - Administrative Services
 Cost Allocation

Total Number of Accounts: 14,353

Chart #2 - Water Services Operating Costs DRAFT

103



42 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Table #5 - Water Services Approved Positions

Treatment

Production and Distribution

Pipeline Maintenance and Construction

System Services

D I S T R I C T ’ S 
NEW WATER 
TREATMENT 

PLANT
Able to produce enough 
drinking water to fill 12 
olympic size pools a day. DRAFT

104



43Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section  Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Table #7 - Water Services, Division Budget to Budget Comparison

Table #6 - Water Services, Total Operating Budget Summary*

DRAFT

105



44 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Table #7 - Water Services, Division Budget to Budget Comparison, cont.

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Accomplishments

DRAFT

106



45Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section  Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Fiscal Year 2022-23 Goals and Objectives

Key Performance Indicators

LOCAL WATER 
SUPPLY

Local water supplies will 
reduce SDCWA water 
purchases by 1,300 AF or 
$1.8 million this year.

DRAFT

107



46 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Chart #3 - Water Supply Costs Breakdown

Table #8 - Variable and Fixed Charges Budget to Budget Comparison*

CHANGING WATER 
WHOLESALER

The LAFCO decision on the District’s 
proposed detachment from SDCWA 
will determine if rate payers will 
see a 30% decrease in the wholesale 
cost of water or continued wholesale 
water rate increases as SDCWA 
pursues a high cost water reliability 
strategy.  

Chart #4 - Wholesale and Local Supply Mix

DRAFT

108



47Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section  Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Variable Costs

Fixed Costs

Wastewater ServicesDRAFT

109



48 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Collections

Treatment

Table #9 -  Wastewater Services Approved Positions

DRAFT

110



49Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section  Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Table #10 - Wastewater Services Operating Budget Summary*

Table #11 - Wastewater Services, Division Budget to Budget Comparison 

DRAFT

111



50 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Recycled Water Services

DRAFT

112



51Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section  Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Table #12 - Recycled Water Services Approved Positions

Production

Distribution

DRAFT

113



52 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Table #13 - Recycled Water Services Operating Budget Summary*

Table #14 - Recycled Water Services, Division Budget to Budget Comparison

DRAFT

114



53Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section  Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

DRAFT

115



54 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Community Benefit Program

Table #15 -  Community Benefit Program Approved Positions

Table #16 - Community Benefit Program Operating Budget Summary

DRAFT

116



55Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section  Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Table #17 -  Breakdown of District’s Employee Benefit Costs

Chart #5 - Fiscal Year 2022-23  Benefits Breakdown

Strategic Planning
The District’s proactive management of the district’s pension 
obligations has resulted in approximately funding of its 
pension obligations.  This limits the potential for future rate 
and charge increases due to pension obligation funding needs. 

DRAFT

117



56 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Benefit Allocation

Chart #6 - Fallbrook Public Utility District’s Approved Full-Time Staffing Equivalents

Chart#7 - Fiscal Year 2022-23 Benefits Allocation

DRAFT

118



57Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section  Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Table #18 - Debt Service Budget Summary

Chart #8 - Annual Debt ServiceDRAFT

119



58 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Table #19 - Fiscal Year 2022-23 Debt Service Schedule

DRAFT

120



59Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Operating Budget Section  Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Chart #9 - Debt Service Coverage Ratio

DRAFT

121



60 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section            Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

District Capital Program

Capital Project Summary for Fiscal Year 2022-23

Figure #1 - Fallbrook District Facilities

DRAFT

122



61Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Water Capital Projects

Wastewater/ Recycled Capital Projects

DRAFT

123



62 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section            Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Table #1 - Capital Improvements Projects Summary Table

DRAFT

124



63Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Capital Expenditure Carry-Over

DRAFT

125



64 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section            Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

DRAFT

126



65Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

This page intentionally left blank

DRAFT

127



66 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section            Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Project Description:

Supports Strategic Goals:

Operating Impacts:

Projects Budgets:

Valves Replaced by Year
Year Quantity

FY 2017-18 112
FY 2018-19 57
FY 2019-20 89
FY 2020-21 82
FY 2021-22 32 (as of 5/1/22)
FY 2022-23 100 (Target)

W
a

te
r 

DRAFT

128



67Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Project Description: 

Supports Strategic Goals:

Operating Impacts:

Projects Budgets:

W
a

te
r 

DRAFT

129



68 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section            Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Project Description:

Supports Strategic Goals:

Operating Impacts:

Projects Budgets:

W
a

te
r 

DRAFT

130



69Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Project Description:

Supports Strategic Goals:

Operating Impacts:

Projects Budgets:

W
a

te
r 

DRAFT

131



70 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section            Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Project Description:

Supports Strategic Goals:

Operating Impacts:

Project Budget:

W
a

te
r 

DRAFT

132



71Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Project Description:

Supports Strategic Goals:

Operating Impacts:

Project Budget:

W
a

te
r 

DRAFT

133



72 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section            Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Project Description:

Supports Strategic Goals:

Operating Impacts:

Projects Budgets:

W
a

te
r 

DRAFT

134



73Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Project Description:

Supports Strategic Goals:

Operating Impacts:

Projects Budgets:

W
a

te
r 

DRAFT

135



74 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section            Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

W
a

te
r 

Project Description:

Supports Strategic Goals:

Operating Impacts:

Projects Budgets:

DRAFT

136



75Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Project Description: 

Supports Strategic Goals:

Operating Impacts:

Projects Budgets:

W
a

te
r 

DRAFT

137



76 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section            Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Project Description:

Supports Strategic Goals:

Operating Impacts:

Projects Budgets:

R
e

cy
cl

e
d

 W
a

te
r DRAFT

138



77Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Project Description:

Supports Strategic Goals:

Operating Impacts:

Projects Budgets:

W
a

st
e

w
at

e
r 

 DRAFT

139



78 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section            Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Project Description:

Supports Strategic Goals:

Operating Impacts:

Projects Budgets:

W
a

st
e

w
at

e
r 

 DRAFT

140



79Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Project Description:

Supports Strategic Goals:

Operating Impacts:

Project Budget:

W
a

st
e

w
at

e
r 

 DRAFT

141



80 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section            Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Project Description:

Supports Strategic Goals:

Operating Impacts:

Projects Budgets:DRAFT

142



81Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Capital Budget Section    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Project Description:

Supports Strategic Goals:

Operating Impacts:

Projects Budget:

DRAFT

143



82 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Glossary               Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

This page intentionally left blank

DRAFT

144



83Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Glossary             Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

DRAFT

145



84 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Glossary               Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

DRAFT

146



85Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Glossary             Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

DRAFT

147



86 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Glossary               Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

DRAFT

148



87Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Glossary             Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

DRAFT

149



88 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix A                   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

  Table #1 - Fallbrook Public Utility District’s Enterprise Projections

DRAFT

150



89Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix A               Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Table #2 - Fallbrook Public Utility District’s Water Projections

Chart #1 - Water Fund Balances and Change in Target LevelDRAFT

151



90 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix A                   Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Table #3 - Fallbrook Public Utility District’s Wastewater Projections

Chart #2 - Wastewater Fund Balances and Change in Target Level

DRAFT

152



91Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix A               Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Table #4 Fallbrook Public Utility District’s Recycled Water Projections

Chart #3 - Recycled Water Fund Balances and Change in Target Level

DRAFT

153



92 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix B                     Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Table #5 - Changes in Net Position and Net Position by Component, Last Ten Fiscal Years

 

DRAFT

154



93Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix B              Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Table #5 - Changes in Net Position and Net Position by Component, Last Ten Fiscal Years, cont.

DRAFT

155



Fallbrook Public Utility District 94 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix B                     Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Chart #1 - Operating Expenses by Activity

Chart #2 - Operating Revenues by Source

DRAFT

156



95Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix C               Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

FALLBROOK PUBLIC 
UTILITY DISTRICT 

Standard Policy 
Drafted by: CFO/General Manager 

Original Date: 4-10-2018 
Revision Date: 

Capital Policy 
Review by 

department: 
1________2________ 3________ 
4________5________ 6________ 

Approved by: General Manager 

Purpose:  
To identify standard process for establishing capital versus operating expenses and placing items in the operating 
and capital improvement budgets 

Personnel:   
Accounting and Supervisors 
 
Policy:  
 
General Policy 
The capital policy is established to distinguish capital and operating expenses and placement of projects and items 
in the Operating or Capital Improvement Budget.  Capital expenses are recorded as capital assets and a 
depreciation schedule is established for these assets.  Capital expenses will generally be identified in the Capital 
Budget as part of the Capital Program (CIP), which identifies the District .  This budget includes 
large multi-year construction projects as well as acquisitions of capital equipment and materials. The operational 
budgets may also include some items that are capitalized based on the criteria identified below: 
 
Definitions 
Capital Budget: part of the annual budget adopted by the Board of Directors that identified all Capital Projects for a 
division including construction projects and acquisition of capital equipment. 
 
Operating Budget: Part of the annual budget adopted by the Board of Directors that identifies all on-going annual 
operating costs for a division. 
 
Construction Projects: Includes actual physical projects completed to build new facilities or rehabilitate existing 
facilities. 
 
Plant Equipment: Includes actual physical equipment that may or may not be a part of a larger facility.  May 
include mobile equipment utilized by that division. 
 
Useful Life: The period of time it is anticipate that the piece of equipment would normally last before having to be 
replaced.  The useful life of the equipment can be extended due to a significant rehabilitation project on the 
equipment. 
 
Capital Projects 

A. Construction Projects 
 
All construction projects for construction of new facilities will be capitalized and included in the Capital 
Improvements Program.  The costs to be capitalized include the costs of associated studies, design, 
construction, equipment, construction management, legal and administrative expenses.  Construction 
projects related to rehabilitation of existing facilities will be capitalized if the project extends the useful life of 
the asset for three or more years and the cost of the project related to the asset exceeds $5,000.  Repairs 
to existing pipelines, valves, meters, etc. that maintain the existing service and repair a leak or failure and 
do not extending the life of the asset by three or more years and do not exceed $5,000 are not capitalized. 
For example, repairing a leak with a leak repair coupling does not change the assets service life and will be 
expensed even if the project costs exceed $5,000.  If a valve is replaced or a full section of pipe is replaced 
and the value exceeds $5,000 the project will be capitalized and the service life adjusted. 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT

157



96 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix C                    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

SOP    

 
 

B. Plant Equipment
 
All Plant Equipment purchased with a value of $5,000 or greater and a useful life of greater than three 
years will be capitalized.  In general, these items will be included under the capital Improvement budget 
either as part of a larger capital improvement project or as an acquisition of capital equipment.  Routine 
part replacement costs, such as air filters for the high efficiency blowers, are considered operating 
expense. Improvements to existing fixed assets may be capitalized and appear in the Capital Budget if they 
extend the useful life of the asset by three or more years and the cost of the improvement exceeds the 
$5,000 threshold. 

C. Office Equipment 
 
Office equipment will be capitalized with a value of $5,000 or greater and a useful life of greater than three 
years.  Office equipment includes: Office furniture, cabinets, copiers, computer systems and other 
information technology system.  This includes larger software system integrations including initial software 
costs and implementation costs.  In general, these items will be included as a project in the Capital 
Improvement Program.   

DRAFT

158



97Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix C               Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

 6-1 
 

Article  6. Budget and Fund Management 
 
 Sec.  6.1 . 
 

Preparation of the District Budget is directed by the Assistant General 
Manager/CFO.  Working with the Fiscal Policy and Insurance Committee the General 
Managers develops annual financial goals and objectives for the budget in February.  A 
first preliminary Budget is presented to the Committee/Board of Directors and public in 
April and a second preliminary Budget in May.  The final Budget is presented in June for 
adoption, along with a resolution adopting a tax rate for Bonded Indebtedness. 

 
The budgeting process is intended to create a transparent process that enables the Board of 
Directors to estimate the Districts revenues and expenses including employee 
compensation arising from negotiations and changes in other costs of operations.   
 

 6.1.1 Annual Budget Resolution.   
 
  The Board shall approve an annual budget resolution that establishes the 
total appropriation for the fiscal year based on the following budget categories:   
 
1. Administration, operations, and maintenance 
2. Water purchases and contingencies 
3. Capital improvements and equipment 
4. Revenue Bonds, State Revolving Fund, interest, and principal 
5. Established annual Liquidity Fund level 

 
In addition, the budget resolution shall identify any anticipated net withdrawal of District 
reserves for the Fiscal Year.  Any unanticipated net withdrawal of District reserves shall 
be a separate board action.  Any withdrawal of funds from long-term investments, as shown 

   
 
Any spending above the established appropriations or additional withdrawal of reserves 
shall require Board approval.  As part of the annual budget process, the Board will review 

fund level.     
 

 Sec.  6.2 Treasurer's Fund. 
 

The Treasurer's Fund is established primarily to account for all District cash 
and investments and also to record detailed accounting for fringe benefits.  Revenues are 
obtained from a budgeted mark-up on District labor.  Revenue and Expense accounts in 
this fund are closed to the Utility fund annually. 

 
 Sec.  6.3 General Fund. 
 

The General Fund shall consist of accounts for property tax revenues and 
appropriations to other funds as determined by the Board.   

 
 Sec.  6.4 Utility Funds. 
 

The Utility Funds consists of three separate funds reflecting the operating 
departments of Water, Wastewater and Recycled Water.  The funds reflect the revenues 
from water sales, monthly service charges and other recurring fees and all expenses, 
including Operating and Maintenance (O&M) and General & Administrative (G&A).  

DRAFT

159



98 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix C                    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

 6-2 
 

 
 Sec.  6.5 Capital Funds. 
 

The Capital Funds consists of all Property, Plant and Equipment and the 
expenditures as well as revenues from Capital Improvement Charges that are 
dedicated/restricted to capital expenditures.  All use of revenues in the Capital Funds is 
restricted to capital investments, which includes capital assets as defined by the  
accounting policy and debt service.  Sources of funding and expenditures for capital assets 
are maintained in three separate funds: 

 
Water  all capital assets associated with the water treatment and 

distribution system; all administrative buildings and equipment; and all construction 
equipment and vehicles. 

 
Wastewater  all capital assets associated with treatment facilities and the 

wastewater collection system. 
 
Recycled Water  all capital assets associated with the recycled water 

facilities and the recycled water distribution system. 
 

 Sec.  6.6 Equipment Fund. 
 

The Equipment Fund consists of all expenses for field equipment 
operations, maintenance, repair and replacement.  Revenues are obtained from a budgeted 
mark-up on District labor.  Revenue and expenses are closed to the Utility fund annually. 

  
Sec.  6.7 Debt Service Funds. 

 
Debt Service funds shall be established to account for General Obliga-  

ation Bonds, Certificates of Participation, or other indebtedness which the District may 
incur for construction, completion, or acquisition of works, for the treatment, storage and 
distribution of water and water rights, including dams, reservoirs, storage tanks, treatment 
facilities, pipes, pumping equipment, and all necessary equipment and property therefor.  
The funds shall record annual transactions showing source of revenue, and both interest 
and principal payments. 

 
 Sec.  6.8 Appropriated Fund Balances. 
 

Appropriated Fund Balances shall be established to provide adequate 

minimize adverse annual and multi-year budgetary impacts from unanticipated 
expenditures; and to preserve the financial stability of the District against present and future 
uncertainties in an ever-changing environment.  The following Appropriated Fund 
Balances will be established and maintained. 

 
 6.8.1 Utility Funds Appropriated Fund Balances. 
 

1. Water. 
 
a) Working Capital.  To be established and maintained at a 

level of three months operating and maintenance expenses 
including water purchases. 
 

DRAFT

160



99Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix C               Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

6-3

b) Santa Margarita Debt Payment Fund.  To prevent 
and mid-year changes in rates because of net revenue
shortfalls due to weather conditions, state or federal
legislation or other future uncertainties.  The target level is
set equal to 2-years of debt service payments on the Santa
Margarita Conjunctive Use Project financing.

2. Wastewater.

a) Working Capital.  To be established and maintained at a
level of three months operating and maintenance expenses.

b) Rate Stabilization Fund.  To promote smooth and predictable
rates and charges a Rate Stabilization Fund is established
with a target of level equal to 10% of annual revenues.

3. Recycled Water.

a) Working Capital. To be established at three months 
operating and maintenance expenses.

6.8.2 Utility Capital Funds Appropriated Fund Balances.

1. Water Capital Fund.

The primary source of funds are the Water and Pumping Capital
Improvement charges, annexation fees, connection fees and meter
fees. Target fund balance is set to the equivalent of 3-year average
expenditures on recurring capital projects (i.e. pipeline
renewal/replacement).

a) Funds related to the 1958 Annexation and the DeLuz Service
Area bond proceeds are tracked separately in the fund.

2. Wastewater Capital Fund.

The primary source of funds are Wastewater Capital Improvement
Charges, connection fees and meter fees.  Target fund balance is set
to the equivalent of 3-year average expenditures on recurring capital
projects (i.e. pipeline renewal/replacement).

3. Recycled Water Capital Fund.

Target fund balance is set to the equivalent of 3-year average
expenditures on recurring capital projects (i.e. pipeline
renewal/replacement).

6.8.3 Debt Service Funds.

Each borrowing activity is maintained within a separate Debt 
Service fund.  Some indentures require the establishment of a 
reserve fund and the District must comply with any creditor imposed 
requirements.  Since sources of funding to repay each debt 
instrument varies, the possibility of that inflow being interrupted is 

DRAFT

161



100 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix C                    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

6-4

likely/possible with different issues in differing circumstances. 
Because of the possibility of this interruption, each Debt Service 
Fund should establish an Appropriated Fund Balance equal to the 

erest).

Sec. 6.9 Petty Cash.

The responsibility for and the accountability for the petty cash fund is 
assigned to the Assistant General Manager/CFO and/or the Accountant.  The fund at all 
times will total $400.00 in cash and disbursement receipts.  When an employee requires 
reimbursement, not-to-exceed $50.00, for an out-of-pocket District expense, a petty cash 
voucher is filled out and the receipts for purchases attached.  

Reimbursement will not be made from the petty cash fund without the immediate 
supervisor's approval on the petty cash voucher and receipts attached thereto.  

During the planned absence of either the Assistant General Manager/CFO or Accountant, 
the Supervising Accounting Assistant will be authorized to make petty cash 
reimbursements.  Prior to assumption of these duties, cash in the fund will be counted and 
verified by both the Assistant General Manager/CFO and Accountant.  

Periodic audits will be performed as required by District management or the Auditor. 
Checks drawn to replace the disbursement will be processed in the same manner as any 
other invoice paid by the District.

ARTICLE 15

(Renumbered as 

Article 6 by 

Resolution 5006)

Sec. 15.8 - Rev.74/97

Sec. 15.4 & 15.5 Rev. 

4/03

Sec. 15.8 added 4/03

Sec. 15.1 & 15.9 Rev. 

6/06

Sec. 15.9 Rev. 8/08

Sec. 15.6 Rev. 9/09

Sec. 15.8.1 Rev. 

12/09

Secs. 15.1, 15.5, 

15.8.1, 15.8.2, 15.8.4, 

15.9 Rev. 1/18

Secs. 15.1.1, 15.8.1 

Rev. 2/19

Sec. 15.1.1 Rev. 4/19

Sec. 15.1 Rev. 7/19DRAFT

162



101Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix C               Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

18-1 

Article 18. Investment Policy 
 
 Sec. 18.1 General. 
 

 practices of the District Treasurer are 
based on prudent money management principles and California Government Code, 
specifically Sections 53600 and 53630 et. seq.  
 
 18.1.1 Delegation of Authority. The Board of Directors delegates the 
investment authority of the District to the Treasurer under the supervision of the General 
Manager. The Treasurer shall deposit money under supervision and control 
in such institutions and upon such terms as the laws of the State of California and the Board 
of Directors may permit. 
 
The Treasurer may delegate day-to-day investment decision making and execution 
authority to an investment advisor. Eligible investment advisors must be registered with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) under the Investment Advisors Act of 
1940. The advisor will follow the Policy and such other written instructions as are provided 
by the District. 

 
 18.1.2 Investment Objectives. The practices of this District will always 
comply with the legal authority and limitations placed on it by the governing legislative 
bodies. The implementation of these laws, allowing for the dynamics of the money 
markets, will be the focus of this Investment Policy. When investing, reinvesting, 
purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling and managing public funds, the objectives of 
this District shall be: 
 

1. The primary objective shall be to safeguard the principal of the funds under the 
 

 
2. The secondary objective shall be to meet the liquidity needs of the District. 
 
3. The third objective shall be to achieve a return on the funds under control of the 

Treasurer within the parameters of prudent risk management. 
 

 18.1.3 Prudent Investor Standard. The Board of Directors, General 
Manager, and Treasurer adhere to the guidance pro

managing public funds, a trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under 
the circumstances then prevailing, including, but not imited to, the general economic 
conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person acting in a like 
capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like 
character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of 
the agency. Within the limitations of this section and considering individual investments 
as part of an overall  

DRAFT

163



102 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix C                    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

18-2 

 
Sec. 18.2  
 
  
rendered pursuant to Section 53646 (a) of the Government Code: 
 
 18.2.1 Security of Principal Policy. The policy issues directed to protecting 
the District are: 

 
a) Limiting exposure to each type of security. 
b) Limiting exposure to each issue and issuer of debt. 
c) Determining the minimum credit requirement for each type of security at the 

time of purchase. 
 

 18.2.2  Liquidity Policy. The policy issues directed to provide necessary 
liquidity are: 
   

a) Limiting the length of maturity for securities in the portfolio. 
b) Limiting exposure to illiquid securities. 

 
 18.2.3 Return Policy. The policy issues directed to achieving a return are: 
 

a) Attaining a market rate of return taking into account the investment risk 
constraints and liquidity needs. 

b) Return is of least importance compared to the safety and liquidity policies 
described above. 

c) Majority of the investments shall be limited to low risk securities in anticipation 
of earning a fair return relative to the risk being taken. 

d) The performance of the portfolio shall be compared to an industry benchmark 
established by the Fiscal Policy and Insurance Committee and shall be reported 
quarterly. The Fiscal Policy and Insurance Committee shall review the 
performance benchmark on an annual basis to ensure that it remains appropriate 

bjectives.  The Fiscal Policy and Insurance 
Committee will bring any recommended changes to the industry benchmark to 
the Board for approval.   

 
18.2.4 Maturity Policy. The maximum maturity allowed by the California 

Government Code is five (5) years with shorter limitations specified for specific types of 
securities. However, the legislative body may grant express authority to make investments 
either specifically or as a part of an investment program approved by the legislative body 
that exceeds this five-year maturity limit. Such approval must be issued no less than three 
(3) months prior to the purchase of any security exceeding the five-year maturity limit. 

 
18.2.5 Prohibited Securities. The California Government Code does not 

authorize a local agency to invest in any of the following derivative notes: 
 

DRAFT

164



103Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix C               Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

18-3 

a) Inverse Floater 
b) Range Notes 
c) Interest-only strips derived from a pool of mortgages 
d) Any security that could result in zero interest accrual, except as authorized by 

Government Code Section 53601.6. 
 

 Sec. 18.3 Internal Controls. 
 

The Treasurer is responsible for establishing and maintaining an 
internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected 
from loss, theft or misuse. The internal control structure shall be designed to provide 
reasonable assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance 
recognizes that: 1) the cost of a control should not exceed benefits likely to be derived; 
and, 2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by 
management. Accordingly, the Treasurer shall establish a process for annual independent 
review by an external auditor to assure compliance with policies and procedures. The 
internal controls shall address the following points:
 
Control of Collusion: Collusion is a situation where two or more employees are working 
in conjunction to defraud their employer. 
 
Separation of Transaction Authority from Accounting and Record Keeping: By separating 
the person who authorizes or performs the transaction from the person who records or 
otherwise accounts for the transaction, a separation of duties is achieved. 
 
Custodial Safekeeping: Securities purchased from any bank or dealer including appropriate 
collateral (as defined by Government Code) shall be placed with an independent third party 
for custodial safekeeping. 
 
Avoidance of Physical Delivery Securities: Book entry securities are much easier to 
transfer and account for since actual delivery of a document never takes place. Delivered 
securities must be properly safeguarded against loss or destruction. The potential for fraud 
and loss increases with physically delivered securities. 
 
Clear Delegation of Authority to Subordinate Staff Members: Subordinate staff members 
must have a clear understanding of their authority and responsibilities to avoid improper 
actions. Clear delegation of authority also preserves the internal control structure that is 
contingent on the various staff positions and their respective responsibilities. 
 
Written Confirmation of Telephone Transactions for Investments and/or Wire Transfers: 
Due to the potential for error and improprieties arising from telephone transactions, all 
telephone transactions should be supported by written communications and approved by 
the appropriate person. Written communications may be via fax if on letterhead and the 
safekeeping institution has a list of authorized signatures. 
 

DRAFT

165



104 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix C                    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

18-4 

Development of a Wire Transfer Agreement with the Lead Bank or Third Party Custodian: 
This agreement should outline the various controls, security provisions, and delineate 
responsibilities of each party making and receiving wire transfers. 

 
Sec. 18.4 Permissible Investments. 
 
Where this Policy specifies a percentage limitation for a particular security type, that 
percentage is applicable only on the date of purchase. Credit criteria listed in this Policy 
refers to the credit rating at the time the security is purchased. If an investment advisor is 

of purchase, the investment advisor will immediately notify the Treasurer.  The securities 
shall be reviewed and a plan of action shall be recommended by the Treasurer or investment 
advisor. The course of action to be followed will be decided on a case-by-case basis, 
considering such factors as the reason for the rate drop, prognosis for recovery or further 
drop, and market price of the security. The Fiscal Policy and Insurance Committee will be 
advised of the situation and intended course of action by e-mail or fax.  
 
The District will limit investments in any one non-government issuer, except investment 
pools and money market funds, to no more than 5% regardless of security type. 
 
Government Code 53601 addresses permissible investments. These investment categories 
are: 
 
 18.4.1 Government Obligations. Two categories of Government 
Obligations, U.S. Treasury and Agency obligations may be invested. Both are issued at the 
federal level. U.S. Treasury obligations are United States Treasury notes, bonds, bills, or 
certificates of indebtedness, or those for which the faith and credit of the United States are 
pledged for the payment of principal and interest. Agency obligations are federal agency 
or United States government-sponsored enterprise obligations, participations, or other 
instruments, including those issued by or fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by 
federal agencies or United States government-sponsored enterprises.. 
 
Maximum Maturity: The maximum maturity of an issue shall be the current 5 year issue 
or an issue which at the time of the investment has a term remaining to maturity not in 
excess of five (5) years. 
 
Maximum Exposure of Portfolio: The maximum exposure to the portfolio for this category 
is unlimited. 
 

1) Treasury: Unlimited. 
 
2) Agencies: Unlimited. No more than 75% of the portfolio value shall be invested 

in any single issuer.  
 
Minimum Credit Requirement: None. 

DRAFT

166



105Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix C               Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

18-5 

 18.4.2  This is a draft or bill of exchange, accepted 
by a bank or trust company and brokered to investors in a secondary market. The purpose 

ty to the import-
export markets. Acceptances are collateralized by the pledge of documents such as 
invoices, trust receipts, and other documents evidencing ownership and insurance of the 
goods financed.  
 
Maximum Maturity: The maximum maturity of an issue shall be 180 days. 
 
Maximum Exposure of Portfolio: The maximum exposure to the portfolio for this category 
shall be 25%. 
 
Minimum Credit Requirement: -
rating organization (NRSRO) 
  
 18.4.3 Commercial Paper. These are short-term, unsecured, promissory 
notes issued by firms in the open market. Commercial paper (CP) is generally backed by a 
bank credit facility, guarantee/bond of indemnity, or some other support agreement. The 
entity that issues the commercial paper must meet all of the following conditions in either 
paragraph a or paragraph b:  
 

a. The entity meets the following criteria: (i) is organized and operating in the United 
States as a general corporation, (ii) has total assets in excess of five hundred million 
dollars ($500,000,000), and (iii) has debt other than commercial paper, if any, that is 
rated in a rating category of , the equivalent or higher by a NRSRO. 
 

b. The entity meets the following criteria: (i) is organized within the United States as a 
special purpose corporation, trust, or limited liability company, (ii) has program-wide 
credit enhancements including, but not limited to, over collateralization, letters of 
credit, or surety bond, and (iii) has commercial paper that is -
the equivalent, by a NRSRO. 

 
Maximum Maturity: The maximum maturity of an issue shall be 270 days. 
 
Maximum Exposure of Portfolio: The maximum exposure to the portfolio for this category 
shall be 25%. The District may invest no more than 10% of its total investment assets in 
the commercial paper and the medium-term notes of any single issuer. 
 
Minimum Credit Requirements: - , theequivalent or higher by a NRSRO. 
 
 18.4.4 Medium-Term Notes. Corporate and depository institution debt 
securities issued by corporations organized and operating within the United States, or by 
depository institutions licensed by the U.S. (or any state) and operating within the U.S.  
 
Maximum Maturity: The maximum maturity of an issue shall be 5 years. 
 

DRAFT

167



106 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix C                    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

18-6 

Maximum Exposure of Portfolio: The maximum exposure to the portfolio for this category 
shall be 30%. The District may invest no more than 10% of its total investment assets in 
the commercial paper and the medium-term notes of any single issuer. 
 
Minimum Credit Requirements: Rated in a rating category of , the equivalent or higher 
by a NRSRO  
 
 18.4.5 Repurchase Agreements. A repurchase agreement (RP) consists of 
two simultaneous transactions. One is the purchase of securities by an investor (i.e., the 
District), the other is the commitment by the seller (i.e., a broker/dealer) to repurchase the 
securities at the same price, plus interest, at some mutually agreed future date. 
 
Maximum Maturity: The maximum maturity of repurchase agreements shall be up to one 
year.  
 
Maximum Exposure of Portfolio: The maximum exposure to the portfolio for this category 
shall be 10%. 
 
Minimum Credit Requirements: None 
 
 18.4.6  Negotiable Certificates of Deposit. Certificates of deposit must be 
issued by a nationally or state-chartered bank, a savings association or a federal association 
(as defined by Section 5102 of the Financial code), a state or federal credit union, or by a 
federally licensed or state-licensed branch of a foreign bank.  
 
Maximum Maturity: The maximum maturity of an issue shall be five (5) years. 
 
Maximum Exposure to Portfolio: The maximum exposure to the portfolio for this category 
shall be 30%. 
 
Minimum Credit Requirements: Rated in a rating category of , the equivalent or higher 
for CDs issued with a long- -  or higher for CDs issued with a short-
term rating or their equivalents by a NRSRO. 
 
 18.4.7 State Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). There is no limit by 
law on the amount of funds that can be placed in this account. Interest is paid directly into 
the account by the State Local Agency Investment Fund.  
 
 18.4.8  There is no limit by law on the 
amount of funds that can be placed in this account. Interest is paid directly into the account 
by the County Treasurer. 
 
 18.4.9 Passbook and Money Market Savings Accounts. Savings accounts 
and/or money market accounts shall be maintained for monies that are needed on a day-to-
day basis. 
 

DRAFT

168



107Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix C               Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

18-7 

 18.4.10 State Obligations / State of California and Other States. Registered 
state warrants or treasury notes or bonds of this state, including bonds payable solely out 
of the revenues from a revenue-producing property owned, controlled or operated by the 
state or by a department, board, agency or authority of the state. 
 
Registered treasury notes or bonds of any of the other 49 United States in addition to 
California, including bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a revenue-producing 
property owned, controlled, or operated by a state or by a department, board, agency, or 
authority of any of the other 49 United States, in addition to California. 
 
Maximum Maturity: The maximum maturity of an issue shall be the current 5 year issue 
or an issue which at the time of the investment has a term remaining to maturity not in 
excess of five (5) years. 
 
Maximum Exposure of Portfolio: The maximum exposure to the portfolio for 18.4.10 and 
18.4.11-California Local Agency Obligations, category shall be a combined 25% of the 
book value of the investment portfolio. No more than 5% of the book value of the portfolio 
at the time of purchase may be invested in bonds issued by any one agency. 
 
Minimum Credit Requirements: Rated in a rating category of , the equivalent or higher 
for obligations issued with a long- - -
term rating or their equivalents by a NRSRO . 

 
 18.4.11 California Local Agency Obligations. Bonds, notes warrants or 
other evidences of indebtedness of any local agency within California, including bonds 
payable solely out of the revenues from a revenue-producing property owned, controlled, 
or operated by the local agency, or by a department, board, agency, or authority of the local 
agency. 
 
Maximum Maturity: The maximum maturity of an issue shall be the current 5 year issue 
or an issue which at the time of the investment has a term remaining to maturity not in 
excess of five (5) years. 
 
Maximum Exposure of Portfolio: The maximum exposure to the portfolio for 18.4.10 and 
18.4.11-California Local Agency Obligations, category shall be a combined 25% of the 
book value of the investment portfolio. No more than 5% of the book value of the portfolio 
at the time of purchase may be invested in bonds issued by any one agency. 
 
Minimum Credit Requirements: Rated in a rating category of , the equivalent or higher 
for obligations issued with a long- - -
term rating or their equivalents by a NRSRO. 
 
 18.4.12 Joint Powers Authority Pool. The investment with a Joint Powers 
Authority Pool is mandated by that pool. To be eligible under this section, the joint powers 
authority issuing the shares shall have retained an investment adviser that meets all of the 
following criteria: (1) The adviser is registered or exempt from registration with the 

DRAFT

169



108 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix C                    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

18-8 

Securities and Exchange Commission; (2) The adviser has not less than five years of 
experience investing in the securities and obligations authorized in subdivisions (a) to (q), 
inclusive; and (3) The adviser has assets under management in excess of five hundred 
million dollars ($500,000,000). 
 
Maximum Exposure of Portfolio: The maximum exposure to the portfolio for this 
category is unlimited.  
 
Minimum Credit Requirement: None. 
 
 18.4.13 Money Market Mutual Funds.  
 
Maximum Exposure of Portfolio: The maximum exposure to the portfolio for this category 
is 20%. 
 
Minimum Credit Requirements: A mutual fund must receive the highest ranking by not 
less than two nationally recognzed rating agencies or the fund must retain an investment 
advisor who is registered with the SEC (or exempt from registration), has assets under 
management in excess of $500 million , and has at least five years experience investing in 
instruments authorized by Sections 53601 amd 53635. 
 
A money market mutual fund must receive the highest ranking by not less than two 
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations or retain an investment advisor 
registered with the SEC or exempt from registration and who has not less than five years 
expeerience investing in money market instruments with assets under management in 
excess of $500 million. 
 
 18.4.14 Mortgage Pass-Through Securities and Asset-Backed Securities. A 
mortgage pass-through security, collateralized mortgage obligation, mortgage-backed or 
other pay-through bond, equipment lease-backed certificate, consumer receivable 
passthrough certificate, or consumer receivable-backed bond. 
 
Maximum Maturity: The maximum maturity of an issue shall be the current 5 year issue 
or an issue which at the time of the investment has a term remaining to maturity not in 
excess of five (5) years. 
 
Maximum Exposure of Portfolio: The maximum exposure to the portfolio for this category 
is 20%. 
 
Minimum Credit Requirements: Rated in a rating category of , the equivalent or 
higher by a NRSRO.  
 
 18.4.15 Supranationals. United States dollar denominated senior unsecured 
unsubordinated obligations issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the International Bank 
for Reconstruction and Development, International Finance Corporation, or Inter-
American Development Bank. 

DRAFT

170



109Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix C               Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

18-9 

 
Maximum Maturity: The maximum maturity of an issue shall be the current 5 year issue 
or an issue which at the time of the investment has a term remaining to maturity not in 
excess of five (5) years. 
 
Maximum Exposure of Portfolio: The maximum exposure to the portfolio for this category 
is 30%. 
 
Minimum Credit Requirements: Rated in a rating category of , the equivalent or 
higher by a NRSRO.  
 
Approval: Investments in supranational securities may only be made with prior approval 
of the Fiscal Policy and Insurance Committee. 
 
Sec. 18.5 Maturity/Limit of Investments. 
 
  With the exception of U.S. Treasury and Federal Agency securities, the 
maturity of a give investment will not exceed five (5) years, without prior board approval 
per Section 18.2.4.  
 
Sec. 18.6 Reporting Requirements. 

 
The Treasurer shall prepare a quarterly investment report to the Board of Directors that 
provides an overview of the 
the period. The report shall also (1) state the compliance of the portfolio with the statement 
of investment policy, or the manner in which the portfolio is not in compliance, and (2) the 
report shall include a statement denoting the ability of the District to meet its expenditure 
requirements for the next six months, or provide an explanation as to why sufficient money 
shall, or may, not be available. The Treasurer shall also provide the Board a summary 
report of investments on a monthly basis. 
 
A subsidiary ledger of investments may be used in the report in accordance with accepted 
accounting practices. 
 
In the event that an investment originally purchased within policy guidelines is 
downgraded by any one of the credit rating agencies, the Treasurer shall report it at the 
next regular scheduled meeting of the Board. 

 DRAFT

171



110 Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix C                    Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

18-10 

ARTICLE 27 (Renumbered as Article 
18 by Resolution 5006) 
Revised in its entirety:  2/94 
Adopted in current form:  1/96, 
1/97, 1/98, 1/99 
Sec. 27.2.4  Rev. 1/00 
Adopted in current form:  1/01 
Sec. 27.4.7  Rev. 10/01 
Sec. 27.6  Rev. 1/03 
Sec. 27.2.4  Rev. 1/07 
Sec. 27.4.4  Rev. 3/07 
Secs. 27.2.3, 27.4.1(2), 27.4.2, 
27.4.3, 27.4.4, & 27.4.6  Rev. 9/07 
Sec. 27.2.1  Rev. 1/10 
Secs. 27.4.10-12  Rev. 1/12 
Secs. 27.2.4, 27.2.5, 27.4.5, 27.4.6, 
27.4.7, 27.4.10, 27.4.11, 27.4.13, 
27.4.14, 27.5  Rev. 2/13 
Secs. 27.4.6, 27.4.11  Rev. 1/14 
Secs. 27.1, 27.1.1, Attachment A  
Rev. 3/15 
Secs. 27.1, 27.1.1, 27.1.2, 27.1.3, 
27.2, 27.2.3, 27.2.4, 27.3, 27.4, 
27.4.1, 27.4.2, 27.4.3, 27.4.4, 
27.4.6, 27.4.10, 27.4.11, 27.4.12, 
27.4.13, 27.4.14, 27.4.15, 27.5  
Rev. 2/16 
Secs. 27.2.4, 27.4, 27.4.3, 27.4.4, 
27.4.6, 27.4.10, 27.4.11, 27.4.14, 
27.4.15  Rev. 3/17 
Sec. 27.2.3  Rev. 6/18 
Sec. 27.6  Rev. 7/18 
Sec. 27.4.14  Rev. 2/19 
Sec. 18.2.5  Rev. 6/21 
Sec. 18.4.3  Rev. 6/21 
Sec. 18.4.4  Rev. 6/21 

 

DRAFT

172



111Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix C               Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

This page intentionally left blank

DRAFT

173



112

Appendix D                     Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Current Normal CostDRAFT

174



113Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Appendix D             Fiscal Year 2022-23 Recommended Annual Budget

DRAFT

175



M 
 M E M O

 
 

 
TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Personnel Committee 
DATE: May 23, 2022 
SUBJECT: Employee Satisfaction Survey Results  
  
 
Purpose 
 
To review and discuss the results of the employee satisfaction survey.  
 
Summary 
 

The District’s annual employee satisfaction survey was sent out to all employees on April 
6, 2022. Twenty-nine employees completed this year’s survey, compared to twenty-eight 
employees in 2021 and 40 employees in 2020, which was the first year of the survey.   
 
A summary of the results were shared, via email, with all employees on May 12, 2022.  
 
Budgetary Impact 
 
None 
 
Recommended Action 
 
None 
 

176



Please feel free to elaborate on any of your answers above and/or share any other comments you have:

Recruit/maintain quality employees

Too much micromanagement

Bring up pay/benefits to be more competitive

Needs to be better organized 

Back to in-person quarterly meetings

Better workload 

Appreciation

Compensation

If you plan on looking for another job outside of FPUD, please provide your reason/s for doing so?

More support from management

Communicate upcoming projects/goals

More department meetings

There is a disconnect between management and their staff

More communication/keep employees better informed

Great relationship with co-workers and good culture

Appreciate pay and benefits and 

Good place to work, love the job and responsibilities

A few employees bring down morale

What recommendations, if any, do you have for how management could improve communication over the next year?

Comments Summary
As a follow up to your answer to question #3, please share what you love, like, or hate about working for FPUD.

Management should be more receptive to new ideas/equipment and listen more to their staff

Management should have more management training

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

How meaningful is your
work?

How challenging is your
job?

How would you rate
your overall morale as
an employee at FPUD?

How would you rate
communication from

management over the
last year?

How satisfied are you
with career growth

opportunities at FPUD?

How well do your job
responsibilities match

your strengths?

How well would you
say the employees in

your department work
as a team?

How satisfied are you
with your overall
compensation?

Are you satisfied with
your employee

benefits?

How satisfied are you
with your current
work-life balance?

Are you supervised too
much at work,

supervised too little, or
supervised the right

amount?

How likely are you to
look for another job

outside of FPUD within
the next 6-12 months?

Worsened 5

Remained the same 13

Improved 9

Too little 1

Too much 6

The right amount 22

Other 2

Low 2

Neither high nor low 9

High 18

Not at all / No 1 1 3 1 2 24

Not So 1 1 3 1

Slightly to moderately / Somewhat 7 15 9 3 6 9 7 3

Very to extremely 22 14 11 14 14 11 16 2

Extremely / Yes 7 12 7 3 28 3

7

12

7

3

28

3

22

14

11

14

14

11

16

2

7

15
9

3

6

9

7

3

1 1

3

1

1 1
3

1 2

24

18

9

2

2

22

6

1

9

13

5

177



2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022

Other 10.7% 6.9%

Not so/at all/ Worsened 3.6% 6.9% 7.1% 17.2% 3.7% 6.9% 3.6% 6.9% 11.1% 20.7% 3.4% 10.3% 3.4% 81.5% 82.8%

Slightly to moderately/ Stayed the Same 7.4% 24.1% 50.0% 51.7% 50.0% 31.0% 42.9% 44.8% 40.7% 31.0% 10.3% 25.0% 20.7% 29.6% 31.0% 25.0% 24.1% 10.7% 20.7% 14.8% 10.3%

Very to extremely/Improved 92.6% 75.9% 46.4% 48.3% 50.0% 62.1% 39.3% 31.0% 55.6% 62.1% 96.4% 89.7% 75.0% 72.4% 59.3% 48.3% 100.0% 96.6% 75.0% 65.5% 89.3% 75.9% 3.7% 6.9%

92.6%

75.9%

46.4% 48.3% 50.0%

62.1%

39.3%

31.0%

55.6%

62.1%

96.4%

89.7%

75.0%
72.4%

59.3%

48.3%

100.0%
96.6%

75.0%

65.5%

89.3%

75.9%

3.7%
6.9%

7.4%

24.1%

50.0%
51.7% 50.0%

31.0%

42.9%

44.8%

40.7%
31.0%

10.3%

25.0%

20.7%

29.6%

31.0%

25.0%

24.1%

10.7%

20.7%

14.8% 10.3%

3.6%
6.9%

7.1% 17.2%

3.7%
6.9%

3.6%
6.9%

11.1%

20.7%

3.4%

10.3%

3.4%

81.5% 82.8%

10.7%
6.9%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

100.0%

How meaningful is 
your work?

How challenging is 
your job?

How would you rate 
your overall morale 
as an employee at 

FPUD?

How satisfied are you 
with career growth 

opportunities at 
FPUD?

How well do your 
job responsibiliies 

match your 
strengths?

How well would you 
say the employees in 

your department 
work as a team?

How satisfied are 
you with your 

overall 
compensation?

Are you satisfied 
with your employee 

benefits?

How satisfied are 
you with your 

current work-life 
balance?

Are you supervised 
too much at work, 

supervised too little, 
or supervised the 

right amount?

How likely are you 
to look for another 
job outside of FPUD 
within the next 6-12 

months?*
*Green = not likely

Yellow = somewhat likely
Red = likely

How would you rate 
communication 

from management 
over the last year?

178



22

7

How meaningful is your work?

Very to extremely Slightly to moderately Not at all meaningful

14
15

How challenging is your job?

Very to extremely Slight to moderately Not at all challenging

18

9

2

How would you rate your overall morale as an 
employee at FPUD?

High - I love working at FPUD Neither high nor low Low - I hate working at FPUD

179



7

11

9

1 1

How satisfied are you with career growth 
opportunities at FPUD?

Extremely satisfied Very satisfied Somewhat satisfied

Not so satisfied Not at all satisfied

12

14

3

How well do your job responsibilities match your 
strengths?

Extremely well Very well Somewhat well Not so well Not at all well

9

13

5

2

How would you rate communication from 
management over the last year?

Communication has improved Communication has remained the same

Communication has worsened Other

180



7

14

6

1 1

How well would you say the employees in your 
department work as a team?

Extremely well Very well Somewhat well Not so well Not at all well

3

11

9

3

3

How satisfied are you with your overall 
compensation?

Extremely satisfied Very satisfied Somewhat satisfied

Not so satisfied Not at all satisfied

28

1

Are you satisfied with your employee benefits?

Yes No

181



3

16

7

1
2

How satisfied are you with your current work-life 
balance?

Extremely satisfied Very satisfied Somewhat satisfied

Not so satisfied Not at all satisfied

6

22

1

Are you supervised too much at work, supervised too 
little, or supervised about the right amount?

Too much About the right amount Too little

2

3

24

How likely are you to look for another job outside of 
FPUD within the next 6-12 months?

Very likely Likely Not likely

182



N 
M E M O 

 

 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Jack Bebee, General Manager 
DATE: May 23, 2022 
SUBJECT: Consider Reappointing the General Manager to serve as the District’s 

Representative to the San Diego County Water Authority Board of 
Directors, and Adopting Resolution No. 5028 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose 
 
To reappoint the District’s representative on the San Diego County Water Authority’s 
(SDCWA) Board of Directors. 
 
Summary 
 
Pursuant to the attached letter dated May 3, 2022, from the SDCWA Clerk of the 
Board, the term of office for Jack Bebee as the District’s representative on the SDCWA 
Board of Directors will expire on July 14, 2022.   
 
Under the terms of the County Water Authority Act, members of the Board of Directors 
hold office for a term of six years, and until their successors are appointed and 
qualified.  The term of the District representative’s appointment to the SDCWA Board of 
Directors would end on July 14, 2028.    
 
Recommended Action 
 
That the Board adopts Resolution No. 5028 reappointing General Manager Jack Bebee 
to serve as the District’s representative on the SDCWA Board of Directors. 
 

183



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
May 3, 2022 
 
 
 
Lauren Eckert, Board Secretary  
Fallbrook Public Utility District 
990 E. Mission Road 
Fallbrook, CA 92028 
 
Re:  SDCWA Term of Office for Jack Bebee 
 
Dear Lauren, 
 
The San Diego County Water Authority records indicate the term of office for Jack Bebee, as 
your representative on the Water Authority's Board, will expire on July 14, 2022.  Under the 
terms of the County Water Authority Act, members of the Board of Directors hold office for a 
term of six years or until their successors are appointed and qualified.  The new term of your 
representative’s appointment to the Water Authority Board would end on July 14, 2028.   
 
Please make the necessary arrangements for this appointment and notify us of your appointment. 
 
Thank you for your assistance with this matter and contact me at (858) 522-6614 if you have any 
questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Melinda Nelson 
Clerk of the Board 
 
C: Jack Bebee  
 Sandy Kerl, General Manager, SDCWA 
 Mark Hattam, General Counsel, SDCWA 
 SDCWA Board Officers 
 

  

 

184



RESOLUTION NO. 5028 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE FALLBROOK 
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT APPOINTING THE DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE 
TO SERVE ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN DIEGO COUNTY 

WATER AUTHORITY 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 WHEREAS, the Fallbrook Public Utility District (District) is a member agency of the San 
Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) and is entitled to one representative to serve as a 
member of the Board of Directors on the SDCWA; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 4921 on December 11, 2017, 
appointing Jack Bebee as the District’s representative on the Board of Directors of the SDCWA 
beginning on January 12, 2018, and to complete the term of office of former General Manager 
Brian J. Brady, that began on July 15, 2016, and ending on July 14, 2022; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the term of office of Jack Bebee as the District’s representative to the 
SDCWA Board of Directors will end of July 14, 2022, and the SDCWA has requested the 
District make a new representative appointment to the SDCWA Board of Directors with a term 
ending July 14, 2028.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT by the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook 
Public Utility District as follows: 
 

SECTION 1:  The President of the Board, with the approval and concurrence of the 
Board of Directors, does hereby appoint Jack Bebee as a member of the Board of Directors of 
the San Diego County Water Authority as a representative of this District on said Board 
beginning July 15, 2022, and ending July 14, 2028. 

 
SECTION 2:  The Board Secretary is hereby authorized and directed to provide a 

certified copy of this resolution to the San Diego County Water Authority. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District 

at a regular meeting of the Board held on the 23rd day of May, 2022, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:   
ABSTAIN:  
ABSENT:  
 

       _____________________________ 
       President, Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Directors 

185



O 
M E M O 

 
 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Engineering & Operations Committee 
DATE: May 23, 2022 
SUBJECT: SMRCUP Change Order 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Description 
 
Final contractor change order and construction manager services amendment for the 
construction of the Santa Margarita River Conjunctive Use Project (SMRCUP) Facilities. 
 
Purpose 
 
The contract for the construction of the SMRCUP facilities was awarded to Filanc 
Alberici Joint Venture in July 2019 with a contract completion date of October 2021. 
After construction began, a Granular Activated Carbon (GAC) treatment system 
additional treatment on the RO bypass flows was added to the scope of work. Change 
orders for the installation of the GAC system yard piping was approved in December of 
2020 and for the installation of the GAC feed pumps, vessels, and electrical was 
approved in February of 2021. The February 2021 change order also included 
additional costs for the installation of the 24-inch pipeline. The original scope of work 
was substantially completed in November 2021, and the treatment plant began 
delivering treated water in December, while work on the GAC treatment system 
continued. The GAC related work was substantially completed in March 2022. Because 
the GAC installation went beyond the original contract schedule, additional overhead 
funds as well as all additional construction costs to deliver the final treatment plant are 
incorporated into a final change order. A summary of contractor construction costs is 
shown in the following table:  
 

Item Value Approval 
Date 

Original Contract $54,398,232 July 2019 
GAC Yard Pipe       $559,145 Dec 2020 
GAC Treatment System Install    $3,064,873 Feb 2021 
Pipeline Alignment Changes CO      $325,000 Feb 2021 
Final CO      $758,582 Pending 
Total Construction Contract  $59,105,832  

 
A construction management (CM) professional services agreement was awarded to 
Terrapin Group, led by Franz Schauer, in August of 2018 to provide construction 
oversight. The approved value of the agreement was $1,853,740, which covered CM 
time through November. An amendment to the service agreement valued at $95,015 is 
needed to cover CM time since November.  
 

186



Budgetary Impact 
 
Costs for the construction of the SMRCUP facilities are funded by the Department of 
Water Resources State Revolving Fund loan approved in June of 2019 and amended 
to include the GAC facility costs in November of 2021. The loan agreement included 
$3,440,000 contingency for potential change order costs. The final change order costs 
total $1,083,582, so the full contingency will not be necessary.  
 
Additionally, based on Board direction in April 2021 and January 2022, $1,534,663 of  
funds received from SDCWA WSR Settlement have been applied to SMRCUP project 
costs. Total project costs and final SRF Loan balance, per the SRF loan agreement is 
shown in the table below:  
 

Type of Work

Approved  

Budget 

Actual 

Cost

SRF Loan 

Balance*

A. Construction

     Filanc-Alberici as Joint Venture 54,398,232$        54,398,232$ 54,398,232$ 

     GAC Equipment 1,260,493$          1,290,487$    -$                

     GAC Yard Pipe 559,145$              559,145$       559,145$       

     GAC Installation 3,200,000$          3,064,873$    3,064,873$    

Subtotal - A 59,417,870$        59,312,737$ 58,022,250$ 

B. Pre-urchased Material/Equipment -$                       

C. Land Purchase -$                       

D. Change Order Contingency 3,440,000$          1,083,582$    943,565$       

E. Allowances

     Construction Management 4,161,308$          3,877,021$    3,877,021$    

     Administration 70,000$                141,574$       37,415$          

     Other Cost: SCADA Integration 400,000$              376,618$       376,618$       

     Other Cost: GAC Design 811,333$              811,333$       811,333$       

Subtotal - E 5,442,641$          5,206,547$    5,102,388$    

TOTAL (Subtotal A+B+C+D+E) 68,300,511$        65,602,866$ 64,068,203$ 

SMRCUP SRF Loan Project Cost Table

*$1,534,663.30 of funds from MWD/SDCWA WSR charge settlement used towards 

project expenses to reduce loan value.  
 
Recommended Action 
 
That the Board approve of the change order for Filanc-Alberici to complete all additional 
work at a cost of $758,582, and to approve the professional services agreement 
amendment for Terrapin Group to complete all Construction Management services.  

187



P 
M E M O 

 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Engineering & Operations Committee 
DATE: May 23, 2022 
SUBJECT: Update of Emergency Declaration for Pipeline Replacements  
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Description 
 
California Public Contract Code Section 22050 authorizes special contracting 
procedures in case of an emergency; the General Manager may take immediate action 
required by the emergency to procure the necessary equipment, services, and supplies 
for those purposes, without giving notice for bids. However, the GM must report to the 
Board of Directors with an update at each regularly scheduled meeting to determine 
that there is a need to continue the action. When the Board reviews the emergency 
action, it shall terminate the action at the earliest possible date that conditions warrant 
so that the remainder of the emergency action may be completed by giving notice for 
bids to let contracts.  
 
Purpose 
 
Due to numerous leaks in damaged pipeline disrupting essential service to customers 
on sections of Ivy St, Minnesota Ave, Alvarado St, Via Arroyo and Alta Vista, an 
agreement was made with SRK Engineering, the pipeline contractor already under 
contract for the Gum Tree Pipeline Replacement, to additionally replace these sections 
of pipeline. Catastrophic pipe failure at these locations has required temporary 
measures to maintain service, including abandonment of looped sections of pipe and 
high lined services. These temporary remedies need to be permanently replaced to 
maintain reliable water service. The typical design, bid, build process would take 10 to 
15 months. By working with SRK Engineering, who is already mobilized for pipeline 
replacements in the District, this work can be completed in 2 to 4 months, minimizing 
the time the District is dependent on less reliable temporary remedies. The District has 
agreed to provide materials for the emergency replacements while the contractor 
charges for labor under the District’s standard time and materials agreement. The total 
length of pipe to be replaced will be as much as 2,000 linear feet, with pipe sizes 
ranging from 6-inch to 12-inch diameter.  
 
As of May 6, the Ivy St replacement is complete and the Alvarado St replacement is 
approximately 50% complete.  
 
Budgetary Impact 
 
The estimated installation cost of these repairs will be $440,000. The costs will be 
covered by the capital budget pipeline replacement funds. Because of procurement 
delays on planned pipeline replacement projects, unused capital funds are available to 

188



prioritize these emergency replacements within the approved budget. Year-end 
projections below include estimated emergency replacement costs.  
 
 

 FY 2021/22 Budget Projected Year End 
Total PAYGO $7,388,000 $5,615,000 
Pipeline Replacement $3,488,000 $2,900,000 

 
Recommended Action 
 

That the Board determine there is a need to continue the emergency action to replace 
failed pipelines and restore essential service to customers.  

189



Q 
M E M O 

 
 

TO:  Board of Directors  
FROM: Jack Bebee, General Manager 
DATE: May 23, 2022 
SUBJECT: Consider Declaring a “Water Shortage Response Level 2 – Water 

Shortage Watch” 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Description 
 
After another year of below average winter precipitation, continued drought conditions 
throughout the western United States are continuing to stress regional water supplies, 
including the State Water Project and the Colorado River, two integral sources of water 
for the Southern California region.  While regional investments in storage and supply 
diversification have secured water supplies in the short term, continued drought 
conditions may lead to mandatory restrictions if voluntary actions do not result in lower 
water demands.   
 
On March 28th, 2022 the Governor of California signed Executive Order N-7-22 
declaring a regional state of emergency caused by current drought conditions that calls 
on Californians to voluntarily reduce water use by 20 percent to protect the State’s 
available water resources.  The order urges “all Californians to strive to limit 
summertime water use and to use water more efficiently indoors and out”.  The order 
also directs Department of Water Resources (DWR) staff to provide guidance and a 
platform for water purveyors to submit a preliminary “Annual Supply and Demand 
Assessment” by June 1st 2022.  The final “Annual Supply and Demand Assessment” 
will be due to DWR July 1st, 2022, and every July 1st thereafter.  In addition, the State 
Board is finalizing emergency regulations defining “non-functional turf”, and prioritizing 
the planning and development of water supply projects that will increase the State’s 
drought resiliency.   
 
The District’s Water Shortage Response Program (Administrative Code, Article 17) 
identifies practical conservation measures that are in place at all times (Normal 
Conditions), and contains six levels to aid the District’s response to water shortage 
conditions.  Prohibitions of end use are identified as well as other stipulations of 
shortage responses (sections 17.8.0-17.2 are attached to this memo).     
 
A “Water Shortage Response Level 1 – Water Shortage Notice” (in place at this time) 
increases public education and outreach regarding conservation programs, practical 
conservation measures and provides the Board discretion to consider and implement 
drought rates.  Together these measures are designed to promote a consumer demand 
reduction of up to ten percent (10%).  A year to date demand reduction of 9% has been 
achieved by FPUD ratepayers from July 2021 to March 2022 (relative to July 2020 to 
March 2021). 
 

190



A “Water Shortage Response Level 2 – Water Shortage Watch” further increases 
public education and outreach regarding conservation programs.  In addition, the 
District will suspend all annexations to the District service area, except under some 
circumstances.  Together these measures are designed to promote a consumer 
demand reduction of up to twenty percent (20%). 
 
District conservation programs include rebates for water saving irrigation devices and 
appliances through www.socalwatersmart.com, education resources available at 
saveourwater.com, and the District’s automated metering system, which enables 
ratepayers to track and review their water use through a web based customer portal.  
Common sense conservation measures include eliminating irrigation runoff onto 
hardscape or roadways and the timely repair of water leaks.  When runoff or other 
violations of District code are observed or reported, District staff communicates directly 
with FPUD account holders to ensure that issues are addressed in a timely manner.  If 
implemented, drought rates escalate normal rates based on factors established in the 
2017 Rate Study.     
 
Recommended Action 
 
That the Board declare of a “Water Shortage Response Level 2 – Water Shortage 
Watch”. Upon declaration, public announcement would be made on all FPUD water 
bills, physical posting in the District lobby, on the District website and social media 
outlets, and by publication in the Village News.  Given the voluntary nature of the state’s 
order to reduce water use by 20 percent, and the District’s expanding educational 
approach to promoting water conservation, it is not recommended that drought rates 
would be implemented.    
 
If additional directives from the State Board regarding non-functional turf or other 
prohibitions of end use come to pass, District staff shall prepare an update for the 
Board at the subsequent Board meeting with details on compliance. Additional 
necessary Board action can be taken at that time. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

191

http://www.socalwatersmart.com/


Sec. 17.8.0 NORMAL CONDITIONS. 
   

During a Normal Condition, customers are required to use 
water wisely and to practice water conservation measures so that water is not 
wasted. All water withdrawn from District facilities shall be put to reasonable 
beneficial use.  District water users shall comply with the following water use 
prohibitions and conservation measures at all times: 
 
1.  Do not wash down paved surfaces, including but not limited to sidewalks, 

driveways, parking lots, tennis courts, or patios, except when it is 
necessary to alleviate safety or sanitation hazards.  

 
2. Eliminate water waste resulting from inefficient landscape irrigation, such 

as runoff, low head drainage, or overspray, etc. Similarly, stop water flows 
onto non-targeted areas, such as adjacent property, non-irrigated areas, 
hardscapes, roadways, or structures.  

 
3.  Irrigate residential and commercial landscape before 10 a.m. and after 6 

p.m. only, unless using drip irrigation.  
 

4.  Use a hand-held hose equipped with a positive shut-off nozzle or bucket 
to water landscaped areas, including trees and shrubs located on 
residential and commercial properties that are not irrigated by a landscape 
irrigation system.  

 
5.  Irrigate nursery and commercial grower’s products before 10 a.m. and 

after 6 p.m. only. Watering is permitted at any time with a hand-held hose 
equipped with a positive shut-off nozzle, a bucket, or when a drip/micro-
irrigation system/ equipment is used. Irrigation of nursery propagation 
beds is permitted at any time. Watering of livestock is permitted at any 
time.  

 
6.  Use re-circulated water to operate ornamental fountains.  
 
7.  Wash vehicles using a bucket and a hand-held hose with positive shut-off 

nozzle, mobile high pressure/low volume wash system, or at a commercial 
site that re-circulates (reclaims) water on-site. Avoid washing during hot 
conditions when additional water is required due to evaporation.  

 
8. The irrigation with potable water of ornamental turf on public street 

medians is prohibited. 
 
9. The application of potable water to outdoor landscapes during or within 48 

hours of measurable rainfall is prohibited 
 
10. The irrigation with potable water of landscapes outside of newly 

constructed homes and buildings in a manner inconsistent with 

192



regulations or other requirements established by the County of San 
Diego’s Landscape Ordinance. 

 
11.  Serve and refill water in restaurants and other food service 

establishments only upon request.  
 
12.  Offer guests in hotels, motels, and other commercial lodging 

establishments the option of not laundering towels and linens daily.  
 
13.  Repair all water leaks within five (5) days of notification by the Fallbrook 

Public Utility District unless other arrangements are made with the 
General Manager.  

 
14.  Use recycled or non-potable water for construction purposes when 

available.  
 
During a Water Shortage Response Levels 1-6 condition, the water conservation 
measures and water use restrictions established by this Article 17 are mandatory 
and violations are subject to criminal, civil, and administrative penalties and 
remedies as specified in this Article.”  

 
Sec. 17.8.1  WATER SHORTAGE RESPONSE LEVEL 1 – WATER 

SHORTAGE NOTICE CONDITION. 
 

During a Level 1 Water Shortage Notice condition, the 
District will increase its public education and outreach efforts to emphasize 
increased public awareness of the need to implement water conservation 
practices to ensure that no water is wasted, and increase enforcement of 
prohibitions of end use to promote a consumer demand reduction of up to ten 
percent (10%). 
 
All persons using District water shall comply with Normal Conditions water 
conservation practices during a Level 1 Water Shortage Watch, as identified in 
Sec. 17.8.0. 
 
 

Sec. 17.8.2  WATER SHORTAGE RESPONSE LEVEL 2 – WATER 
SHORTAGE WATCH CONDITION. 

 
During a Level 2 Water Shortage Watch condition, the 

District will increase its public education and outreach efforts to emphasize 
increased public awareness of the need to implement water conservation 
practices to ensure that no water is wasted, and promote a consumer demand 
reduction of up to twenty percent (20%). 
 
All persons using District water shall comply with Normal Conditions and Level 1 
Water Shortage Notice water conservation practices during a Level 2 Water 
Shortage Watch, as identified in Sec. 17.8.0 and 17.8.1.  Additionally, upon 
declaration of a Level 2 Water Shortage Watch condition, the District will 
suspend consideration of annexations to its service area except under the 
following circumstances: 
 

193



1. The applicant provides substantial evidence of an enforceable 
commitment that water demands for the project will be offset prior to the 
provision of a new water meter(s) to the satisfaction of Fallbrook Public 
Utility District. 

 
 

194



R 
 M E M O  

 

 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Personnel Committee  
DATE: May 23, 2022 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Memoranda of Understanding (MOUs) with 

FPUDEA and FMEA (effective July 1, 2022-June 30, 2027) by adoption of 
Resolution No. 5029    

   
Purpose 
 
The Personnel Committee met with staff to review the proposed 2022-2027 MOUs, both 
of which include the terms as mutually agreed upon during the meet and confer process 
and other changes to existing language to help clarifying and/or ensure consistency with 
current practices.     
 
Summary 
 
Over the last several months the Board has engaged in negotiations with its two labor 
groups, Fallbrook Public Utility District Employees’ Association (FPUDEA) and the 
Fallbrook Public Utility District Management Employees’ Association (FMEA), pursuant 
to the provisions of the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act, Government Code section 3500 et 
seq.  Both FPUDEA and FMEA ratified the respective draft MOUs in April 2022. The 
draft MOUs are presented to the Board for approval. 
 
The following is a summary of the material modifications to the two MOUs: 
 

MOU with FPUDEA: 
 

 MOU Term – Five years commencing on July 1, 2022 and ending on June 30, 
2027 
 

 Position Adjustments - Based on the total compensation survey data, all non-
management employees employed in the pay period that includes July 1, 2022 
shall be placed at the salary step of the salary range/grade and market median 
range of the new salary table that is closest to their salary in effect at the time. 
The Executive Assistant/Board Secretary, Lead Plant Operator, 
Purchasing/Warehouse/Fleet Supervisor, Maintenance Technician II and Utility 
Technician positions that are more than 15% below their respective market 
median shall also receive a one-step or 2.5% increase. Non-management 
employees who receive an additional 2.5% “Optional Certification Pay,” which 
will be eliminated, shall have the additional 2.5% included in their salary that will 
be used to determine their appropriate step placement within the new pay range 
of the updated salary table. 

 

195



 Cost-of-Living Adjustments (COLA) - effective on the beginning of the pay 
period which includes July 1 and as follows: 
 

o July 1, 2022 = 5.0%  
o Starting July 1, 2023, through the end of the contract term, annual COLAs 

shall be tied to the published Bureau of Labor Statistics, San Diego 
Region Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the 12-month period ending with 
March.  The COLA will be no less than 1% and no more than 5%. This 
means that no COLA over the course of this contract shall be below 1% or 
above 5%, regardless of CPI data. For example, if the 2023 CPI data 
shows a .5% annual inflation rate, the COLA for July 2023 shall be 1%. 
However, if the 2023 CPI data shows a 6.3% annual inflation, the COLA 
for July 2023 shall be capped at 5%. 
 

 Health Reimbursement Account (HRA) – New employees hired after July 1, 
2022 will not be eligible to participate in the HRA. 

 
 Deferred Compensation Matching – Effective July 1, 2022, the District’s 

matching contribution to a 401(a) plan for non-management employees who 
contribute at least an equal percentage to their individual 457(b) deferred 
compensation plan shall increase by .5% to 1% of the employee’s base salary. 
Effective July 1, 2023, the District’s matching contribution to a 401(a) plan for 
non-management employees who contribute at least an equal percentage to 
their individual 457(b) deferred compensation plan shall increase by .5% to 1.5% 
of the employee’s base salary. Effective July 1, 2024, the District’s matching 
contribution to a 401(a) plan for non-management employees who contribute at 
least an equal percentage to their individual 457(b) deferred compensation plan 
shall increase by .5% to 2% of the employee’s base salary. Effective July 1, 
2025, the District’s matching contribution to a 401(a) plan for non-management 
employees who contribute at least an equal percentage to their individual 457(b) 
deferred compensation plan shall increase by .5% to 2.5% of the employee’s 
base salary.  

 Performance Evaluation Form & Process – The “longevity bonus” has been 
removed and the District’s performance evaluation form has been updated to 
include the following four rating dimensions: “Does Not Meet Expectations,” 
“Meets Expectations,” “Above Expectations,” and “Exceeds Expectations.” Merit 
increases tied to a non-management employee’s annual performance evaluation 
overall rating shall be as follows: 

 
o Meets  Expectations = 2.5%, one-step, increase 
o Above  Expectations  – 2.5%, one-step, increase, plus a one-time stipend 

annually of $1,500  
o Exceeds  Expectations – 5% two-step increase 

 

196



 Performance Bonus - If a non-management employee is at their maximum salary 
step (J), they shall be eligible for a one-time payment (annually) for an overall 
performance evaluation rating of above or exceeds expectations, as follows: 

 
o $2,500 bonus for above expectations 
o $3,500 bonus for exceeds expectations 

 Bilingual Pay – A bilingual (English/Spanish) employee shall receive $75.00 per 
pay period if they utilize both languages to communicate with the public. 
 

 Certification Pay – Replaced 2.5% increase in salary with a one-time payment 
upon receipt of certification. 
 

 Continuing Education Bonus - When an employee receives an optional 
certification, based on the list, or receives a college degree for those positions 
that do not require one, a one-time stipend bonus of $1,000 shall be paid to the 
employee, with GM approval.  
 

The FPUDEA MOU for July 1, 2022-June 30, 2027 is attached as Exhibit “A” to 
Resolution No. 5029.   

 
MOU with FMEA: 

 
The MOU with FMEA will include the same material modifications, except as follows: 
 
 Deferred Compensation - Effective July 1, 2022, the District’s matching 

contribution to a 401(a) plan for management employees who contribute at least 
an equal percentage to their individual 457(b) deferred compensation plan shall 
increase by .5% to 2.9% of the employee’s base salary. Effective July 1, 2023, 
the District’s matching contribution to a 401(a) plan for management employees 
who contribute at least an equal percentage to their individual 457(b) deferred 
compensation plan shall increase by .5% to 3.4% of the employee’s base salary 
for the remainder of the contract. 
  

 Performance Bonus - If a management employee is at their maximum salary 
step (J), they shall be eligible for a one-time payment (annually) for an overall 
performance evaluation rating of above or exceeds expectations, as follows: 

 
o $3,500 bonus for above expectations 
o $4,500 bonus for exceeds expectations 

The FMEA MOU for July 1, 2022-June 30, 2027 is attached as Exhibit “B” to 
Resolution No. 5029. 
 

197



Budgetary Impact 
 

The table below shows the budget for labor and benefits under the proposed MOUs 
included in the draft 2022-2023 operating budget.  The overall increases in labor and 
benefits is 5.5% in fiscal year 2022-2023.  The impact on subsequent years will depend 
on the cost of living adjustment as determined by the annual Consumer Price Index 
(CPI). 
 

 
 

Recommended Action 
 
That the Board adopt Resolution No. 5029 approving the Memoranda of Understanding 
(MOUs) with FPUDEA and FMEA for July 1, 2022-June 30, 2027. 
 

198



 

RESOLUTION NO. 5029 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE FALLBROOK PUBLIC 

UTILITY DISTRICT APPROVING MEMORANDA OF UNDERSTANDING (MOUs) 

WITH FPUDEA AND FMEA 

FOR JULY 1, 2022–JUNE 30, 2027 

 

*  *  *  *  * 

 

WHEREAS, over the last several months the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook 
Public Utility District (District) has engaged in negotiations with its two labor groups, 
Fallbrook Public Utility District Employees’ Association (FPUDEA) and the Fallbrook 
Public Utility District Management Employees’ Association (FMEA), pursuant to the 
provisions of the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act, Government Code section 3500 et seq.; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District and both FPUDEA and FMEA successfully completed 

negotiations of new Memoranda of Understanding (MOUs), which include modifications 
to wages and benefits for a period of 5 years, beginning July 1, 2022;  and 

 
WHEREAS,  both FPUDEA and FMEA ratified the respective draft final MOUs in 

April 2022;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the draft MOUs are presented to the District Board of Directors for 

approval and/or adoption. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT THAT:  
 

1. All the recitals set forth above are true. 
 

2. The Memorandum of Understanding with the Fallbrook Public Utility 
District Employees’ Association (FPUDEA) for July 1, 2022–June 30, 
2027, attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “A,” which exhibit is made part 
of this Resolution, is hereby approved. 

 
3. The Memorandum of Understanding with the Fallbrook Public Utility 

District Management Employees’ Association (FMEA) for July 1, 2022–
June 30, 2027, attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “B,” which exhibit is 
made part of this Resolution, is hereby approved. 

 
  

199



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility 
District at a regular meeting of the Board held on the 23rd  day of May, 2022, by the 
following vote: 
 
 AYES:   
 NOES:  

ABSENT:  
 ABSTAIN:  
 
       
 _____________________________ 
       President, Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
 
 

200



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

201



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 
 
 
 
 

between the 
 
 
 
 
 

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
 

and the 
 
 
 
 
 

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
EMPLOYEES’ ASSOCIATION 

 
 
 
 
 

July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2027 
 
 

  

202



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 2 of 36 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
ARTICLE 1. GENERAL ....................................................................................................................... 4 

SECTION 1 – PURPOSE ................................................................................................................ 4 

SECTION 2 – SCOPE ..................................................................................................................... 4 

SECTION 3 – GENERAL PROVISIONS............................................................................................ 4 

ARTICLE 2. DURATION OF AGREEMENT .......................................................................................... 5 
ARTICLE 3. WAGES .......................................................................................................................... 5 

SECTION 1 – WAGE INCREASES ................................................................................................... 5 

SECTION 2 – ADJUSTMENTS........................................................................................................ 6 

SECTION 3 – SALARY SCHEDULE ................................................................................................. 6 

ARTICLE 4. SERVICE ......................................................................................................................... 7 
SECTION 1 – FILLING OF VACANT POSITIONS ............................................................................. 7 

SECTION 2 – PROBATIONARY PERIOD ........................................................................................ 8 

SECTION 3 – NEPOTISM .............................................................................................................. 8 

SECTION 4 – PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS .............................................................................. 8 

SECTION 5 – CERTIFICATIONS & PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS ............................................... 9 

SECTION 6 – BILINGUAL PAY ..................................................................................................... 11 

SECTION 7 – OUT-OF-CLASS (OOC) PAY .................................................................................... 11 

ARTICLE 5. HOURS OF WORK ........................................................................................................ 11 
SECTION 1 – 9/80 SCHEDULE .................................................................................................... 11 

SECTION 2 – HOURS OF WORK ................................................................................................. 12 

SECTION 3 – OVERTIME ............................................................................................................ 12 

SECTION 4 – DOUBLE TIME ....................................................................................................... 13 

SECTION 5 – COMPENSATORY TIME (COMP. TIME) ................................................................. 13 

ARTICLE 6. SPECIAL PAY ................................................................................................................ 14 
SECTION 1 – ON-CALL/STANDBY ............................................................................................... 14 

SECTION 2 – TRAVEL TIME PAY ................................................................................................. 14 

SECTION 3 – RESIGNATIONS & RETIREMENTS .......................................................................... 16 

ARTICLE 7. LEAVES ........................................................................................................................ 17 
SECTION 1 – VACATION ............................................................................................................ 17 

SECTION 2 – SICK LEAVE ............................................................................................................ 18 

SECTION 3 – REST LEAVE ........................................................................................................... 20 

SECTION 4 – BEREAVEMENT LEAVE .......................................................................................... 20 

SECTION 5 – JURY DUTY LEAVE ................................................................................................. 21 

SECTION 6 – MILITARY LEAVE ................................................................................................... 21 

203



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 3 of 36 
 

SECTION 7 – SCHOOL OR CHILD CARE PROVIDER ACTIVITIES LEAVE ....................................... 21 

SECTION 8 – FAILURE TO RETURN FROM LEAVE/JOB ABANDONMENT ................................... 22 

ARTICLE 8. HOLIDAYS .................................................................................................................... 22 
ARTICLE 9. UNIFORMS .................................................................................................................. 24 
ARTICLE 10.  BENEFITS .................................................................................................................. 24 

SECTION 1 – HEALTH/MEDICAL ................................................................................................ 24 

SECTION 2 – DENTAL & VISION ................................................................................................. 25 

SECTION 3 – LIFE INSURANCE & ACCIDENTAL DEATH & DISMEMBERMENT (AD&D) .............. 25 

SECTION 4 – LONG TERM DISABILITY (LTD) INSURANCE .......................................................... 26 

SECTION 5 – FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNTS (FSA) ................................................................. 26 

SECTION 6 – STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE (SDI) & PAID FAMILY LEAVE ................................ 26 

SECTION 7 – DEFERRED COMPENSATION ................................................................................. 26 

SECTION 8 – RETIREMENT & SOCIAL SECURITY ........................................................................ 27 

ARTICLE 11. EDUCATIONAL PLAN ................................................................................................. 29 
ARTICLE 12. LAYOFF PROCEDURES ............................................................................................... 30 
ARTICLE 13. USE OF DISTRICT VEHICLES ....................................................................................... 30 
ARTICLE 14. DISCIPLINARY ACTION ............................................................................................... 30 

SECTION 1 – DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS NOT SUBJECT TO NOTICE AND APPEAL PROCEDURES .. 31 

SECTION 2 – DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS SUBJECT TO NOTICE AND APPEAL PROCEDURES .......... 31 

ARTICLE 15. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE........................................................................................... 32 
SECTION 1 – PURPOSE .............................................................................................................. 33 

SECTION 2 – PROCEDURE .......................................................................................................... 33 

SECTION 3 – GRIEVANCE AGAINST GENERAL MANAGER ......................................................... 33 

ARTICLE 16. HOLIDAY PARTY......................................................................................................... 35 
ARTICLE 17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT & SIGNATURES ........................................................................ 35 
 
 
  

204



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 4 of 36 
 

 
ARTICLE 1. GENERAL 

 
SECTION 1 – PURPOSE 
 
This agreement recognizes the Fallbrook Public Utility District Employees’ Association (FPUDEA) 
bargaining unit representatives as the majority representative of all regular, non-management, 
employees of the Fallbrook Public Utility District (FPUD) and represents the unit for matters 
within the scope of meet and confer. The bargaining unit representatives accept the duty of fair 
representation in meet and confer and under this agreement. 
 
SECTION 2 – SCOPE 
 
Meet and confer is limited to wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment, and 
shall not include any items not covered by this agreement or adopted by reference in this 
agreement or any subject preempted by federal or state law. Amendments to this agreement 
that are within the scope of meet and confer shall require prior meet and confer between the 
bargaining unit representatives and the District. 
 
SECTION 3 – GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
A. ASSOCIATION RECOGNITION 
 

1. FPUD formally recognizes FPUDEA as the representative for all employees in non-exempt 
classifications.   

 
2. The Association may designate a maximum of 7 total representatives. The District will 

recognize as representatives only those persons designated on the most recent list 
furnished by the Association. 

 
3. The District shall grant a representative reasonable release time when, at the request of 

an employee, the representative is investigating an alleged grievance and assisting in its 
written preparation and presentation.   

 
B. CONSTRUCTION 
 
In interpreting the language of this MOU, first the plain meaning of the language shall prevail. If 
the parties cannot agree on the plain meaning of the language, then the intent of the parties 
shall be considered; then the trade or industry usage of the language shall be considered. 
 
C. DISTRICT RIGHTS 
 
The rights of the District include, but are not limited to, the exclusive right to determine the 
mission of its departments, commissions, committees, and boards; set standards of service; 

205



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 5 of 36 
 

determine the procedures and standards of selection for employment and promotion; direct its 
employees; take disciplinary action; relieve its employees from duty because of lack of work or 
for other legitimate reasons; maintain the efficiency of operations; determine the methods, 
means and personnel by which operations are to be conducted; set work schedules; determine 
the content of job classifications; take all necessary actions to carry out its mission in 
emergencies; and exercise complete control and discretion over its organization and the 
technology of performing its work. 
 
D. NEW EMPLOYEE NOTIFICATION 
 
Pursuant to AB 119, the District will provide the Association with the name, job title, department, 
work location, personal email addresses, home address and work, home, and personal cell 
numbers of new employees within 30 days of hire or the first pay period of the month after hire.  
 
The District will also provide the Association with this information for all employees it represents 
at least every 120 days; however, employees do have the ability to opt out, in writing, of the 
disclosure of their home address, home telephone number, personal cell number and personal 
email address on file. 
 
Additionally, the District will provide the Association with 10 days’ advance notice of any 
scheduled new-employee orientation.  
 
 

ARTICLE 2. DURATION OF AGREEMENT 
 
This MOU  is entered into by Fallbrook Public Utility District (FPUD) and the Fallbrook Public Utility 
District Employees’ Association (FPUDEA), as a mutual recommendation to the Board of Directors 
of FPUD of those wages, hours, and conditions of employment which are to be in effect at 12:00 
a.m. on July 1, 2022 and will terminate at  11:59 p.m. on June 30, 2027. 
  
At the expiration of this MOU, in whole or in part and in the absence of a new MOU, FPUDEA and 
the District agree to continue operating under the provisions of this MOU until such time as a 
new MOU is reached. 
 
 

ARTICLE 3. WAGES 
 

SECTION 1 – WAGE INCREASES 
 
Cost of living adjustments (COLA) during the five-year term shall be as follows: 
 

A. 5% effective the first pay period which includes July 1, 2022 
 

B. Starting July 1, 2023, through the end of the contract term, annual COLAs shall be tied to the 

206



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 6 of 36 
 

published Bureau of Labor Statistics, San Diego Region Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the 12-
month period ending with March.  The COLA will be no less than 1% and no more than 5%. 
This means that no COLA over the course of this contract shall be below 1% or above 5%, 
regardless of CPI data. For example, if the 2023 CPI data shows a .5% annual inflation rate, 
the COLA for July 2023 shall be 1%. However, if the 2023 CPI data shows a 6.3% annual 
inflation, the COLA for July 2023 shall be capped at 5%. 

 
SECTION 2 – ADJUSTMENTS 
 
Based on the total compensation survey data, all non-management employees employed in the 
pay period that includes July 1, 2022 shall be placed at the salary step of the salary range/grade 
and market median range of the new salary table that is closest to their salary in effect at the 
time.   

 
The Executive Assistant/Board Secretary, Lead Plant Operator, Purchasing/Warehouse/Fleet 
Supervisor, and Utility Technician positions that are more than 15% below their respective 
market median shall also receive a one-step or 2.5% increase. The Maintenance Technician II 
position, which is 35.3% below the market median, shall receive a minimum two-step, or 5% 
salary increase to get to step A of new range. 

 
Non-management employees who receive an additional 2.5% “Optional Certification Pay,” which 
will be eliminated, shall have the additional 2.5% included in their salary that will be used to 
determine their appropriate step placement within the new pay range of the updated salary 
table. 
 

SECTION 3 – SALARY SCHEDULE 
 
A. The District’s salary schedule includes 10 steps (A-J) within each range.  

 
B. Employees are eligible for their first salary step increase upon completion of 1 year of 

employment and an overall rating of at least a “meets expectations” on their first annual 
performance evaluation. Employees are eligible to receive subsequent step increases with 
each of their annual performance evaluations until they reach the top step of their position’s 
range.   
 

1. An employee who receives an overall rating of “does not meet” on their annual 
performance evaluation is not eligible for a salary-step increase.  
 

2. Merit increases tied to a non-management employee’s annual performance evaluation 
overall rating shall be as follows: 

 

 Meets  Expectations – 2.5%, one-step, increase 

 Above Expectations – 2.5%, one-step, increase, plus a one-time performance bonus 
annually of $1,500  

207



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 7 of 36 
 

 Exceeds  Expectations – 5%, two-step, increase 
 

3. The General Manager must authorize an employee’s two-step salary increase for an 
overall annual performance evaluation rating of “exceeds expectations” before the 
performance evaluation is finalized and given to the employee.   
 

4. If a non-management employee is at their maximum salary step (J), they shall be eligible 
for a one-time payment (annually) for an overall performance evaluation rating of above 
or exceeds expectations, as follows: 
 

 $2,500 performance bonus for above expectations 

 $3,500 performance bonus for exceeds expectations 
 

5. A performance bonus is considered reportable compensation to CalPERS for Classic 
employees only; PEPRA employees may still receive the performance bonus, but it will 
not be reported to CalPERS. 

 
ARTICLE 4. SERVICE 

 
SECTION 1 – FILLING OF VACANT POSITIONS  
 
Whenever a vacancy in a new or existing position occurs, preference in filling it shall be given to 
existing qualified District employees whenever possible.  
 
A. An employee promoted to a position with a higher pay range, but not within a position series 

(i.e., designated by “I/II/III”, such as utility worker I/II)) shall be placed at the salary step within 
the higher pay range that results in the employee receiving no less than a 5% increase in the 
employee’s base hourly rate.  

 
1. For example, an employee promoted from a position at pay range 30, step B, to a position 

at pay range 31, shall be placed at step C of pay range 31, which is a 5% increase.  
 
B.  An employee is eligible for promotion within a position series (e.g. utility worker I to utility 

worker II) upon achieving the necessary certification/education/experience requirements as 
stated in the position’s job description. 

 
1. These types of promotions occur with an employee’s annual performance evaluation and 

their placement in the higher pay range shall be granted as described in Article 3. Section 
4-B.   

 
  

208



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 8 of 36 
 

SECTION 2 – PROBATIONARY PERIOD  
 
A. All new-hires shall serve an initial probationary period of 6 months; however, a supervisor 

may, with approval of the General Manager, require an extension of an employee’s initial or 
promotional probationary period not to exceed 12 months total. 

 
B. During the initial probationary period, the employee may be rejected at any time, without 

the right to appeal. Upon successfully completing the initial probationary period, employees 
achieve regular employment status.  
 

C. Current District employees promoted to another position outside of their current position 
series (i.e., promotion to a different position altogether, not from a I to II level in the same 
position, such as a utility worker I to utility worker II) shall serve a promotional probationary 
period of not less than 6 months. A promoted employee rejected during their promotional 
probationary period shall be reinstated to the position from which he/she was promoted, 
unless he/she is terminated for cause from the District. 

 
SECTION 3 – NEPOTISM 
 
The hiring of a current District employee’s relative is not permitted without the approval of the 
General Manager. A relative may only be hired if they do not work in the same department, they 
are not under the direct or indirect supervision of the other, and neither occupies a position 
which has influence over the other's employment, promotions, or salary administration.  A 
relative is defined as a spouse, parent, child, sibling, grandparent, aunt/uncle, niece/nephew, 
cousin, mother/father-in-law, brother/sister-in-law, and domestic partners.  

 
SECTION 4 – PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS 

 
A. New employees will receive their first performance evaluation at 6 months; the second at the 

completion of 1 year; and each year thereafter on their employment anniversary date. 
   

B. If an employee is promoted to a job outside of their current position series (i.e., promotion 
to a different position altogether, not from a I to II level in the same position, such as a utility 
worker I to utility worker II), their performance  evaluation date will become the date of their 
promotion.   

 
C. An employee may appeal an overall performance rating of “does not meet expectations” to 

the General Manager.   This appeal is not part of the grievance process and the decision of 
the General Manager is final.   

 
D. If an employee’s performance evaluation is more than 30 days overdue, the employee’s step 

increase, if applicable, shall be granted, retroactive to the date following the end of the 
evaluation rating period, pending their supervisor’s completion of the performance 

209



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 9 of 36 
 

evaluation; however, it is also the employee’s responsibility to notify human resources 
if/when they do not receive their performance evaluation by the due date.     

 
E. If an employee is on a leave of absence in excess of four continuous weeks, their performance 

evaluation date will be extended for the same amount of time as the leave that was in excess 
of four weeks and that date will remain the annual performance evaluations date.   

 
SECTION 5 – CERTIFICATIONS & PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS  

 
A. REQUIRED CERTIFICATIONS 

 
Certification requirements are shown at the end of each job description.   
 
1. If an employee is initially hired at a “no certification” range as indicated in their job 

description, they will not be allowed to remain at the “no certification” range indefinitely.  
 

a. Upon hire, an employee hired at a “no certification” range will be provided with an 
employment agreement that clearly outlines the specific certification requirements 
of their position.  

 
b. The employee’s supervisor shall provide the employee with the information and 

training to prepare for the necessary certification exam/s. 
 
c. If the employee does not successfully achieve the minimum level of certification, 

beyond the “no certification” range, as required of their position, they will be subject 
to disciplinary action.   

 
2. Once an employee receives a required certification of a higher range, as indicated in their 

job description, they will be moved to their same step within the higher range, resulting 
in a 2.5% increase.  
 
a. For example, an employee who is at range 16, step A, of the utility worker I position  

currently possesses a D1 certification, as required for range 16. Once this employee 
receives a class A driver’s license, as required, along with a D1 certification, for range 
17, they will be moved to step A of range 17.    
 

b. If an employee receives a required certification of a higher series position (e.g., utility 
worker II), they will be eligible to move to the higher position at their next scheduled 
annual performance evaluation. 

 
3. If an employee fails to maintain the required certification/s for their position, they will be 

subject to disciplinary action. 
 

210



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 10 of 36 
 

4. The District will reimburse employees for the cost of exams for certifications required of 
their position, as specifically stated in their job description. 

 
5. The District will reimburse employees for the cost of exam for certifications that are not 

required of their but are determined by the General Manager to be relative to their job 
duties/responsibilities.  
 

6. If an employee does not successfully pass a certification exam within the first 2 attempts, 
the employee will be responsible for covering the cost/s for any additional attempts at 
passing the exam.   

 
7. Certification renewal fees will be paid by the District; however, employees are responsible 

for any late fees incurred.  
 

B. OPTIONAL CERTIFICATIONS 
 

The 2.5% “Optional Certification Pay” shall be eliminated. The District will work with the 
association to develop a list of all possible qualifying additional certifications based on certain 
job descriptions. The District’s non-management job descriptions shall be updated to reflect 
the removal of all “other” certifications from the positions’ respective pay range. 

 
1. Membership fees for certification and/or professional associations, as approved by the 

General Manager, will be paid by the District.  
 

2. Continuing education unit fees will be paid by the District and District time will be made 
available for the training of employees whose classifications require distribution and 
treatment certification.  In-house training required by the State for continuing education 
units will be on District time and paid by the District for all certifications.   
 

3. District approved training required by the State for continuing education units will be on 
District time and paid by the District for required certifications (e.g., D1 or D2), as stated 
specifically in their job descriptions or as determined by the General Manager to be 
related to their job duties/responsibilities.  
 

C. CONTINUING EDUCATION BONUS 
 
When an employee receives an additional certification, based on the list of all possible 
qualifying additional certifications for their respective job description, or receives a college 
degree for those positions that do not require one, a one-time stipend bonus of $1,000 shall 
be paid to the employee, upon General Manager approval.  
 

D. DRIVER’S LICENSE REQUIREMENT 
 

211



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 11 of 36 
 

The District shall reimburse employees for the difference in cost between a Class A or Class B 
driver's license and a Class C driver's license which the employee is required to obtain or 
renew during his/her term of employment.   

 
The District will provide reasonable time to train for and obtain a Class A or Class B driver’s 
license which is over and above what is necessary to obtain a Class C license.   

 
Failure to pass a required Class A or Class B driver’s license examination may result in 
reclassification, or if no other position is available, termination.  The District shall also pay for 
the cost of mandatory physicals which are an employment requirement.   

 
SECTION 6 – BILINGUAL PAY 
 

A non-management employee shall receive $75.00 per pay period if they are bilingual 
(English/Spanish) and utilize both languages to communicate with the public. 
 
SECTION 7 – OUT-OF-CLASS (OOC) PAY 
 
When a supervisor/manager is going to be away from the office and unavailable for more than 
one day, he or she may request approval from the General Manager to have a qualified employee 
serve in an out-of-class assignment in the supervisor’s/manager’s absence.  
 
The employee approved for an OOC assignment shall receive an additional 15% out-of-class pay.  
 
An employee serving in a partial out-of-class  assignment is only eligible to receive the additional 
15% out-of-class pay for time actually worked, not  while on paid time off (e.g. vacation or sick 
leave) and/or for a District-observed paid holiday, unless they are called into work on a District-
observed paid holiday. 
 
Pursuant to Gov. Code 20630, an employee serving in a full out-of-class pay assignment shall 
receive the additional 15% out-of-class pay for all hours of compensation, including District-
observed holidays, sick or vacation leave, industrial disability leave, and compensatory time off.    
 
 

ARTICLE 5. HOURS OF WORK 
 
SECTION 1 – 9/80 SCHEDULE 
 
The District’s 9/80 work schedule has two alternating teams, "blue" and "gold"  Supervisors will 
assign the employee to the team. All team changes will be approved by the General Manager. 
 
Under the  9/80 schedule,  assigned staff shall work, in any two week pay period, 8 weekdays 
(Monday -  Thursday) for 9 hours each day, and 1 day (Friday) for 8 hours and off on the  alternate 
Friday.   

212



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 12 of 36 
 

 
Some employees may not be eligible for the 9/80 work schedule due to District operational 
considerations, as determined by the supervisor and approved by the General Manager.   
 
An alternate work schedule may be considered by the General Manager for employees who 
prefer not to work the 9/80 schedule.   
 
SECTION 2 – HOURS OF WORK 

 
A. Employee time from 1 to 7 minutes shall be rounded down, and thus not counted as hours 

worked, but employee time from 8 to 14 minutes must be rounded up and counted as a 
quarter hour of work time. 

 
B.  Customer service (i.e. front counter) will be staffed accordingly to accommodate the hours 

open to the public, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m.   
 
SECTION 3 – OVERTIME 
 
A. No employee may work non-emergency overtime without advance approval from their 

supervisor. 
 
B. Employees shall be paid one and one half times (1.5) their hourly rate of pay for all hours 

worked beyond their regularly scheduled hours in one work day.  
 

1.  For example, an employee on a standard 9/80 schedule will receive overtime for hours 
worked beyond their regularly scheduled 9 hours on Monday through Thursday.  

 
C. An employee not on standby that is required to report to work to assist in emergency repairs 

after their regularly scheduled work hours shall receive a minimum of 3 hours of pay at 1.5 
their hourly rate. 

 
D. An  employee who is  not on standby and is contacted  by telephone for assistance  between  6:00 

a.m. and 9:00 p.m. shall be eligible for a minimum of 15 minutes or the actual length of the 
telephone call of overtime pay for each response. If the employee called is required to physically 
respond, there will be no compensation for the telephone call and regular call-out overtime rules 
shall apply. 
 

E.  An  employee  who is  not on standby and  is contacted by  telephone for assistance between  9 
p.m. and  6 a.m. shall be eligible for a minimum of 30 minutes or the actual length of the telephone 
call of overtime pay for each response.  If the employee called is required to physically respond, 
there will be no compensation for the telephone call and regular call-out overtime rules shall 
apply. 

 

213



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 13 of 36 
 

F.  Employee time from 1 to 7 minutes shall be rounded down, and thus not counted as hours 
worked, but employee time from 8 to 14 minutes must be rounded up and counted as a 
quarter hour of work time. 

 
G. Vacation time, compensatory time (comp. time) and sick leave shall be included as time  

worked for the purpose of calculating overtime pay.  
 

H. An employee’s time on “rest leave” does not count as time worked for the purpose of 
calculating overtime pay.   

 
SECTION 4 – DOUBLE TIME 
 
A.   An employee, required to report to work to assist in emergency repairs on an actual holiday 

date,  as listed in Article 8.A HOLIDAYS, shall receive a minimum of  2 hours of double time.  
 

B. An employee will be paid at a rate of double their regular rate of pay for all authorized hours 
worked in excess of twelve hours per day or in excess of eight hours on the seventh straight 
day in any given week. 

 
1.  An employee will receive double time for hours worked over 12, which do not need to be 

worked consecutively within a 24-hour period. 
 

a.  For example, if an employee that is not on standby works their normal 9-hour day on 
Wednesday and is called back at midnight for an emergency and works until 9:30 a.m. 
Thursday:  

 

 Employee receives regular overtime (1.5) for 3 hours (midnight-3 a.m.), pursuant 
to section 3.C Overtime; and 

 Employee receives double time for 6.5 hours (3 a.m. to 9:30 a.m.) 
 

SECTION 5 – COMPENSATORY TIME (COMP. TIME) 
 
A. When an employee works overtime, the employee may elect to accrue comp. time in lieu of 

receiving overtime payment at a rate of 1.5 hours for each overtime hour worked. 
 
B.   Comp. time may accrue up to a maximum of 40 hours. 
 
C. Comp. time usage shall not be reasonably denied if operations will not be adversely affected. 
 
D. Upon separation from the District, employees shall be paid 100% of their accrued comp. time 

balance at their then base hourly rate of pay.   
  
 

214



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 14 of 36 
 

ARTICLE 6. SPECIAL PAY 
 
SECTION 1 – ON-CALL/STANDBY  
 
A. A non-management employee shall be given a flat 2 hours nightly rate of their current, regular 

hourly rate for each day of on-call/standby pay. Employees who are on standby shall not be 
eligible for additional payments for weekends or holidays. Employees will still accrue 
overtime or double time if called out to be physically present on a job site as described below. 

 
1. In addition to the flat rate, when an employee on standby duty is called to report to work, 

he will receive a minimum of 2 hours of overtime pay at 1.5 their hourly rate.  
 

2. In addition to the flat rate, an employee on standby duty that is called to work on an 
actual holiday date, as listed in Article 8.A HOLIDAYS, shall be paid double time for all 
hours worked. 
 

3. An employee who is out on a work-related or personal injury/illness is not eligible to 
receive the flat daily amount of standby duty pay.   
 

B.  Hours spent on standby shall not be considered hours worked. 
 

C.  Employees serving on standby duty are bound by the District’s Drug-Free Workplace Policy 
while on standby duty. 

 
D. An employee assigned to standby duty who fails, refuses, or is unable to respond to an 

emergency call is subject to disciplinary action. 
 

E. An employee assigned to standby duty may arrange to be replaced by a substitute, provided 
he/she receives approval from department supervision before the standby duty is scheduled 
to begin. 

 
SECTION 2 – TRAVEL TIME PAY 
 
The District agrees to pay non-exempt employees for travel time in accordance with the Fair 
Labor Standards Act (FLSA). 
 
A. Travel Time – To/From Home and Work  
 

Normal travel to/from home and work is not considered hours worked. 
 
B. Single-Day Travel 
 

215



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 15 of 36 
 

Time spent by the employee in travel as part of his or her normal work activities – such as 
travel from the job site to an off-site training/seminar during regular working hours is 
considered hours worked.  
 
If the employee is required to travel to another city and return home the same day, the travel 
time to and from the other city is considered hours worked. If the employee takes a lunch 
break, it is not considered hours worked. If the employee uses public transportation, the 
travel time between the employee’s home and the point (i.e. bus station, airport, etc.) where 
he or she obtains this transportation is not considered hours worked.  

 
Regular Work Hours Single Travel Day Travel Time Travel Time Paid 

8 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday - 
Friday 

Friday Leave at 6:30 a.m. - 
arrive at 8:30 a.m. 
Attend seminar. Take 
an hour lunch. Leave at 
4:30 p.m. - arrive 
back at 6:30 p.m. 

Employee is paid for 
11 hours, with 
hours in excess of 
their regular work 
day paid as 
overtime. Not paid 
for lunch hour. 

8 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday - Friday Sunday Leave at 2:00 p.m. – 
arrive at 6 p.m. 

Employee is paid for 
4 
hours. 

11:00 a.m. to 8 p.m. Monday – 
Friday 

Wednesday Leave at 9 a.m. - 
arrive at noon. 

Employee is paid 
for 3 hours – since 
the travel is 
in the same day. 

 
C. Travel Away From Home Overnight on a Regularly Scheduled Work Day 
 

Travel time involving a required overnight stay is considered hours worked only when it is 
during the employee’s regular workday. The employee is simply substituting travel for his or 
her regular work hours. 
 
Travel time that is outside of normal work hours is not considered hours worked. 

 
Regular Work Hours Overnight Travel Travel Time Travel Time Paid 

8 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday - Friday Friday Leave at 7 a.m. – 
arrive at 1:00 p.m. 
Took an hour lunch. 

Employee is paid 
for 4 hours – not 
paid for time 
outside regular 
hours or 
for lunch. 

8 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday - Friday Sunday Leave at 2:00 p.m. – 
arrive at 6 p.m. 

Employee is paid 
for 3 
hours – not paid 
for time outside 
of regular hours. 

216



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 16 of 36 
 

11:00 a.m. to 8 p.m., Monday 
– Friday 

Wednesday Leave at 11:00 a.m. – 
arrive at 2 p.m. Took an 
hour lunch. 

Employee is paid 2 
hours. Not paid 
for lunch. 

11:00 a.m. to 8 p.m., Monday 
– Friday 

Sunday Leave at 10:00 a.m. – 
arrive at 3:00 p.m. 
Took an hour lunch. 

Employee is 
paid 3 hours. – 
not paid for the 
time outside of 
regular 
hours or for lunch. 

 
D.  Travel on a Non-Work Day 
 

If the employee regularly works from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday through Friday, traveling 
during the same hours on Saturday and/or Sunday is considered hours worked; however, the 
employee’s usual lunch break is not considered hours worked. 
 
Time spent in travel away from home outside of regular work hours is not considered hours 
worked. 
 
Any work that the employee performs while traveling is considered hours worked even if 
these hours are outside his or her normal work schedule. 

 
SECTION 3 – RESIGNATIONS & RETIREMENTS  
 
A.  NOTIFICATION 
 

An employee wishing to resign or retire in good standing shall submit a written resignation at 
least 2 weeks prior to the effective date of resignation. The District will pay an employee for 
all hours worked and any applicable and available leave balances on the next regular payday 
following their resignation/retirement. 

 
B. NOTIFICATION BONUS 
 

A one-time payment of $500 shall be made to an employee upon receipt of their written 
notification of their pending resignation/retirement date if they provide the District with a 
30-day notice. A one-time payment of $1,000 shall be made to an employee upon receipt of 
their written notification of their pending resignation/retirement date if they provide the 
District with a minimum 90-day written notice of their pending resignation/retirement date. 
In either case, if the employee provides said notice, but resigns/retires before the end of the 
30 or 90 days or if the rescind their notice of resignation/retirement, they will be required to 
directly repay the District for the bonus.  

 
C.  RETIREMENT BONUS 
 

217



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 17 of 36 
 

All employees having 10 or more years of continuous service with the District, upon 
retirement after age 62, shall be granted an additional one-month’s pay.  

 
 

ARTICLE 7. LEAVES 
 
SECTION 1 – VACATION 

 
A. Each regular and probationary employee will accrue vacation leave as follows: 
 

1 through 5 years = 4.00 hours per pay period 
After 5 years = 4.62 hours per pay period effective on 5th anniversary 
After 10 years = 6.15 hours per pay period effective on 10th anniversary  
After 15 years = 7.69 hours per pay period effective on 15th anniversary  
After 19 years = 8.00 hours per pay period effective on the 20th anniversary 

 
B. If an employee’s last day of employment with the District falls within the middle of a pay 

period, their vacation leave hours accrued for that pay period will be prorated accordingly.  
 
C. Employees are allowed to accrue vacation leave up to a maximum of 248 hours.  
 

1. On December 31 of each year, an employee with vacation hour balance that exceeds 248 
hours will stop accruing until vacation leave is used and their balance is below 248 hours.  
 

2. When circumstances created by the District are beyond the control of the employee and 
make it impossible for the employee to use vacation leave as described above to reduce 
their maximum accrued vacation hours, the General Manager may grant an extension to 
the maximum accrued hours allowed until such time that the employee is able to take the 
necessary vacation time off to reduce their balance.   

 

D. Use of Vacation Time 
 

1. Any planned leave (vacation or comp time off) must be requested with as much notice as 
possible.  Supervisors will grant requests based on the needs of the District. Requests shall 
not unreasonably be withheld or denied. 
 

2. An employee may elect to use accrued vacation for scheduled medical, dental or vision 
appointments, evaluations or associated activities if they have exhausted their sick leave 
balance. 
 

E.  Payout of Vacation Leave 
 
Employees who terminate their employment with the District shall be paid for all accrued 
and available vacation leave.  

218



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 18 of 36 
 

 
F. Sell Back of Unused Vacation Leave Hours  

 
Employees may sell back unused vacation time under the following conditions: 

 
1. A minimum of 40 hours can be requested;  

 
2. The maximum of 80 hours can be requested;   

 
3. The employee must have taken at least 80 hours of vacation (the use of comp. time 

counts toward this requirement);  
 
4. The employee must have a remaining balance of at least 80 hours of accrued vacation 

time after the sell back; and 
 

5. Employees must complete and submit to human resources a vacation leave sell back 
request form by the December deadline as established by human resources each year. 
 

 The sell back will occur in the following December. 

 Once an employee submits a request form, it cannot be modified for revoked, per 
the IRS regulations.  

 
SECTION 2 – SICK LEAVE 

 
A. Sick Leave Accrual  

 
Regular and probationary employees will accrue 3.69 hours of sick leave per pay period.  

 
B. Sick Leave Use 

 
Sick leave usage shall be allowed for the following qualifying reasons: 

 
1. For the employee’s own illness or injury. 

 
2. For the employee’s own diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition; or 

preventative care, including medical and dental appointments. 
 

3. For the diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition or preventative care 
for an employee’s family member, including: parent, parent-in-law, child, spouse, 
domestic partner, grandparent, grandchild, or sibling. 

 
4. To obtain relief or services related to being the victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, 

or stalking, including the following, with appropriate certification of the need for such 
services: 

219



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 19 of 36 
 

 

 A temporary restraining order or restraining order. 

 Other injunctive relief to help ensure the health, safety or welfare of themselves 
or their children. 

 To seek medical attention for injuries caused by domestic violence, sexual assault 
or stalking. 

 To obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, or rape crisis center 
as the result of an act of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 

 To obtain psychological counseling related to an experience of domestic violence, 
sexual assault, or stalking. 

 To participate in safety planning and other actions to increase safety from future 
domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, including temporary or permanent 
relocation. 

 
5. In accordance with California Kin Care Law, regular full-time employees may use up to ½ 

of their annual accrued total sick leave to care for a family member.  
 

6. Employees who terminate their employment with the District will be paid for 50% of 
unused sick leave, not to exceed payment for 400 hours.  
 

7. If an employee’s sick leave balance is exhausted, another paid leave (e.g. vacation, comp. 
time) will be used. 
 

8. A sick leave absence of more than 40 hours resulting from an employee’s non-work- 
related injury or illness will require that the employee submit a doctor’s note to human 
resources upon their return to work. 
 

9. Any suspected abuse of sick leave usage is subject to discipline, up to and including 
termination. 
 

C. Worker’s Compensation Illness or Injury 
 

1. Pursuant to California Labor Code 4600, workers' comp will pay for time off for doctors' 
appointments that are required by the District or its insurance carrier as a result of a work-
related illness or injury. 
 

2. When an employee is injured on the job and, according to their physician, is able to return 
to work with temporary modifications to their job duties, the District will make every 
effort to place the employee in a modified assignment until he or she is released back to 
full duty. The nature of the assignment will depend on the physical restrictions of the 
employee as stated by the treating physician and the availability of a modified position in 
the employee’s normal department or another department that is consistent with the 

220



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 20 of 36 
 

physical restrictions. An employee’s acceptance of a modified duty assignment, if 
available, will be mandatory. 

 
SECTION 3 – REST LEAVE 

 
A. If an employee has to work between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. for a minimum of 

three hours, after having already worked their regularly scheduled workday, the employee 
will receive one hour of paid rest leave for each hour worked between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 
a.m., providing the next day is a regularly scheduled workday.   

 
1. If an employee works beyond their regular start time the next day, he shall be allowed to 

leave work early, by the amount of rest-leave hours earned.  
 
a. For example, an employee begins work at 3 a.m. and finishes work at 7 a.m. and earns 

4 hours of rest leave for the next day, providing the next day is a regularly scheduled 
workday.  The employee would continue to work and leave work 4 hours earlier than 
their regular quitting time. 

 
2. Employees that complete their work prior to 6 a.m. will report to work later than their 

regular start time by the amount of rest hours earned.  
           

a. For example, an employee begins work at 10 p.m. and finishes work at 2 a.m., earning 
4 hours of rest leave for the following day, providing the next day is a regularly 
scheduled workday. The employee would report to work at 11 a.m. if their regularly 
scheduled start time is 7 a.m. 

 
B. Rest leave will not count as time worked for the purposes of calculating overtime. 

 
C. In the event of an unexpected catastrophic emergency or natural disaster, the General 

Manager may, by necessity, suspend or modify the use or means of rest leave.  
 

D. The federal regulations pertaining to commercial drivers’ working hour limits shall take 
precedence over this policy for District personnel using a commercial license. 

 
E. The District will either reimburse employees or provide a meal after twelve continuous 

hours of work. The District retains the right to provide meals in lieu of reimbursing 
employees for meals. 

 
SECTION 4 – BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 
 
In the event of a death in the family, regular and probationary employees shall be eligible for up 
to 3 working days off with pay to attend the funeral or make funeral arrangements, subject to 
the following provisions: 

 

221



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 21 of 36 
 

1. The relatives designated shall include child, parent, spouse, sibling, grandparent, 
grandchild, aunt/uncle, niece/nephew, cousin, and domestic partner. It shall also include 
“in-law” relatives and those relationships generally called "step." 
 

2. Bereavement leave is not compensable for days falling outside an employee's regular 
work schedule. 
 

3. All requests for bereavement leave shall be made in writing as soon as practical but in no 
event later than the first day back to work, and shall be subject to approval of the human 
resources manager.  

 
SECTION 5 – JURY DUTY LEAVE 

 
Employees shall be compensated at their base hourly rate of pay for serving jury duty during the 
employee’s regularly scheduled work hours. In order to be compensated for jury duty leave, the 
employee must submit to human resources a copy of their jury duty summons, along with their 
time-in/time-out tracking sheet as provided by the court. 

 
SECTION 6 – MILITARY LEAVE  
 
The administration of military leave shall conform to both state and federal laws including, but 
not limited to, the requirements of the California Military & Veterans Code and the federal 
Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA). 

 
Such employee shall be entitled to the applicable leaves of absence and employment and 
reemployment rights and privileges provided by the Military & Veterans Code of the State of 
California and USERRA. The employee must provide reasonable advance notice of the need for 
Military Leave and must provide the District with a copy of all military orders. 

 
An employee ordered to active duty for training purposes in the U.S. armed forces, will be paid 
the difference between their District salary and the basic pay received for active military duty for 
a maximum of 10 working days per year.   

 
SECTION 7 – SCHOOL OR CHILD CARE PROVIDER ACTIVITIES LEAVE 
 
School or child care provider activities leave is the allowable use of the employee’s existing leave 
credits to attend school or child care provider activities; to enroll or reenroll a child in a school or 
with a licensed child care provider; or to address a school or child care provider emergency. 

 
A regular employee who is a parent, guardian, stepparent, foster parent or grandparent with 
custody, or who stands in loco parentis, of a child enrolled in grades K through 12 of a public or 
private school, or in a licensed child day care facility, is eligible for school or child care provider 
activities leave. 

 

222



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 22 of 36 
 

An employee may use up to 40 hours of his/her existing vacation, sick leave, or compensatory 
time hours per calendar year, but not more than 8 hours in any single calendar month, regardless 
of the number of children the employee may have. The 8 hour per month limitation does not 
apply for leave to address a school or childcare provider emergency.  

 
A. If the employee does not have sufficient paid leave available, he/she shall be allowed to take 

unpaid personal leave. 
 

B. Employees are required to give 48 hours advance notice, unless it is a school or childcare 
provider emergency as indicated in below, of their desire to take school or childcare provider 
activities leave. Advance notice of less than 48 hours may only be given with approval by the 
District.  

 
C. The District may also require that the employee provide documentation verifying 

participation in school or childcare provider activities. 
 

D. An emergency means that an employee’s child cannot remain in school or with a child care 
provider due to one of the following: 

 

 The school or child care provider has requested that the child be picked up, or has an 
attendance policy, excluding planned holidays, that prohibits the child from attending 
or requires the child be picked up from the school or child care provider; 

 Behavioral  or discipline problems; 

 Closure or unexpected unavailability of the school or child care provider, excluding 
planned holidays; and/or 

 A natural disaster, including, but not limited to, fire, earthquake or flood. 
 
SECTION 8 – FAILURE TO RETURN FROM LEAVE/JOB ABANDONMENT  
 
Except as otherwise provided by law including, but not limited to, federal and state provisions 
related to return from military leave, failure by an employee to return to duty or notify the 
District of their intent to return to duty within 48 hours of the date he/she is scheduled to return 
from any type of leave shall be considered an automatic resignation and the employee shall be 
notified of his/her automatic resignation from District employment. The District will consider 
evidence of extenuating circumstances if it is submitted by the employee to the District within 
ten (10) calendar days of the postmark of the District notice. 

 
 
ARTICLE 8. HOLIDAYS 

 
A. ACTUAL HOLIDAY DATES 

 
Following are the actual holiday dates, which may differ from the District’s observed holiday 
date, as described below in “B”:  

223



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 23 of 36 
 

  
 New Year’s Day – January 1 

 Martin Luther King, Jr. Day – 3rd Monday in January 
 Presidents' Birthday – 3rd Monday in February 
 Memorial Day – Last Monday in May 
 Independence Day – July 4 
 Labor Day – 1st Monday in September 
 Veterans Day – November 11 
 Thanksgiving Day – 4th Thursday in November 
 Day after Thanksgiving – 4th Friday in November  
 Christmas Eve – December 24 
 Christmas Day – December 25 
 New Year’s Eve Day – December 31 

 
B. DISTRICT OBSERVED HOLIDAYS 

 
Any of the actual holiday dates listed in “A” above that fall on a Saturday shall be observed 
(i.e., District offices will be closed) on the preceding Friday. Any of the above holidays that 
fall on a Sunday shall be observed on the following Monday.  
 

C. HOLIDAY PAY 
 

An employee whose regularly scheduled workday falls on an actual holiday date as listed 
above in “A”, not the date that a holiday is observed, shall be paid for their actual hours 
worked, plus holiday pay for their regular hours for that day.  

 
1. For example, an employee on a 9/80 work schedule will receive 9 hours of holiday pay for 

an actual holiday date that falls on a Monday through Thursday, or 8 hours of holiday pay 
an actual holiday date that falls on their working Friday.  An employee that regularly works 
a 4/10 schedule shall receive 10 hours of holiday pay for an actual holiday date that falls 
on their regularly scheduled workday.   
 

2. Plant Operators and Systems Operators required to work their regularly scheduled     shift  
on an actual holiday, as listed in “A” above, shall be paid “holiday pay” for the number of 
hours they normally work and  they shall be paid time and one-half pay for all hours 
actually worked.    
 

3. An employee contacted outside of their regular work hours to assist in emergency repairs 
on an actual  holiday, as listed in “A” above, shall be paid double-time for hours worked, 
with a guaranteed minimum of two hours of double time. 
 
a. For example, if an employee only works for one hour they will receive 2 hours at 

double time. If an employee works for 4 hours, they will receive the full 4 hours at 
double time.  

224



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 24 of 36 
 

 
4. For an employee on a 9/80 work schedule, when a holiday falls on their regular Friday off, 

the holiday will be observed and the employee will have the following Monday off. 
 

5. To be eligible for holiday pay, an employee must be in paid status in the in the pay period 
that includes the holiday.  
 
 

ARTICLE 9. UNIFORMS 
 

Uniform allowance as defined by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) 
is a form of compensation for “classic” CalPERS members for CalPERS purposes only. As such, any 
uniform allowance or the value of uniforms provided by the District will be reported to CalPERS 
as part of the employee’s annual gross income for purposes of computing the employee’s and 
District’s CalPERS’ contribution.  
 
Under the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA), a uniform allowance or the 
value of uniforms is not considered pensionable compensation for “new members” of CalPERS. 

 
A. All employees for whom uniforms are provided are required to wear a complete uniform 

when working unless otherwise authorized by their supervisor.   
 

B. Safety shoes shall be worn by employees as required by the District. The District will replace   safety 
shoes on an as-needed basis.  

 
C. Upon termination, all uniforms issued to an employee must be returned to the District.  The 

cost of any uniforms not returned may be pursued through legal means.  
 

 
ARTICLE 10.  BENEFITS 

 
 SECTION 1 – HEALTH/MEDICAL  
 
A. ELIGIBILITY 

 
New regular full-time employees are eligible for health, dental and vision benefits on the first 
day of the month following their date of hire and upon proper application and acceptance, 
as set forth in the agreement between the District and ACWA/JPIA for the benefit plan year 
that begins January 1 and ends December 31 of each year. For the purpose of these benefits, 
full-time is defined as an employee who works at least 24 work hours per workweek.    

 
B. COVERAGE 
 

225



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 25 of 36 
 

The cost of coverage for each health plan offered is provided in a premium rate sheet that is 
updated ahead of the start of each benefit plan year and provided to all employees during 
open enrollment. 

 
1. The District pays 100% of the Kaiser plus Chiropractic plan for each coverage level: 

employee only, employee plus one, employee plus family. The District also pays these 
same amounts towards the cost of any other plan and coverage level an employee selects.  

 
a. For example, if the Kaiser plus Chiropractic plan for employee-only coverage is $600 

per month and an employee selects a PPO option for employee-only coverage at a 
monthly cost of $900, the District would pay $600 and the employee would be 
responsible for the additional $300 per month.   

 
C. COVERAGE TERMINATION 

 
An employee’s medical/dental/vision coverage will end on the last day of the month in which 
they are no longer employed by the District. For example, if an employee resigns on May 11, 
their coverage will end on May 31. 

 
Depending on the employee’s medical coverage and their last day of employment, additional  
premium deductions may be taken from their last paycheck in order to cover any remaining 
monthly “employee cost.”  

 
D. WAIVER OF HEALTH/MEDICAL COVERAGE  

 
Eligible employees who provide proof of coverage under another group health insurance 
plan may elect to waive District-provided health coverage and will receive $250 per month 
in lieu of health coverage.   
 

SECTION 2 – DENTAL & VISION  
 
The District provides dental and vision insurance and pays the full amount of the monthly 
premiums for all regular full-time employees and their eligible dependents. All eligible employees 
are required to enroll in the dental and vision plans for employee-only coverage. For the purpose 
of these benefits, full-time is defined as an employee who works at least 24 work hours per 
workweek.    
 
SECTION 3 – LIFE INSURANCE & ACCIDENTAL DEATH & DISMEMBERMENT (AD&D) 

 
The first day of the month following date of hire, an employee, upon proper application and 
acceptance by the insurance carrier, shall be covered under a group life insurance and AD&D 
plan. The District shall pay the full monthly premium costs for coverage.  
 

226



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 26 of 36 
 

A. The benefit is equal to two times an employee’s base annual salary, rounded to the next 
higher $1,000, up to a maximum of $300,000.  

 
1. At age 65, but not age 70, benefit is 67% of the amount shown in “A” above. 

 
2. At age 70 or more, the amount of the insurance will be 45% of the amount shown in   “A” 

above. 
 

SECTION 4 – LONG TERM DISABILITY (LTD) INSURANCE 
 

The District shall pay the full monthly premium costs for employees’ LTD insurance coverage.   
Beginning on or as near to July 1, 2019 as is administratively possible and for the term of this 

agreement, the District-paid LTD benefit will change from a 66 
2/3 

% pre-tax benefit to a 60% post-
tax benefit, resulting in the District-paid monthly premiums being made after-tax and making the 
actual LTD benefit tax-free. To accomplish this, each employee’s salary will be “grossed up” 
approximately 20% to off-set the amount of taxes the District will be paying for each employee. 
 
SECTION 5 – FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNTS (FSA)  
 
The District will maintain a voluntary FSA program in accordance with applicable IRS statutes to 
allow employees to pay for covered expenses using pre-tax dollars.  
 
SECTION 6 – STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE (SDI) & PAID FAMILY LEAVE 
 
Employees requested and the District implemented State Disability Insurance (SDI) at the 
employees’ expense. Participation is mandatory. The coordination of SDI or PFL (Paid Family 
Leave) payments with sick leave cannot exceed the employee’s regular weekly wage.  
Coordinating SDI payments with vacation leave does not affect your benefits.  The District 
requires that employees use two weeks of vacation prior to receiving PFL.  
 
SECTION 7 – DEFERRED COMPENSATION 
 

Effective July 1, 2022, the District’s matching contribution to a 401(a) plan for non-management 
employees who contribute at least an equal percentage to their individual 457(b) deferred 
compensation plan shall increase by .5% to 1% of the employee’s base salary.  
 
Effective July 1, 2023, the District’s matching contribution to a 401(a) plan for non-management 
employees who contribute at least an equal percentage to their individual 457(b) deferred 
compensation plan shall increase by .5% to 1.5% of the employee’s base salary.  
 
Effective July 1, 2024, the District’s matching contribution to a 401(a) plan for non-management 
employees who contribute at least an equal percentage to their individual 457(b) deferred 
compensation plan shall increase by .5% to 2% of the employee’s base salary.  
 

227



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 27 of 36 
 

Effective July 1, 2025, the District’s matching contribution to a 401(a) plan for non-management 
employees who contribute at least an equal percentage to their individual 457(b) deferred 
compensation plan shall increase by .5% to 2.5% of the employee’s base salary.  
 

 
SECTION 8 – RETIREMENT & SOCIAL SECURITY  
 
A. CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CalPERS) 
 
The District participates in the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS).  
 

1. Employees hired at the District before January 1, 2013 are considered “classic members” 
and contribute 8% of their salary, with the following provisions under the District’s 
contract with CalPERS: 

  a. Pre-Retirement Option 2W Benefit; 
  b. Retirement Benefit Formula of 2.5% at age 55; and 
  c. Single Highest Year Final Compensation Option. 
 

2.  Employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 who are also “new members” will contribute 
50% of the normal cost established  by CalPERS pursuant to the Public Employees’ Pension 
Reform Act (PEPRA), with the following provisions under the District’s contract with 
CalPERS: 

a. Pre-Retirement Option 2W Benefit; 
b. Retirement Benefit Formula of  2% at age 62; and  
c. Average of Three Highest Years’ Compensation. 

 
B. SOCIAL SECURITY  
 
All employees of the District participate in the Federal Social Security Program. Payroll deductions 
are taken from each employee's pay and matching contributions are made by the District. 
 
C. HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT ACCOUNT (HRA) 
 
An employee hired before July 1, 2022 and retiring after age 50, with 10 or more years of 
continuous employment, has the option of continuing on the District’s medical, dental and/or 
vision insurance plans using an HRA account that is funded with conversion of their sick leave 
hours as follows:  
 

1.   Using the current benefit plan year’s premium rates and a 5% projection for possible cost 
increases in subsequent years,  the District estimates the projected cost for the employee 
to pay 50% of the employee-only monthly premium for dental and/or vision coverage and 
50% of the employee-only monthly medical premium/s, with the District paying the 
remaining 50% of the employee-only dental and/or vision and employee-only monthly 
medical premium/s.  

228



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 28 of 36 
 

 
Following is an example of how the medical premium costs are shared between the 
retiree and District: 
 

 

TOTAL MONTHLY 
PREMIUM FOR 

KAISER MEDICAL  

RETIREE 
PAYS 

MONTHLY 

 DISTRICT  
PAYS 

MONTHLY  

RETIREE Only 
Coverage  $                    623.16  $        311.58   $          311.58  

RETIREE + One   $                 1,236.43  
  

$        924.85   $          311.58  

RETIREE + Family  $                 1,745.45   $    1,433.87   $          311.58  

 
2. The full amount as calculated in “1” above is the amount that will be transferred from the 

employee’s final sick leave balance to their HRA account, which will be used to make the 
monthly premium payments until the HRA account balance is depleted or the retiree or 
their covered spouse, if applicable, reaches Medicare eligibility.  
 
The following is an HRA example for an employee that retires in 2019 at age 60 with 1500 
hours of sick leave on the books and typical Medicare eligibility at age 65: 
 

 

1. Value of Total 1500 Sick 
Leave Hours at Retirement 

$67,500 1500 Hours x $45.00 (Employee’s Hourly Wage) 

2.  Premium Cost of Retiree + 
Spouse Coverage for Medical, 
Dental & Vision   

  
 
NOTE: Premium costs provided for example only, 
they do not represent actual rates   
 

2019 benefit year  $10,000 

+5% in 2020 $10,500 

+5% in 2021 $11,025 

+5% in 2022 $11,567.25 

+5%in 2023 $12,155.06 

3. Amount Deposited to HRA $55,256.31 
 

Estimated total cost for coverage to Medicare 
eligibility in 2023  

4. Amount of Sick Leave 
Remaining After Amount 
Deposited to HRA 

 
$12,243.69 

 
Calculation: $67,500-$55,256.31 

 
5. Hours Equivalent of 
Remaining Sick Leave  

 
 
272.08 Hours 

Calculation: $12,243.69/$45.00. 
*Eligible to cash out or convert to CalPERS service 
credit full remaining balance since less than 600 
hours max. in effect for 7/1/19-6/30/20    

6.  Cash out value or amount 
to be converted to CalPERS 
service credit 

 
$12,243.60 

 
Calculation: 272.08*$45.00 
 

229



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 29 of 36 
 

3. If a retiree’s HRA account balance is depleted before they become eligible for  Medicare, 
he/she can instead begin paying their share of the monthly premiums directly to the 
District in order to continue coverage under the District's medical, vision and/or dental 
insurance plans until the retiree or their spouse, if applicable, is eligible for  Medicare.   
 

4. Once a retiree and/or their covered spouse becomes eligible for Medicare, which makes 
them ineligible to continue on the District’s medical coverage, they are also no longer 
eligible to continue on the District’s dental and/or vision coverage. Instead, they will 
receive information on continuing their coverage/s using COBRA.    
 

5. Actual premium rates to be deducted from each retiree’s HRA will be updated as the 
actual rates are provided for each new plan year (January 1 – December 31). 
 

6. If applicable, any balance in the account when the retiree becomes eligible for Medicare 
or if they should die prior to becoming eligible for Medicare, will be available for the same 
use to the retiree’s covered eligible dependent(s) until they become eligible for Medicare 
or COBRA rights are exhausted, whichever comes first. If there is no covered eligible 
dependent(s), any unused balance shall be forfeited. 
 

7. If an employee has sick leave hours remaining after the mandatory contribution to the 
HRA  account as described above, OR if the employee chooses to not participate in the 
HRA, the employee has the choice of:  

 
a. Cashing out half of their remaining sick leave hours balance, up to 400 hours, 

whichever is less.   
 

b. Converting half of their remaining sick leave hours balance, up to the maximum of 400 
hour, to CalPERS service credit. If an employee wishes to elect this option, they must 
inform human resources before their final date of employment with the District.  

 
 

ARTICLE 11. EDUCATIONAL PLAN 
 
Unit members seeking participation in the educational plan must first obtain approval from the 
General Manager. The General Manager shall have the authorization to increase District 
contribution to the fund, at his/her discretion, throughout the remainder of the agreement.  
 
If, at any time, the education fund is depleted, the District shall inform the Association 
immediately, in writing, that funds are no longer available, to help employees prepare for the 
following semester.  
 
The funds set aside for the educational plan will not be used to replace existing funds for unit 
member certification and other job-related training.  
 

230



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 30 of 36 
 

An employee participating in the educational plan must receive a grade of “C” or better in each 
class in order to receive reimbursement.    
 
 

ARTICLE 12. LAYOFF PROCEDURES 
 
The District agrees to meet with the bargaining unit representatives at least 30 days prior to 
issuance of any layoff notices for the purpose of conferring over the impact and implementation 
of said layoffs and to discuss alternatives and options; however, the General Manager shall retain 
the final decision with respect to the classifications and number of employees to be laid off. 

 
A. The layoff process shall be administered  and employees selected for layoff as follows: 
 
  First:    Temporary employees 
  Second:  Probationary employees 
  Third:    Part-time employees 
  Fourth:   Regular employees   
 

1. Regular employees in classifications identified to be laid off will be laid off in order of 
seniority, with the employee with the least seniority laid off first. 
 

2. Whenever two or more employees have identical seniority in the affected classification, 
the order of layoff shall be determined by the General Manager on the basis of 
performance. 
 

3. In lieu of being laid off, regular employees have the right to demote to a lower vacant 
position with the District and for which the employee meets the minimum qualifications 
and is capable of performing the essential functions of the position.  

 
 

ARTICLE 13. USE OF DISTRICT VEHICLES 
 

Except as provided in this section, District vehicles may be used by employees only for conducting 
District business. Violations may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  
 
A. An employee who is assigned a District vehicle shall not allow any other individual, including 

District employees, to drive the vehicle for personal use.  
 

B. An employee may be granted limited personal use of a District vehicle upon first receiving 
approval by the General Manager or his designee.   

 
 

ARTICLE 14. DISCIPLINARY ACTION 
 

231



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 31 of 36 
 

Violations of FPUD'S Personnel Regulations, safety rules, criminal law, and/or actions which are 
insubordinate, flagrantly careless and/or incompetent, or otherwise prejudicial to the best 
interests of the District, will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  

 
While it is the District’s intent to take a progressive approach to disciplinary matters, progressive 
discipline is not required depending on the severity of the employee’s misconduct. 

 
SECTION 1 – DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS NOT SUBJECT TO NOTICE AND APPEAL PROCEDURES 
 
A. The following disciplinary actions may be taken to address an employee’s performance 

deficiencies and/or to address a violation as stated above:  
 

  1. Verbal counseling/warning 
 

  2. Written warning 
 

  3. Reassignment 
 

  4. Suspension without pay for up to 3 days 
 

SECTION 2 – DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS SUBJECT TO NOTICE AND APPEAL PROCEDURES 
 
A.  The following disciplinary actions require that written notice of intent to discipline be given 

to the employee, with an opportunity for the employee to appeal the proposed discipline: 
 
  1.  Suspension from duty without pay for 4 or more days 
  
  2.  Salary step reduction 
 
  3.  Demotion 
 
  4.  Termination from District employment 
 
B.  A written notice of intent to discipline shall be provided to the employee not less than 10 

business days prior to the effective date of the proposed disciplinary action and shall contain: 
 

1. Specific charges upon which action is based;  
 

2. The reasons why such action is being taken; 
 

3. Copies of the materials upon which the action is based; 
 

4. Information essential to give the employee a fair opportunity to answer the charges 
made; 

232



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 32 of 36 
 

 
5. A time and date no less than 5 business days after the notice of intent to discipline was 

provided to the employee by which the employee must submit a written response, 
including their intent to appeal the proposed discipline either in writing or at a Skelly 
meeting with the General Manager; and  

 
6. A tentative date and time for a Skelly meeting. 

 
C. Failure of the employee to respond to the notice of intent to discipline shall constitute a 

waiver by the employee of any right to appeal the proposed discipline and will result in the 
discipline being imposed as originally presented.  
 

D. If the employee or former employee is dissatisfied with the decision made by the General 
Manager or his designee, he may appeal in writing, to the President of the Board of Directors.  
This written notice of appeal shall be filed with the Secretary of the District no later than 
fifteen calendar days after the date of service of the notice of the General Manager's or his 
designee's decision, whichever is earlier.  Either party may also request a no-cost mediation 
through the State Mediation and Conciliation Service prior to the appeal hearing. Such 
request must be made by the employee within the same fifteen calendar day period noted 
above, or by the District within 15 calendar days of receiving notice of the employee’s written 
appeal. 

 
1. The Secretary shall schedule a hearing within thirty calendar days of the date of filing of 

the notice of appeal, and the Secretary shall notify the employee of the time and date 
fixed for the hearing.  This time can be extended for good cause. 
 

2. Upon conclusion of the hearing, the Board of Directors shall inform the employee, in 
writing, of their determination within 5 business days. This time can be extended for good 
cause.   
 

3. The Board of Directors has the power to reinstate a discharged employee and/or to 
impose less severe discipline on the employee.  The decision of the Board of Directors is 
final and cannot be appealed.  
 
 

ARTICLE 15. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 
A grievance shall be considered as any matter for which appeal is not elsewhere provided 
concerning a dispute about the interpretation or application of the terms or conditions contained 
in an MOU, the Personnel Rules, or a District policy or procedure regarding the same. 
Timeframes, as set forth throughout the grievance procedure, may be extended by mutual 
agreement between the parties.  
  

233



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 33 of 36 
 

SECTION 1 – PURPOSE 
 

To provide employees, either individually or through their association representative, with a  
means of obtaining further consideration of a complaint or issue after every reasonable effort 
has failed to resolve them through less formal discussion. 
 
SECTION 2 – PROCEDURE 
 

STEP 1. FIRST LEVEL OF REVIEW – IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR   
An employee should first try to get their complaint/issue settled informally through discussion 
with their immediate supervisor within 15 business days of the occurrence of the event resulting 
in the grievance. If the employee is not in agreement with the outcome of the discussion, they 
have the right to file a formal grievance, in writing, to the Operations Manager or Human 
Resources Manager within 10 business days after receiving the informal decision of their 
immediate supervisor.   

 
STEP 2. SECOND LEVEL OF REVIEW – OPERATIONS MANAGER OR HUMAN RESOURCES 
MANAGER  
If an employee does not receive a satisfactory answer or resolution from their immediate 
supervisor, he will be allowed 10 business days to refer the grievance, in writing, to the 
Operations Manager, in the case of field personnel, or to the Human Resources Manager in the 
case of office personnel.  The written grievance shall detail the facts upon which the grievance is 
based and be dated and signed by the employee.  After receiving the written grievance, the 
Operations Manager or Human Resources Manager will promptly schedule a meeting to provide 
the employee an opportunity to present his appeal personally.   The manager who met with the 
employee will provide a written response within 15 business days. If the employee does not agree 
with the decision reached, he/she may present the appeal in writing to the General Manager. 

 
STEP 3. THIRD LEVEL OF REVIEW – GENERAL MANAGER 
The General Manager or his/her designated representative should discuss the grievance with the 
employee, his/her representative, if any, and with other appropriate persons. The General 
Manager may designate any person or persons to advise them concerning the appeal. The 
General Manager shall render their decision in writing to the employee within 10 business days 
after receiving the appeal. The decision at this step shall be final and conclusive for all parties. 

 
SECTION 3 – GRIEVANCE AGAINST GENERAL MANAGER    

 
A grievance in which the General Manager is a party may be submitted to the President of the 
Board of Directors.  The written grievance shall detail the facts upon which the grievance is based 
and be dated and signed by the employee.  The grievance shall be submitted to the President of 
the Board of Directors within 15 business days of the event resulting in the grievance.  The Board 
of Directors will investigate the grievance and may hold a formal or informal hearing at its 
discretion, unless waived by the employee.  The Board of Directors shall submit its written 
decision within 10 business days.  The decision of the Board of Directors is final. 

234



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 34 of 36 
 

 
Following submission of the General Manager's answer, and before going to Section 4, Advisory 
Arbitration, matters which are unresolved shall be discussed at a meeting between the parties 
during which all pertinent facts and information will be reviewed in an effort to resolve the 
matter. 

 
STEP 4. ADVISORY ARBITRATION.  
Any dispute or grievance which has not been resolved by the grievance procedure may be 
submitted to advisory arbitration by the Association Representative or the District within ten 
working days, following its termination in the grievance procedure. The following Advisory 
Arbitration procedures shall be followed: 

 
A. The requesting party will notify the other party in writing of the matter to be arbitrated and 

the contract provision(s) allegedly violated. Within 5 working days of the receipt of this 
notice, the parties may agree upon an arbitrator, or a panel of 3 arbitrators trained in 
conducting grievance hearings. If agreement on an arbitrator cannot be reached, the State 
Department of Industrial Relations shall be requested by either or both parties to provide a 
list of 5 arbitrators. Both the District and the Association shall have the right to strike 2 names 
from the list. The party requesting the arbitration shall strike the first name; the other party 
shall then strike one name. The process will be repeated and the remaining person shall be 
the arbitrator.  
 

B. The arbitrator shall hear the case within 20 working days after the arbitrator has been 
selected. The arbitrator may make a written report of their findings to the Association and 
the District within 15 working days after the hearing is concluded. The arbitrator shall make 
rules of procedure. The decision of the arbitrator shall be advisory to the General Manager 
who shall render a final decision within 10 working days. The arbitrator shall have no 
authority to amend, alter, or modify this agreement or its terms and shall limit 
recommendations solely to the interpretation and application of this agreement.  

 
C. Each grievance or dispute will be submitted to a separately convened arbitration proceeding 

except when the District and the Association mutually agree to have more than one grievance 
or dispute submitted to the same arbitrator. 

 
D. The District and the Association shall share the expense of arbitrators and witnesses and shall 

share equally any other expenses, including those of a stenographer, if required by either 
party. If either party elects not to follow the advisory decision rendered by the arbitrator, 
that party shall pay the entire cost of the arbitration process, including the expense of the 
arbitrator, witnesses, and/or stenographer. 

 
SECTION 4 – GRIEVANCE POLICY EXCLUSIONS    
 
This grievance procedure shall not apply to: 
 

235



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 35 of 36 
 

1. The content of employee evaluations;  
2. Verbal warnings or counseling; 
3. Employee recognition programs; or  
4.  Any other subject unless covered in the expressed terms of this MOU. 

 
 

ARTICLE 16. HOLIDAY PARTY 
 

The District agrees to contribute $4,000 towards each Association-sponsored annual holiday 
party in each year of the current MOU; however, the District is not liable for any damages that 
may result from an employee’s voluntary attendance at the party.    
 
 

ARTICLE 17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT & SIGNATURES 
 

If any of this MOU is declared by legislative or judicial authority to be unlawful, unenforceable, 
or not in accordance with applicable provisions of Federal, State or Local laws or regulations, such 
part or provisions shall be suspended and superseded by such applicable law or regulations and 
the remainder of this MOU shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of this MOU. 
 
It is acknowledged that during negotiations which resulted in this MOU, FPUDEA had the 
unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to all proper 
subjects within the scope of representation.  Therefore, for the term of this agreement, FPUDEA 
agrees that FPUD shall not be obligated to meet and confer with respect to any subject or matter 
not specifically referred to or covered in this MOU.  All terms and conditions of employment not 
covered in this MOU shall continue to be subject to FPUD’s direction and control. 
 
Except as specifically restricted by an express provision of this MOU, FPUD retains and may 
exercise all management rights and prerogatives in its discretion. 
 
The terms and conditions of this MOU shall remain in effect during negotiations if the 
negotiations extend beyond June 30, 2027 until a new MOU is agreed upon or impasse is reached, 
whichever occurs first. 
 
It is agreed that the Personnel Regulations shall be changed to reflect the changes contained 
herein. 
 
 
 

 
 

________________________________   ___________________________ 
President, Board of Directors     FPUDEA  
 

236



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FPUDEA 
 

Page 36 of 36 
 

 
________________________________   ___________________________ 
Date        Date 
 

237



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 
 
 

between the 
 
 
 
 
 

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
 

and the 
 
 
 
 
 

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES’ ASSOCIATION 

 
 
 
 
 

July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2027 
 
 

  

238



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 2 of 29 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

ARTICLE 1. GENERAL ....................................................................................................................... 4 
SECTION 1 – PURPOSE ................................................................................................................ 4 

SECTION 2 – SCOPE ..................................................................................................................... 4 

SECTION 3 – GENERAL PROVISIONS............................................................................................ 4 

ARTICLE 2. DURATION OF AGREEMENT .......................................................................................... 5 
ARTICLE 3. WAGES .......................................................................................................................... 5 

SECTION 1 – WAGE INCREASES ................................................................................................... 5 

SECTION 2 – ADJUSTMENTS........................................................................................................ 5 

SECTION 3 – SALARY SCHEDULE ................................................................................................. 6 

ARTICLE 4. SERVICE ......................................................................................................................... 6 
SECTION 1 – FILLING OF VACANT POSITIONS ............................................................................. 7 

SECTION 2 – PROBATIONARY PERIOD ........................................................................................ 7 

SECTION 3 – NEPOTISM .............................................................................................................. 7 

SECTION 4 – PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS .............................................................................. 8 

SECTION 5 – CERTIFICATIONS/EDUCATION & PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS .......................... 8 

SECTION 6 – BILINGUAL PAY ..................................................................................................... 10 

SECTION 7 – OUT-OF-CLASS (OOC) PAY .................................................................................... 10 

SECTION 8 – CAR ALLOWANCE ................................................................................................. 10 

SECTION 9 – ANNUAL PHYSICAL REIMBURSEMENT ................................................................. 10 

ARTICLE 5. HOURS OF WORK ........................................................................................................ 10 
SECTION 1 – 9/80 SCHEDULE .................................................................................................... 11 

ARTICLE 6. RESIGNATIONS & RETIREMENTS ................................................................................. 11 
SECTION 1 – NOTIFICATION ...................................................................................................... 11 

SECTION 2 – NOTIFICATION BONUS ......................................................................................... 11 

SECTION 3 – RETIREMENT BONUS ............................................................................................ 11 

ARTICLE 7. LEAVES ........................................................................................................................ 11 
SECTION 1 – EXECUTIVE LEAVE ................................................................................................. 12 

SECTION 2 – VACATION ............................................................................................................ 12 

SECTION 3 – SICK LEAVE ............................................................................................................ 13 

SECTION 4 – BEREAVEMENT LEAVE .......................................................................................... 15 

SECTION 5 – JURY DUTY LEAVE ................................................................................................. 15 

SECTION 6 – MILITARY LEAVE ................................................................................................... 15 

SECTION 7 – SCHOOL OR CHILD CARE PROVIDER ACTIVITIES LEAVE ....................................... 16 

239



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 3 of 29 

 

SECTION 8 – FAILURE TO RETURN FROM LEAVE/JOB ABANDONMENT ................................... 17 

ARTICLE 8. HOLIDAYS .................................................................................................................... 17 
ARTICLE 9. BENEFITS ..................................................................................................................... 18 

SECTION 1 – HEALTH/MEDICAL ................................................................................................ 18 

SECTION 2 – DENTAL & VISION ................................................................................................. 19 

SECTION 3 – LIFE INSURANCE & ACCIDENTAL DEATH & DISMEMBERMENT (AD&D) .............. 19 

SECTION 4 – LONG TERM DISABILITY (LTD) INSURANCE .......................................................... 19 

SECTION 5 – FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNTS (FSA) ................................................................. 20 

SECTION 6 – STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE (SDI) & PAID FAMILY LEAVE ................................ 20 

SECTION 7 – DEFERRED COMPENSATION ................................................................................. 20 

SECTION 8 – RETIREMENT & SOCIAL SECURITY ........................................................................ 20 

ARTICLE 10. EDUCATIONAL PLAN ................................................................................................. 23 
ARTICLE 11. LAYOFF PROCEDURES ............................................................................................... 23 
ARTICLE 12. USE OF DISTRICT VEHICLES ....................................................................................... 24 
ARTICLE 13. DISCIPLINARY ACTION ............................................................................................... 24 

SECTION 1 – DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS NOT SUBJECT TO NOTICE AND APPEAL PROCEDURES .. 24 

SECTION 2 – DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS SUBJECT TO NOTICE AND APPEAL PROCEDURES .......... 25 

ARTICLE 14. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE........................................................................................... 26 
SECTION 1 – PURPOSE .............................................................................................................. 26 

SECTION 2 – PROCEDURE .......................................................................................................... 26 

SECTION 3 – GRIEVANCE AGAINST GENERAL MANAGER ......................................................... 27 

SECTION 4 – GRIEVANCE POLICY EXCLUSIONS ......................................................................... 28 

ARTICLE 15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT & SIGNATURES ........................................................................ 28 

 
 

240



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 4 of 29 

 

ARTICLE 1. GENERAL  
 

SECTION 1 – PURPOSE 
 

This agreement recognizes the Fallbrook Public Utility District Management Employees’ 
Association (FMEA) bargaining unit representatives as the majority representative of all regular, 
management, employees of the Fallbrook Public Utility District (FPUD) and represents the unit 
for matters within the scope of meet and confer. The bargaining unit representatives accept the 
duty of fair representation in meet and confer and under this agreement. 
 
SECTION 2 – SCOPE 
 
Meet and confer is limited to wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment, and 
shall not include any items not covered by this agreement or adopted by reference in this 
agreement or any subject preempted by federal or state law. Amendments to this agreement 
that are within the scope of meet and confer shall require prior meet and confer between the 
bargaining unit representatives and the District. 
 
SECTION 3 – GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
A. ASSOCIATION RECOGNITION 
 

1. FPUD formally recognizes FMEA as the representative for all employees in exempt 
classifications.   

 
2. The Association may designate a maximum of 7 total representatives. The District will 

recognize as representatives only those persons designated on the most recent list 
furnished by the Association. 

 
3. The District shall grant a representative reasonable release time when, at the request of 

an employee, the representative is investigating an alleged grievance and assisting in its 
written preparation and presentation.   

 
B. CONSTRUCTION 
 
In interpreting the language of this MOU, first the plain meaning of the language shall prevail. If 
the parties cannot agree on the plain meaning of the language, then the intent of the parties 
shall be considered; then the trade or industry usage of the language shall be considered. 
 
C. DISTRICT RIGHTS 
 
The rights of the District include, but are not limited to the exclusive right to determine the 
mission of its departments, commissions, committees, and boards; set standards of service; 
determine the procedures and standards of selection for employment and promotion; direct its 

241



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 5 of 29 

 

employees; take disciplinary action; relieve its employees from duty because of lack of work or 
for other legitimate reasons; maintain the efficiency of operations; determine the methods, 
means and personnel by which operations are to be conducted; set work schedules; determine 
the content of job classifications; take all necessary actions to carry out its mission in 
emergencies; and exercise complete control and discretion over its organization and the 
technology of performing its work. 
 
 

ARTICLE 2. DURATION OF AGREEMENT 
 

This MOU  is entered into by Fallbrook Public Utility District (FPUD) and the Fallbrook Public Utility 
District Management Employees’ Association (FMEA), as a mutual recommendation to the Board 
of Directors of FPUD of those wages, hours, and conditions of employment which are to be in 
effect at 12:00 a.m. on July 1, 2022 and will terminate at  11:59 p.m. on June 30,2027. 
  
At the expiration of this MOU, in whole or in part and in the absence of a new MOU, FMEA and 
the District agree to continue operating under the provisions of this MOU until such time as a 
new MOU is reached. 
 
 

ARTICLE 3. WAGES 
 

SECTION 1 – WAGE INCREASES 
 
Cost of living adjustments (COLA) during the five-year term shall be as follows: 
 

A. 5% effective the first pay period which includes July 1, 2022 
 

B. Starting July 1, 2023, through the end of the contract term, annual COLAs shall be tied to the 
published Bureau of Labor Statistics, San Diego Region Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the 12-
month period ending with March.  The COLA will be no less than 1% and no more than 5%. 
This means that no COLA over the course of this contract shall be below 1% or above 5%, 
regardless of CPI data. For example, if the 2023 CPI data shows a .5% annual inflation rate, 
the COLA for July 2023 shall be 1%. However, if the 2023 CPI data shows a 6.3% annual 
inflation, the COLA for July 2023 shall be capped at 5%. 

 
SECTION 2 – ADJUSTMENTS 
 
Based on the total compensation survey data, all management employees employed in the pay 
period that includes July 1, 2022 shall be placed at the salary step of the salary range/grade and 
market median range of the new salary table that is closest to their salary in effect at the time.   

 

242



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 6 of 29 

 

The Assistant General Manager/CFO, Engineering Manager and Field Services Manager positions 
that are more than 15% below their respective market median shall also receive a one-step or 
2.5% increase. 
 
SECTION 3 – SALARY SCHEDULE 
 
A. The District’s salary schedule includes 10 steps (A-J) within each range.  

 
B. Employees are eligible for their first salary step increase upon completion of 1 year of 

employment and an overall rating of at least a “meets expectations” on their first annual 
performance evaluation. Employees are eligible to receive subsequent step increases with 
each of their annual performance evaluations until they reach the top step of their position’s 
range.   

 
1. An employee who receives an overall rating of “does not meets” on their annual 

performance evaluation is not eligible for a salary-step increase.  
 

2. Merit increases tied to a management employee’s annual performance evaluation overall 
rating shall be as follows: 

 

 Meets  Expectations = 2.5%, one-step, increase 

 Above  Expectations  – 2.5%, one-step, increase, plus a one-time performance bonus 
annually of $1,500  

 Exceeds  Expectations – 5%, two-step, increase 
 

3. The General Manager must authorize an employee’s two-step salary increase for an 
overall annual performance evaluation rating of “exceeds expectations” before the 
performance evaluation is finalized and given to the employee.  
 

4. If a management employee is at their maximum salary step (J), they shall be eligible for a 
one-time payment (annually) for an overall performance evaluation rating of above or 
exceeds expectations, as follows: 
 

 $3,500 performance bonus for above expectations 

 $4,500 performance bonus for exceeds expectations 
 

5. A performance bonus is considered reportable compensation to CalPERS for Classic 
employees only; PEPRA employees may still receive the performance bonus, but it will 
not be reported to CalPERS. 

 
 

ARTICLE 4. SERVICE 
 

243



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 7 of 29 

 

SECTION 1 – FILLING OF VACANT POSITIONS  
 
Whenever a vacancy in a new or existing position occurs, preference in filling it shall be given to 
existing qualified District employees whenever possible.  
 
A. An employee promoted to a position with a higher pay range, but not within a position series 

(i.e., designated by “I/II/III”) shall be placed at the salary step within the higher pay range that 
results in the employee receiving no less than a 5% increase in the employee’s base hourly 
rate.  

 
1. For example, an employee promoted from a position at pay range 42, step B, to a position 

at pay range 43, shall be placed at step C of pay range 43, which is a 5% increase.  
 
B. An employee is eligible for promotion within a position series upon achieving the necessary 

certification/education/experience requirements as stated in the position’s job description. 
 

1. These types of promotions occur with an employee’s annual performance evaluation and 
their placement in the higher pay range shall be granted as described in Article 3. Section 
4-B.   
 

SECTION 2 – PROBATIONARY PERIOD  
 
A. All new-hires shall serve an initial probationary period of 6 months; however, a supervisor 

may, with approval of the General Manager, require an extension of an employee’s initial or 
promotional probationary period not to exceed 12 months total. 

 
B. During the initial probationary period, the employee may be rejected at any time, without 

the right to appeal. Upon successfully completing the initial probationary period, employees 
achieve regular employment status.  
 

C. Current District employees promoted to another position outside of their current position 
series (i.e., promotion to a different position altogether, not from a I to II level in the same 
position) shall serve a promotional probationary period of not less than 6 months. A 
promoted employee rejected during their promotional probationary period shall be 
reinstated to the position from which he/she was promoted, unless he/she is terminated for 
cause from the District. 

 
SECTION 3 – NEPOTISM 
 
The hiring of a current District employee’s relative is not permitted without the approval of the 
General Manager. A relative may only be hired if they do not work in the same department, they 
are not under the direct or indirect supervision of the other, and neither occupies a position 
which has influence over the other's employment, promotions, or salary administration.  A 

244



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 8 of 29 

 

relative is defined as a spouse, parent, child, sibling, grandparent, aunt/uncle, niece/nephew, 
cousin, mother/father-in-law, brother/sister-in-law, and domestic partners.  

 
SECTION 4 – PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS 

 
A. New employees will receive their first performance evaluation at 6 months; the second at the 

completion of 1 year; and each year thereafter on their employment anniversary date. 
   

B. If an employee is promoted to a job outside of their current position series (i.e., promotion 
to a different position altogether, not from a I to II level in the same position, such as a utility 
worker I to utility worker II), their performance  evaluation date will become the date of their 
promotion.   

 
C. An employee may appeal an overall performance rating of “does not meet expectations”  to 

the General Manager.   This appeal is not part of the grievance process and the decision of 
the General Manager is final.   

 
D. If an employee’s performance evaluation is more than 30 days overdue, the employee’s step 

increase, if applicable, shall be granted, retroactive to the date following the end of the 
evaluation rating period, pending their supervisor’s completion of the performance 
evaluation; however, it is also the employee’s responsibility to notify human resources 
if/when they do not receive their performance evaluation by the due date.     

 
E. If an employee is on a leave of absence in excess of four continuous weeks, their performance 

evaluation date will be extended for the same amount of time as the leave that was in excess 
of four weeks and that date will remain the annual performance evaluations date.   

 
SECTION 5 – CERTIFICATIONS/EDUCATION & PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS  

 
A. REQUIRED CERTIFICATIONS/EDUCATION 

 
Certification/education requirements are shown at the end of each job description.   
 
1. If an employee is initially hired at a “no certification/education” range as indicated in their 

job description, they will not be allowed to remain at the “no certification/education” 
range indefinitely.  

 
a. Upon hire, an employee hired at a “no certification/education” range will be provided 

with an employment agreement that clearly outlines the specific 
certification/education requirements of their position.  
 

b. The employee’s supervisor shall provide the employee with the information and 
training to prepare for the necessary certification exam/s or educational pursuits. 

 

245



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 9 of 29 

 

c. If the employee does not successfully achieve the minimum level of 
certification/education, beyond the “no certification/education” range, as required of 
their position, they will be subject to disciplinary action.   

 
2. Once an employee receives a required certification/education of a higher range, as 

indicated in their job description, they will be moved to their same step within the higher 
range, resulting in a 2.5% increase.  
 

3. If an employee fails to maintain the certification/education requirements for their 
position, they will be subject to disciplinary action. 

 
4. The District will reimburse employees for the cost of exams for certifications required of 

their position, as specifically stated in their job description. 
 

5. The District will reimburse employees for the cost of exam for certifications that are not 
required of their position but are determined by the General Manager to be relative to 
their job duties/responsibilities.  
 

6. If an employee does not successfully pass a certification exam within the first 2 attempts, 
the employee will be responsible for covering the cost/s for any additional attempts at 
passing the exam.   

 
7. Certification renewal fees will be paid by the District; however, employees are responsible 

for any late fees incurred.  
 

B. OPTIONAL CERTIFICATIONS 
 
The 2.5% “Optional Certification Pay” shall be eliminated. The District will work with the 
association to develop a list of all possible qualifying additional certifications based on certain 
job descriptions. The District’s management job descriptions shall be updated to reflect the 
removal of all “other” certifications from the positions’ respective pay range. 

 
1. Membership fees for certification and/or professional associations, as approved by the 

General Manager, will be paid by the District.  
 

2. Continuing education unit fees will be paid by the District and District time will be made 
available for the training of employees whose classifications require distribution and 
treatment certification.  In-house training required by the State for continuing education 
units will be on District time and paid by the District for all certifications.   
 

3. District approved training required by the State for continuing education units will be on 
District time and paid by the District for required certifications, as stated specifically in 
their job descriptions, or as determined by the General Manager to be related to their job 
duties/responsibilities.  

246



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 10 of 29 

 

 
C. CONTINUING EDUCATION BONUS 

 
When an employee receives an additional certification, based on the list of all possible 
qualifying additional certifications for their respective job description, or receives a college 
degree for those positions that do not require one, a one-time stipend bonus of $1,000 shall 
be paid to the employee, upon General Manager approval.  

 
SECTION 6 – BILINGUAL PAY 
 
A management employee shall receive $75.00 per pay period if they are bilingual 
(English/Spanish) and utilize both languages to communicate with the public. 
 
SECTION 7 – OUT-OF-CLASS (OOC) PAY 

 
When a supervisor/manager is going to be away from the office and unavailable for more than 
one day, he or she may request approval from the General Manager to have a qualified employee 
serve in an out-of-class assignment in the supervisor’s/manager’s absence.  
 
The employee approved for an OOC assignment shall  receive an additional 15% out-of-class pay.  
 
An employee serving in a partial out-of-class  assignment is only eligible to receive the additional 
15% out-of-class pay  for time actually worked, not  while on paid time off (e.g. vacation or sick 
leave) and/or for a District-observed paid holiday, unless they are called into work on a District-
observed paid holiday. 
 
Pursuant to Gov. Code 20630, an employee serving in a full out-of-class pay assignment shall 
receive the additional 15% out-of-class pay for all hours of compensation, including District-
observed holidays, sick or vacation leave, industrial disability leave, and compensatory time off.    
 
SECTION 8 – CAR ALLOWANCE 
 
The General Manager may provide certain management positions with a car allowance or use of 
a District vehicle. 
 
SECTION 9 – ANNUAL PHYSICAL REIMBURSEMENT 
 
Management employees are eligible to receive reimbursement for up to $500 each fiscal year for 
the cost of an annual physical that is not covered by the employee’s medical insurance.   

 
 

ARTICLE 5. HOURS OF WORK 
 

247



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 11 of 29 

 

SECTION 1 – 9/80 SCHEDULE 
 
The District’s 9/80 work schedule has two alternating teams, "blue" and "gold"  Supervisors will 
assign the employee to the team. All team changes will be approved by the General Manager. 
 
Under the  9/80 schedule,  assigned staff  shall work, in any two week pay period, 8 weekdays 
(Monday -  Thursday) for 9 hours each day, and 1 day (Friday) for 8 hours and off on the  alternate 
Friday.   
 
Some employees may not be eligible for the 9/80 work schedule due to District operational 
considerations, as determined by the supervisor and approved by the General Manager.   
 
An alternate work schedule may be considered by the General Manager for employees who 
prefer not to work the 9/80 schedule.   
 
 

ARTICLE 6. RESIGNATIONS & RETIREMENTS  
 
SECTION 1 – NOTIFICATION 
 
An employee wishing to resign or retire in good standing shall submit a written resignation at 
least 2 weeks prior to the effective date of resignation. The District will pay an employee for all 
hours worked and any applicable and available leave balances on the next regular payday 
following their resignation/retirement. 
 
SECTION 2 – NOTIFICATION BONUS 
 
A one-time payment of $500 shall be made to an employee upon receipt of their written 
notification of their pending resignation/retirement date if they provide the District with a 30-
day notice. A one-time payment of $1,000 shall be made to an employee upon receipt of their 
written notification of their pending resignation/retirement date if they provide the District with 
a minimum 90-day written notice of their pending resignation/retirement date. In either case, if 
the employee provides said notice, but resigns/retires before the end of the 30 or 90 days or if 
the rescind their notice of resignation/retirement, they will be required to directly repay the 
District for the bonus. 
 
SECTION 3 – RETIREMENT BONUS 
 
All employees having 10 or more years of continuous service with the District, upon retirement 
after age 62, shall be granted an additional one-month’s pay.  

 
 

ARTICLE 7. LEAVES 
 

248



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 12 of 29 

 

SECTION 1 – EXECUTIVE LEAVE 
 
A.  Management employees accrue 1.54 hours of executive leave per pay period, up to a 

maximum of 120 hours.   
 
B. Once an employee reaches the maximum accrual of 120 hours, they will stop accruing 

executive leave until their balance is below 120 hours.  
 
C.  Half (½) of an employee’s executive leave balance shall be cashed out upon voluntary 

termination or retirement; OR  
 

1.   Upon retirement, an employee may elect to contribute up to their entire executive leave 
balance to an HRA, pursuant to Article 9, Section 8-C. 

 
SECTION 2 – VACATION 

 
A. Each regular and probationary employee will accrue vacation leave as follows: 
 

1 through 5 years = 4.00 hours per pay period 
After 5 years = 4.62 hours per pay period effective on 5th anniversary 
After 10 years = 6.15 hours per pay period effective on 10th anniversary  
After 15 years = 7.69 hours per pay period effective on 15th anniversary  
After 19 years = 8.00 hours per pay period effective on the 20th anniversary 

 
B. The General Manager may grant a newly hired management employee a higher vacation 

accrual rate, up to a maximum of 8 hours per pay period.  
 
C.  If an employee’s last day of employment with the District falls within the middle of a pay 

period, their vacation leave hours accrued for that pay period will be prorated accordingly.  
 
D. Employees are allowed to accrue vacation leave up to a maximum of 248 hours.  
 

1. On December 31 of each year, an employee with vacation hour balance that exceeds 248 
hours will stop accruing until vacation leave is  used and their  balance is below 248 hours.  
 

2. When circumstances created by the District are beyond the control of the employee and 
make it impossible for the employee to use  vacation leave as described above to reduce 
their maximum accrued vacation hours, the General Manager may grant an extension to 
the maximum accrued hours allowed until such time that the employee is able to take the 
necessary vacation time off to reduce their balance.  

  
E. Use of Vacation Time 

 

249



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 13 of 29 

 

Any planned leave (vacation or comp time off) must be requested with as much notice as 
possible. Supervisors will grant requests based on the needs of the District. Requests shall 
not unreasonably be withheld or denied. 
 
An employee may elect to use accrued vacation for scheduled medical, dental or vision 
appointments, evaluations or associated activities if they have exhausted their sick leave 
balance. 

 
F.  Payout of Vacation Leave 

 
Employees who terminate their employment with the District shall be paid for all accrued 
and available vacation leave.  
 

G.  Sell Back of Unused Vacation Leave Hours  
  
      Employees may sell back unused vacation time under the following conditions: 
 

1. A minimum of 40 hours can be requested;  
 

2. The maximum of 80 hours can be requested;   
 

3. The employee must have taken at least 100 hours of vacation and/or executive leave 
within the previous 12 months.   

 
4. The employee must have a remaining balance of at least 80 hours of accrued vacation 

and/or executive leave after the sell back; and 
 

5. Employees must complete and submit to human resources a vacation leave sell back 
request form by the December deadline as established by human resources each year. 
 

 The sell back will occur in the following December. 

 Once an employee submits a request form, it cannot be modified for revoked, per the 
IRS regulations.  

 
SECTION 3 – SICK LEAVE 

 
A. Sick Leave Accrual  

 
Regular and probationary employees will accrue 3.69 hours of sick leave per pay period. 

 
B. Sick Leave Use 
 

Sick leave usage shall be allowed for the following qualifying reasons: 
 

250



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 14 of 29 

 

1. For the employee’s own illness or injury. 
 
2. For the employee’s own diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition; or 

preventative care, including medical and dental appointments. 
 

3. For the diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition or preventative care 
for an employee’s family member, including: parent, parent-in-law, child, spouse, 
domestic partner, grandparent, grandchild, or sibling. 
 

4. To obtain relief or services related to being the victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, 
or stalking, including the following, with appropriate certification of the need for such 
services: 
 

 A temporary restraining order or restraining order. 

 Other injunctive relief to help ensure the health, safety or welfare of themselves or 
their children. 

 To seek medical attention for injuries caused by domestic violence, sexual assault or 
stalking. 

 To obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, or rape crisis center as 
the result of an act of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 

 To obtain psychological counseling related to an experience of domestic violence, 
sexual assault, or stalking. 

 To participate in safety planning and other actions to increase safety from future 
domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, including temporary or permanent 
relocation. 

 
5. In accordance with California Kin Care Law, regular full-time employees may use up to ½ 

of their annual accrued total sick leave to care for a family member.  
 

6. Employees who terminate their employment with the District will be paid for 50% of 
unused sick leave, not to exceed payment for 400 hours.  
 

7. If an employee’s sick leave balance is exhausted, another paid leave (e.g. vacation, comp. 
time) will be used. 
 

8. A sick leave absence of more than 40 hours resulting from an employee’s non-work- 
related injury or illness will require that the employee submit a doctor’s note to human 
resources upon their return to work. 
 

9. Any suspected abuse of sick leave usage is subject to discipline, up to and including 
termination. 
 

C. Worker’s Compensation Illness or Injury 

251



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 15 of 29 

 

 
1. Pursuant to California Labor Code 4600, workers' comp will pay for time off for doctors' 

appointments that are required by the District or its insurance carrier as a result of a work-
related illness or injury. 
 

2. When an employee is injured on the job and, according to their physician, is able to return 
to work with temporary modifications to their job duties, the District will make every 
effort to place the employee in a modified assignment until he or she is released back to 
full duty. The nature of the assignment will depend on the physical restrictions of the 
employee as stated by the treating physician and the availability of a modified position in 
the employee’s normal department or another department that is consistent with the 
physical restrictions. An employee’s acceptance of a modified duty assignment, if 
available, will be mandatory. 

 
SECTION 4 – BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 
 
In the event of a death in the family, regular and probationary employees shall be eligible for up 
to 3 working days off with pay to attend the funeral or make funeral arrangements, subject to 
the following provisions: 

 
1. The relatives designated shall include child, parent, spouse, sibling, grandparent, 

grandchild, aunt/uncle, niece/nephew, cousin, and domestic partner. It shall also include 
“in-law” relatives and those relationships generally called "step." 
 

2. Bereavement leave is not compensable for days falling outside an employee's regular 
work schedule. 
 

3. All requests for bereavement leave shall be made in writing as soon as practical but in no 
event later than the first day back to work, and shall be subject to approval of the human 
resources manager.  

 
SECTION 5 – JURY DUTY LEAVE 

 
Employees shall be compensated at their base hourly rate of pay for serving jury duty during the 
employee’s regularly scheduled work hours. In order to be compensated for jury duty leave, the 
employee must submit to human resources a copy of their jury duty summons, along with their 
time-in/time-out tracking sheet as provided by the court. 

 
SECTION 6 – MILITARY LEAVE  
 
The administration of military leave shall conform to both state and federal laws including, but 
not limited to, the requirements of the California Military & Veterans Code and the federal 
Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA). 

 

252



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 16 of 29 

 

Such employee shall be entitled to the applicable leaves of absence and employment and 
reemployment rights and privileges provided by the Military & Veterans Code of the State of 
California and USERRA. The employee must provide reasonable advance notice of the need for 
Military Leave and must provide the District with a copy of all military orders. 

 
An employee ordered to active duty for training purposes in the U.S. armed forces, will be paid 
the difference between their District salary and the basic pay received for active military duty for 
a maximum of 10 working days per year.   

 
SECTION 7 – SCHOOL OR CHILD CARE PROVIDER ACTIVITIES LEAVE 
 
School or child care provider activities leave is the allowable use of the employee’s existing leave 
credits to attend school or child care provider activities; to enroll or reenroll a child in a school or 
with a licensed child care provider; or to address a school or child care provider emergency. 

 
A regular employee who is a parent, guardian, stepparent, foster parent or grandparent with 
custody, or who stands in loco parentis, of a child enrolled in grades K through 12 of a public or 
private school, or in a licensed child day care facility, is eligible for school or child care provider 
activities leave. 

 
An employee may use up to 40 hours of his/her existing vacation, sick leave, or compensatory 
time hours per calendar year, but not more than 8 hours in any single calendar month, regardless 
of the number of children the employee may have. The 8 hour per month limitation does not 
apply for leave to address a school or childcare provider emergency.  

 
A. If the employee does not have sufficient paid leave available, he/she shall be allowed to take 

unpaid personal leave. 
 

B. Employees are required to give 48 hours advance notice, unless it is a school or childcare 
provider emergency as indicated in below, of their desire to take school or child care provider 
activities leave. Advance notice of less than 48 hours may only be given with approval by the 
District.  

 
C. The District may also require that the employee provide documentation verifying 

participation in school or childcare provider activities. 
 

D. An emergency means that an employee’s child cannot remain in school or with a child care 
provider due to one of the following: 

 

 The school or child care provider has requested that the child be picked up, or has an 
attendance policy, excluding planned holidays, that prohibits the child from attending or 
requires the child be picked up from the school or child care provider; 

 Behavioral  or discipline problems; 

 Closure or unexpected unavailability of the school or child care provider, excluding 

253



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 17 of 29 

 

planned holidays; and/or 

 A natural disaster, including, but not limited to, fire, earthquake or flood. 
 
SECTION 8 – FAILURE TO RETURN FROM LEAVE/JOB ABANDONMENT  
 
Except as otherwise provided by law including, but not limited to, federal and state provisions 
related to return from military leave, failure by an employee to return to duty or notify the 
District of their intent to return to duty within 48 hours of the date he/she is scheduled to return 
from any type of leave shall be considered an automatic resignation and the employee shall be 
notified of his/her automatic resignation from District employment. The District will consider 
evidence of extenuating circumstances if it is submitted by the employee to the District within 
ten (10) calendar days of the postmark of the District notice. 

 
 
ARTICLE 8. HOLIDAYS 

 
A. ACTUAL HOLIDAY DATES 

 
 Following are the actual holiday dates, which may differ from the District’s observed holiday 

date, as described below in “B”:  
 
 New Year’s Day – January 1 
 Martin Luther King, Jr. Day – 3rd Monday in January 
 Presidents' Birthday – 3rd Monday in February 
 Memorial Day – Last Monday in May 
 Independence Day – July 4 
 Labor Day – 1st Monday in September 
 Veterans Day – November 11 
 Thanksgiving Day – 4th Thursday in November 
 Day after Thanksgiving – 4th Friday in November  
 Christmas Eve - December 24 
 Christmas Day – December 25 
 New Year’s Eve Day – December 31 

 
B. DISTRICT OBSERVED HOLIDAYS 

 
Any of the actual holiday dates listed in “A” above that fall on a Saturday shall be observed 
(i.e., District offices will be closed) on the preceding Friday. Any of the above holidays that 
fall on a Sunday shall be observed on the following Monday.  

 
C.  HOLIDAY PAY 

 

254



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 18 of 29 

 

An employee whose regularly scheduled workday falls on an actual holiday date as listed 
above in “A”, not the date that a holiday is observed, shall be paid for their actual hours 
worked, plus holiday pay for their regular hours for that day.  

 
1. For example, an employee on a 9/80 work schedule will receive 9 hours of holiday pay for 

an actual holiday date that falls on a Monday through Thursday, or 8 hours of holiday pay 
an actual holiday date that falls on their working Friday.  An employee that regularly works 
a 4/10 schedule shall receive 10 hours of holiday pay for an actual holiday date that falls 
on their regularly scheduled workday.   
 

2. For an employee on a 9/80 work schedule, when a holiday falls on their regular Friday off, 
the holiday will be observed and the employee will have the following Monday off. 
 

3. To be eligible for holiday pay, an employee must be in paid status in the in the pay period 
that includes the holiday.  
 
 

ARTICLE 9. BENEFITS 
 

SECTION 1 – HEALTH/MEDICAL  
 
A. ELIGIBILITY 

 
New regular full-time employees are eligible for health, dental and vision benefits on the first 
day of the month following their date of hire and upon proper application and acceptance, 
as set forth in the agreement between the District and ACWA/JPIA for the benefit plan year 
that begins January 1 and ends December 31 of each year. For the purpose of these benefits, 
full-time is defined as an employee who works at least 24 work hours per workweek.    

 
B. COVERAGE 
 

The cost of coverage for each health plan offered is provided in a premium rate sheet that is 
updated ahead of the start of each benefit plan year and provided to all employees during 
open enrollment. 

 
1. The District pays 100% of the Kaiser plus Chiropractic plan for each coverage level: 

employee only, employee plus one, employee plus family. The District also pays these 
same amounts towards the cost of any other plan and coverage level an employee selects.  
 
a. For example, if the Kaiser plus Chiropractic plan for employee-only coverage is $600 

per month and an employee selects a PPO option for employee-only coverage at a 
monthly cost of $900, the District would pay $600 and the employee would be 
responsible for the additional $300 per month.   
 

255



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 19 of 29 

 

C. COVERAGE TERMINATION 
 
An employee’s medical/dental/vision coverage will end on the last day of the month in which 
they are no longer employed by the District. For example, if an employee resigns on May 11, 
their coverage will end on May 31. 

 
Depending on the employee’s medical coverage and their last day of employment, additional 
premium deductions may be taken from their last paycheck in order to cover any remaining 
monthly “employee cost.”  

 
D. WAIVER OF HEALTH/MEDICAL COVERAGE  

 
Eligible employees who provide proof of coverage under another group health insurance 
plan may elect to waive District-provided health coverage and will receive $250 per month 
in lieu of health coverage.   

 
SECTION 2 – DENTAL & VISION  
 
The District provides dental and vision insurance and pays the full amount of the monthly 
premiums for all regular full-time employees and their eligible dependents. All eligible employees 
are required to enroll in the dental and vision plans for employee-only coverage. For the purpose 
of these benefits, full-time is defined as an employee who works at least 24 work hours per 
workweek.    
 
SECTION 3 – LIFE INSURANCE & ACCIDENTAL DEATH & DISMEMBERMENT (AD&D) 

 
The first day of the month following date of hire, an employee, upon proper application and 
acceptance by the insurance carrier, shall be covered under a group life insurance and AD&D 
plan. The District shall pay the full monthly premium costs for coverage.  
 
A. The benefit is equal to two times an employee’s base annual salary, rounded to the next 

higher $1,000, up to a maximum of $300,000.  
 

1. At age 65, but not age 70, benefit is 67% of the amount shown in “A” above. 
2. At age 70 or more, the amount of the insurance will be 45% of the amount shown in   “A” 

above. 
 

SECTION 4 – LONG TERM DISABILITY (LTD) INSURANCE 
 

The District shall pay the full monthly premium costs for employees’ LTD insurance coverage.   
Beginning on or as near to July 1, 2019 as is administratively possible and for the term of this 

agreement, the District-paid LTD benefit will change from a 66 
2/3 

% pre-tax benefit to a 60% post-
tax benefit, resulting in the District-paid monthly premiums being made after-tax and making the 

256



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 20 of 29 

 

actual LTD benefit tax-free. To accomplish this, each employee’s salary will be “grossed up” 
approximately 20% to off-set the amount of taxes the District will be paying for each employee. 
 
SECTION 5 – FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNTS (FSA)  
 
The District will maintain a voluntary FSA program in accordance with applicable IRS statutes to 
allow employees to pay for covered expenses using pre-tax dollars.  
 
SECTION 6 – STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE (SDI) & PAID FAMILY LEAVE 
 
Employees requested and the District implemented State Disability Insurance (SDI) at the 
employees’ expense. Participation is mandatory. The coordination of SDI or PFL (Paid Family 
Leave) payments with sick leave cannot exceed the employee’s regular weekly wage.  
Coordinating SDI payments with vacation leave does not affect your benefits.  The District 
requires that employees use two weeks of vacation prior to receiving PFL.  
 
SECTION 7 – DEFERRED COMPENSATION 
 
Effective July 1, 2022, the District’s matching contribution to a 401(a) plan for management 
employees who contribute at least an equal percentage to their individual 457(b) deferred 
compensation plan shall increase by .5% to 2.9% of the employee’s base salary.  
 
Effective July 1, 2023, the District’s matching contribution to a 401(a) plan for management 
employees who contribute at least an equal percentage to their individual 457(b) deferred 
compensation plan shall increase by .5% to 3.4% of the employee’s base salary for the remainder 
of the contract.  
 
SECTION 8 – RETIREMENT & SOCIAL SECURITY  
 
A. CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CalPERS) 
 

The District participates in the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS).  
 

1. Employees hired at the District before January 1, 2013 are considered “classic members” 
and contribute 8% of their salary, with the following provisions under the District’s 
contract with CalPERS: 

a. Pre-Retirement Option 2W Benefit; 
b. Retirement Benefit Formula of 2.5% at age 55; and 
c. Single Highest Year Final Compensation Option. 

 
2.  Employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 who are also “new members” will contribute 

50% of the normal cost established  by CalPERS pursuant to the Public Employees’ Pension 
Reform Act (PEPRA), with the following provisions under the District’s contract with 
CalPERS: 

257



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 21 of 29 

 

a. Pre-Retirement Option 2W Benefit; 
b. Retirement Benefit Formula of  2% at age 62; and  
c. Average of Three Highest Years’ Compensation. 

 
B. SOCIAL SECURITY  
 

All employees of the District participate in the Federal Social Security Program. Payroll 
deductions are taken from each employee's pay and matching contributions are made by the 
District. 

 
C. HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT ACCOUNT (HRA) 
 

An employee hired before July 1, 2022 and retiring after age 50, with 10 or more years of 
continuous employment, has the option of continuing on the District’s medical, dental and/or 
vision insurance plans using an HRA account that is funded with conversion of their sick leave 
hours as follows:  

 
1. Using the current benefit plan year’s premium rates and a 5% projection for possible cost 

increases in subsequent years,  the District estimates the projected cost for the employee 
to pay 50% of the employee-only monthly premium for dental and/or vision coverage and 
50% of the employee-only monthly medical premium/s, with the District paying the 
remaining 50% of the employee-only dental and/or vision and employee-only monthly 
medical premium/s.  
 
Following is an example of how the medical premium costs are shared between the 
retiree and District: 
 

 

TOTAL MONTHLY 
PREMIUM FOR 

KAISER MEDICAL  

RETIREE 
PAYS 

MONTHLY 

 DISTRICT  
PAYS 

MONTHLY  

RETIREE Only 
Coverage  $                    623.16  $        311.58   $          311.58  

RETIREE + One   $                 1,236.43  
  

$        924.85   $          311.58  

RETIREE + Family  $                 1,745.45   $    1,433.87   $          311.58  

 
 

2. The full amount as calculated in “1” above is the amount that will be transferred from the 
employee’s final sick leave balance to their HRA account, which will be used to make the 
monthly premium payments until the HRA account balance is depleted or the retiree or 
their covered spouse, if applicable, reaches Medicare eligibility.  
 

  

258



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 22 of 29 

 

The following is an HRA example for an employee that retires in 2019 at age 60 with 1500   
hours of sick leave on the books and typical Medicare eligibility at age 65: 

 

 
3. If a retiree’s HRA account balance is depleted before they become eligible for  Medicare, 

he/she can instead begin paying their share of the monthly premiums directly to the 
District in order to continue coverage under the District's medical, vision and/or dental 
insurance plans until the retiree or their spouse, if applicable, is eligible for  Medicare.   
 

4. Once a retiree and/or their covered spouse becomes eligible for Medicare, which makes 
them ineligible to continue on the District’s medical coverage, they are also no longer 
eligible to continue on the District’s dental and/or vision coverage. Instead, they will 
receive information on continuing their coverage/s using COBRA.    
 

5. Actual premium rates to be deducted from each retiree’s HRA will be updated as the 
actual rates are provided for each new plan year (January 1 – December 31). 
 

6. If applicable, any balance in the account when the retiree becomes eligible for Medicare 
or if they should die prior to becoming eligible for Medicare, will be available for the same 
use to the retiree’s covered eligible dependent(s) until they become eligible for Medicare 
or COBRA rights are exhausted, whichever comes first. If there is no covered eligible 
dependent(s), any unused balance shall be forfeited. 
 

1. Value of Total 1500 Sick 
Leave Hours at Retirement 

$67,500 1500 Hours x $45.00 (Employee’s Hourly Wage) 

2.  Premium Cost of Retiree + 
Spouse Coverage for Medical, 
Dental & Vision   

  
 
NOTE: Premium costs provided for example only, 
they do not represent actual rates   
 

2019 benefit year  $10,000 

+5% in 2020 $10,500 

+5% in 2021 $11,025 

+5% in 2022 $11,567.25 

+5%in 2023 $12,155.06 

3. Amount Deposited to HRA $55,256.31 
 

Estimated total cost for coverage to Medicare 
eligibility in 2023  

4. Amount of Sick Leave 
Remaining After Amount 
Deposited to HRA 

 
$12,243.69 

 
Calculation: $67,500-$55,256.31 

 
5. Hours Equivalent of 
Remaining Sick Leave  

 
 
272.08 Hours 

Calculation: $12,243.69/$45.00. 
*Eligible to cash out or convert to CalPERS service 
credit full remaining balance since less than 600 
hours max. in effect for 7/1/19-6/30/20    

6.  Cash out value or amount 
to be converted to CalPERS 
service credit 

 
$12,243.60 

 
Calculation: 272.08*$45.00 
 

259



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 23 of 29 

 

7. If an employee has sick leave hours remaining after the mandatory contribution to the 
HRA  account as described above, OR if the employee chooses to not participate in the 
HRA, the employee has the choice of:  

 
a. Cashing out half of their remaining sick leave hours balance, up to the maximum of 

400 hours, or all of their remaining balance, whichever is less.   
 

b. Converting half of their remaining sick leave hours balance, up to the maximum of 400 
hours to CalPERS service credit.  If an employee wishes to elect this option, they must 
inform human resources before their final date of employment with the District.  

 
 

ARTICLE 10. EDUCATIONAL PLAN 
 
Unit members seeking participation in the educational plan must first obtain approval from the 
General Manager. The General Manager shall have the authorization to increase District 
contribution to the fund, at his/her discretion, throughout the remainder of the agreement.  
 
If, at any time, the education fund is depleted, the District shall inform the Association 
immediately, in writing, that funds are no longer available, to help employees prepare for the 
following semester.  
 
The funds set aside for the educational plan will not be used to replace existing funds for unit 
member certification and other job-related training.  
 
An employee participating in the educational plan must receive a grade of “C” or better in each 
class in order to receive reimbursement.    
 
 

ARTICLE 11. LAYOFF PROCEDURES 
 
The District agrees to meet with the bargaining unit representatives at least 30 days prior to 
issuance of any layoff notices for the purpose of conferring over the impact and implementation 
of said layoffs and to discuss alternatives and options; however, the General Manager shall retain 
the final decision with respect to the classifications and number of employees to be laid off. 

 
A. The layoff process shall be administered  and employees selected for layoff as follows: 

 
  First:    Temporary employees 
  Second:  Probationary employees 
  Third:    Part-time employees 
  Fourth:   Regular employees   
 

260



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 24 of 29 

 

1. Regular employees in classifications identified to be laid off will be laid off in order of 
seniority, with the employee with the least seniority laid off first. 

 
2. Whenever two or more employees have identical seniority in the affected classification, 

the order of layoff shall be determined by the General Manager on the basis of 
performance. 

 
3. In lieu of being laid off, regular employees have the right to demote to a lower  vacant 

position with the District and for which the employee meets the minimum qualifications 
and is capable of performing the essential functions of the position.  

 
 

ARTICLE 12. USE OF DISTRICT VEHICLES 
 

Except as provided in this section, District vehicles may be used by employees only for conducting 
District business. Violations may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  
 
A. An employee who is assigned a District vehicle shall not allow any other individual, including 

District employees, to drive the vehicle for personal use.  
 

B. An employee may be granted limited personal use of a District vehicle upon first receiving 
approval by the General Manager or his designee.   

 
 

ARTICLE 13. DISCIPLINARY ACTION 
 
Violations of FPUD'S Personnel Regulations, safety rules, criminal law, and/or actions which are 
insubordinate, flagrantly careless and/or incompetent, or otherwise prejudicial to the best 
interests of the District, will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  

 
While it is the District’s intent to take a progressive approach to disciplinary matters, progressive 
discipline is not required depending on the severity of the employee’s misconduct. 

 
SECTION 1 – DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS NOT SUBJECT TO NOTICE AND APPEAL PROCEDURES 
 
A. The following disciplinary actions may be taken to address an employee’s performance 

deficiencies and/or to address a violation as stated above:  
 

1. Verbal counseling/warning 
 

2. Written warning 
 

3. Reassignment 
 

261



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 25 of 29 

 

4. Suspension without pay for up to 3 days 
 

SECTION 2 – DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS SUBJECT TO NOTICE AND APPEAL PROCEDURES 
 
A.  The following disciplinary actions require that written notice of intent to discipline be given 

to the employee, with an opportunity for the employee to appeal the proposed discipline: 
 

1. Suspension from duty without pay for 4 or more days 
 

2. Salary step reduction 
 

3. Demotion 
 

4. Termination from District employment 
 
B.  A written notice of intent to discipline shall be provided to the employee not less than 10 

business days prior to the effective date of the proposed disciplinary action and shall contain: 
 

1. Specific charges upon which action is based;  
 

2. The reasons why such action is being taken; 
 

3. Copies of the materials upon which the action is based; 
 

4. Information essential to give the employee a fair opportunity to answer the charges 
made; 
 

5. A time and date no less than 5 business days after the notice of intent to discipline was 
provided to the employee by which the employee must submit a written response, 
including their intent to appeal the proposed discipline either in writing or at a Skelly 
meeting with the General Manager; and  
 

6. A tentative date and time for a Skelly meeting. 
 

C. Failure of the employee to respond to the notice of intent to discipline shall constitute a 
waiver by the employee of any right to appeal the proposed discipline and will result in the 
discipline being imposed as originally presented.  
 

D. If the employee or former employee is dissatisfied with the decision made by the General 
Manager or his designee, he may appeal in writing, to the President of the Board of Directors.  
This written notice of appeal shall be filed with the Secretary of the District no later than 
fifteen calendar days after the date of service of the notice of the General Manager's or his 
designee's decision, whichever is earlier.  Either party may also request a no-cost mediation 
through the State Mediation and Conciliation Service prior to the appeal hearing. Such 

262



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 26 of 29 

 

request must be made by the employee within the same fifteen calendar day period noted 
above, or by the District within 15 calendar days of receiving notice of the employee’s written 
appeal. 

 
1. The Secretary shall schedule a hearing within thirty calendar days of the date of filing of 

the notice of appeal, and the Secretary shall notify the employee of the time and date 
fixed for the hearing.  This time can be extended for good cause. 
 

2. Upon conclusion of the hearing, the Board of Directors shall inform the employee, in 
writing, of their determination within 5 business days. This time can be extended for good 
cause.   
 

3. The Board of Directors has the power to reinstate a discharged employee and/or to 
impose less severe discipline on the employee.  The decision of the Board of Directors is 
final and cannot be appealed.  
 
 

ARTICLE 14. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 
A grievance shall be considered as any matter for which appeal is not elsewhere provided 
concerning a dispute about the interpretation or application of the terms or conditions contained 
in an MOU, the Personnel Rules, or a District policy or procedure regarding the same. 
Timeframes, as set forth throughout the grievance procedure, may be extended by mutual 
agreement between the parties.  
  
SECTION 1 – PURPOSE 
 

To provide employees, either individually or through their association representative, with a 
means of obtaining further consideration of a complaint or issue after every reasonable effort 
has failed to resolve them through less formal discussion. 
 
SECTION 2 – PROCEDURE 
 
STEP 1. FIRST LEVEL OF REVIEW - IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR   
An employee should first try to get their complaint/issue settled informally through discussion 
with their immediate supervisor within 15 business days of the occurrence of the event resulting 
in the grievance. If the employee is not in agreement with the outcome of the discussion, they 
have the right to file a formal grievance, in writing, to the Operations Manager or Human 
Resources Manager within 10 business days after receiving the informal decision of their 
immediate supervisor.   

 
STEP 2. SECOND LEVEL OF REVIEW – OPERATIONS MANAGER OR HUMAN RESOURCES 
MANAGER  

263



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 27 of 29 

 

If an employee does not receive a satisfactory answer or resolution from their immediate 
supervisor, he will be allowed 10 business days to refer the grievance, in writing, to the 
Operations Manager, in the case of field personnel, or to the Human Resources Manager in the 
case of office personnel. The written grievance shall detail the facts upon which the grievance is 
based and be dated and signed by the employee.  After receiving the written grievance, the 
Operations Manager or Human Resources Manager will promptly schedule a meeting to provide 
the employee an opportunity to present his appeal personally.   The manager who met with the 
employee will provide a written response within 15 business days. If the employee does not agree 
with the decision reached, he/she may present the appeal in writing to the General Manager. 

 
STEP 3. THIRD LEVEL OF REVIEW - GENERAL MANAGER 
The General Manager or his/her designated representative should discuss the grievance with the 
employee, his/her representative, if any, and with other appropriate persons. The General 
Manager may designate any person or persons to advise them concerning the appeal. The 
General Manager shall render their decision in writing to the employee within 10 business days 
after receiving the appeal. The decision at this step shall be final and conclusive for all parties. 

 
SECTION 3 – GRIEVANCE AGAINST GENERAL MANAGER 
 
A grievance in which the General Manager is a party may be submitted to the President of the 
Board of Directors.  The written grievance shall detail the facts upon which the grievance is based 
and be dated and signed by the employee.  The grievance shall be submitted to the President of 
the Board of Directors within 15 business days of the event resulting in the grievance.  The Board 
of Directors will investigate the grievance and may hold a formal or informal hearing at its 
discretion, unless waived by the employee.  The Board of Directors shall submit its written 
decision within 10 business days.  The decision of the Board of Directors is final. 
 
Following submission of the General Manager's answer, and before going to Section 4, Advisory 
Arbitration, matters which are unresolved shall be discussed at a meeting between the parties 
during which all pertinent facts and information will be reviewed in an effort to resolve the 
matter. 

 
STEP 4. ADVISORY ARBITRATION. 
Any dispute or grievance which has not been resolved by the grievance procedure may be 
submitted to advisory arbitration by the Association Representative or the District within ten 
working days, following its termination in the grievance procedure. The following Advisory 
Arbitration procedures shall be followed: 

 
A. The requesting party will notify the other party in writing of the matter to be arbitrated and 

the contract provision(s) allegedly violated. Within 5 working days of the receipt of this 
notice, the parties may agree upon an arbitrator, or a panel of 3 arbitrators trained in 
conducting grievance hearings. If agreement on an arbitrator cannot be reached, the State 
Department of Industrial Relations shall be requested by either or both parties to provide a 
list of 5 arbitrators. Both the District and the Association shall have the right to strike 2 names 

264



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 28 of 29 

 

from the list. The party requesting the arbitration shall strike the first name; the other party 
shall then strike one name. The process will be repeated and the remaining person shall be 
the arbitrator.  
 

B. The arbitrator shall hear the case within 20 working days after the arbitrator has been 
selected. The arbitrator may make a written report of their findings to the Association and 
the District within 15 working days after the hearing is concluded. The arbitrator shall make 
rules of procedure. The decision of the arbitrator shall be advisory to the General Manager 
who shall render a final decision within 10 working days. The arbitrator shall have no 
authority to amend, alter, or modify this agreement or its terms and shall limit 
recommendations solely to the interpretation and application of this agreement.  

 
C. Each grievance or dispute will be submitted to a separately convened arbitration proceeding 

except when the District and the Association mutually agree to have more than one grievance 
or dispute submitted to the same arbitrator. 

 
D. The District and the Association shall share the expense of arbitrators and witnesses and shall 

share equally any other expenses, including those of a stenographer, if required by either 
party. If either party elects not to follow the advisory decision rendered by the arbitrator, 
that party shall pay the entire cost of the arbitration process, including the expense of the 
arbitrator, witnesses, and/or stenographer. 

 
SECTION 4 – GRIEVANCE POLICY EXCLUSIONS 
 
This grievance procedure shall not apply to: 
 

1. The content of employee evaluations; 
2. Verbal warnings or counseling; 
3. Employee recognition programs; or  
4. Any other subject unless covered in the expressed terms of this MOU. 

 
 

ARTICLE 15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT & SIGNATURES 
 

If any of this MOU is declared by legislative or judicial authority to be unlawful, unenforceable, 
or not in accordance with applicable provisions of Federal, State or Local laws or regulations, such 
part or provisions shall be suspended and superseded by such applicable law or regulations and 
the remainder of this MOU shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of this MOU. 
 
It is acknowledged that during negotiations which resulted in this MOU, FMEA had the unlimited 
right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to all proper subjects within 
the scope of representation.  Therefore, for the term of this agreement, FMEA agrees that FPUD 
shall not be obligated to meet and confer with respect to any subject or matter not specifically 

265



MOU BETWEEN FPUD AND FMEA 
 

Page 29 of 29 

 

referred to or covered in this MOU.  All terms and conditions of employment not covered in this 
MOU shall continue to be subject to FPUD’s direction and control. 
 
Except as specifically restricted by an express provision of this MOU, FPUD retains and may 
exercise all management rights and prerogatives in its discretion. 
 
The terms and conditions of this MOU shall remain in effect during negotiations if the 
negotiations extend beyond June 30, 2027 until a new MOU is agreed upon or impasse is reached, 
whichever occurs first. 
 
It is agreed that the Personnel Regulations shall be changed to reflect the changes contained 
herein. 
 

 
 

________________________________   ___________________________ 
President, Board of Directors     FMEA  
 
 
________________________________   ___________________________ 
Date        Date 
 

266



S 
 M E M O  
 
TO:  Board of Directors  
FROM:   Personnel Committee 
DATE:   May 23, 2022 
SUBJECT:  Internship Program 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose 
 
To obtain approval to add a second paid intern to the District’s program.  
  
Summary 
 
Given the success of the internship program, we would like to expand it to also include 
a college intern, preferably a Fallbrook resident, to help increase the District’s 
community exposure.    
 
While the District’s current local high school intern will remain focused on supporting 
social media efforts, it is anticipated that the college intern position could potentially 
assist with a variety of projects and programs and provide support across different 
departments. 
 
Budgetary Impact 
 
The college intern would earn $16 - $21 per hour, depending on previous work 
experience, in order to remain competitive with other agencies that have similar 
programs in place.   
 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the Board approve the addition of a second intern to the program.   

 
 

267



T 
M E M O 

 

 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Kevin Collins, Purchasing/Warehouse/Fleet Supervisor 
DATE: May 23, 2022 
SUBJECT: Request for Approval to award one-time paving project to Asphalt & 

Concrete Enterprises, Inc. 
_____________________________________________________________________

Description 
 
This request is for the Board to approve a one-time paving project to Asphalt & 
Concrete Enterprises, Inc. 
 
Since July 2021, numerous valve replacements and leak repairs have occurred in 
various areas, all requiring a permanent paving solution. Currently a total of 22 patches 
require permanent paving. An RFP was issued for a total lump sum one-time paving 
job. Asphalt & Concrete Enterprises, Inc. was the lowest responsive and responsible 
bidder. 
 
Purpose 
 
As a result of leak repairs and valve replacements throughout our service area, a total 
of 22 sites have been temporarily patched with cold mix asphalt. In order to fully 
complete the repairs, the cold mix will need to be replaced with permanent hot mix. The 
expectation was for FPUD staff to complete smaller site repairs internally to help 
alleviate the rising cost of paving; however, this has not been possible due to additional 
obligations throughout the year and staffing shortages.  
 
On April 21st, 2022, an RFP was submitted to 10 paving contractors and staff received 
2 responses. 
 
Budgetary Impact 
 
Paving costs for leak repairs are budgeted out of operating expenses, with a total 
budget of $100,000. Paving for valve replacements is budgeted out of the valve 
replacement CIP, which has a total budget of $500,000.  
 
Of the $100,000 in operating expenses, a total of $80,000 has been spent, leaving a 
balance of $20,000. Of the $500,000 in the valve replacement CIP, a total of $340,000 
has been spent year-to-date, leaving a balance of $160,000. 
 
For this paving project, of the $52,800 bid by Asphalt & Concrete Enterprises, Inc., 
$34,000 will be charged to CIP and $18,800 will be charged to operating expenses, 
leaving a balance of $126,000 in the valve replacement CIP and $1,200 in the 
operating budget.  

268



 
Recommended Action 
 
That the Board approve a one-time paving project to Asphalt & Concrete Enterprises, 
Inc. for $52,800.00 

269



San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) Report    May 2022 

 

1. MWD Issues 

 

MWD recently had a state audit completed relative to specific ethics and Equal Employment 

Opportunity Commission (EEOC).  The audit identified some areas that needed to be addressed 

in the organization.  The audit is available at: 

 

https://www.auditor.ca.gov/reports/2021-104/index.html 

 

There were some key findings in the report that could be applicable to public agencies and 

especially large public agencies with large governing boards. 

 

I wrote the attached letter to SDCWA to suggest we review some of the findings as they could 

pertain to SDCWA and ensure we have safeguards in place.  The response I received is also 

attached, but it was not in favor of my suggestions.  

 

 

2. Special Agricultural Water Rates (SAWR) 

SDCWA has indicated they will further review the current methodology they use in which we must 

allocate our local supply to SAWR customers as part of the rate setting process. 

3. Detachment 

LAFCO had made an assessment that the detachment process would be exempt under CEQA.  

SDCWA did not agree with this assessment.  They wrote the attached letters to LAFCO on this 

subject.  LAFCO’s responses are also attached. 

4. Key Upcoming Issues 

 

Some key issues for the upcoming year include: 

 Drought messaging and implementation of governor’s drought restrictions. 

 Fully understanding the use of consultants and lobbyist within San Diego County. 

 Continuing the evaluation of potential changes to the existing rate structure 

 Getting an update on the next phase of the regional conveyance study that was approved 

by the Board and developing a plan to fund millions in additional project work if the 

project continues to be pursued. 

270

https://www.auditor.ca.gov/reports/2021-104/index.html


 

 

 

 

 

990 East Mission Road 

Fallbrook, California 

92028-2232 

www.fpud.com 

(760) 728-1125 

 

 

Board of Directors 

 

Dave Baxter 

Division 1 

 

Ken Endter 

Division 2 

 

Jennifer DeMeo 

Division 3 

 

Don McDougal 

Division 4 

 

Charley Wolk 

Division 5 

 

 

Staff 

 

Jack Bebee 

General Manager 

 

David Shank 

Assistant General Manager/ 

Chief Financial Officer 

 

Lauren Eckert 

Executive Assistant/ 

Board Secretary  

 

General Counsel 

 

Paula de Sousa 

Best Best & Krieger 

  

May 12, 2022 
 
 
 
Dear Chair Croucher,  
 
I appreciate your willingness to serve in a leadership role at San Diego County 
Water Authority (SDCWA). I understand the role is very time consuming and 
has multiple competing challenges with limited resources.  I also appreciate you 
putting together the Board workshop and preparing the summary that was 
presented at the April 20th, 2022 regular Board meeting.  One of the items listed 
for evaluation by the ad-hoc committee to be led by Director Hogan was: 
 

“Process for the review of complaints of ethical violations by staff 
and/or Board members” 

 
I think the inclusion of this item by the Board Chair is very insightful to ensure 
the organization has safeguards in place to proactively address potential ethics 
or Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) issues.  The recent state 
audit of the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD), which 
came about in a large part from efforts by SDCWA delegates highlights some of 
the potential failures that can happen without proper application of ethics and 
organizational safeguards in a large public organization.   
 
Many of the issues that were discovered through the independent state audit 
of MWD would likely never have been documented publically without the 
efforts of the SDCWA delegates.  There are some important take-always from 
this audit that we may want to consider as it pertains to SDCWA.  While it may 
be none of the types of issues that were identified in the MWD audit also have 
occurred at SDCWA, the structures and functions of the organizations are 
similar so there is a strong potential for future similar issues without similar 
safeguards in place.   
 
It is also important to identify that even with an ethics office there were some 
challenges with independent investigations due to the strong role of the 
General Counsel and Board Chair relative to the collective oversight role of the 
Board. If we don’t look at addressing how the fundamental organizational 
structure led to some of the problems at MWD then we are instead just hoping 
that the individuals involved in the leadership of SDCWA will always just be 
naturally more ethical than those at MWD and that these same issue will never 
occur at SDCWA.  
 
I’m hopeful that the committee assigned to address this item can take a 
broader look at the ethics concerns as identified by the SDCWA Board Chair.  
Some questions that I have as a Board member relative to this topic I was 
hoping the committee could help answer are: 

271

http://www.fpud.com/


 Who is the lead in investigating ethics complaints at SDCWA for both internal and external 

complaints?  Is it the General Counsel? 

 What if there is an ethics complaint about the General Counsel or General Manager? Who 

addresses it? 

 Does SDCWA have a documented ethics policy?  

 Is staff aware of the ethics policy and how to file an ethics complaint? 

 How does the Board ensure there is no retaliation against staff or individual Board members for 

ethics or EEOC complaints? 

 Have there been any internal or external ethics or EEOC complaints filed with SDCWA over the 

last year? 

 Does staff regularly report ethics or EEOC complaints to the Board? 

 What safeguards are in place to ensure activities conducted by consultants under the umbrella of 

closed session are within ethical norms of a public agency? 

 
Thanks for your consideration on this important topic. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 

 
 

Jack Bebee 
 
Cc: Director Mike Hogan 
 
 

272



273



274



 
 

Administration 
Keene Simonds, Executive Officer 
2550 Fifth Avenue, Suite 725  
San Diego, California 92103‐6624 
T  619.321.3380   F  619.404.6508 
www.sdlafco.org 
lafco@sdcounty.ca.gov 

Chair Jim Desmond 
County of San Diego  

Joel Anderson 
County of San Diego  

Nora Vargas, Alt. 
County of San Diego  

San Diego County  
Local Agency Formation Commission 
Regional Service Planning | Subdivision of the State of California

Jo MacKenzie 
Vista Irrigation  

Barry Willis  
Alpine Fire Protection  

David A. Drake, Alt. 
Rincon del Diablo 

Vice Chair Paul McNamara  
City of Escondido  

Mary Casillas Salas 
City of Chula Vista  

Kristi Becker, Alt. 
City of Solona Beach  

Andy Vanderlaan 
General Public  

Harry Mathis, Alt. 
General Public  

Chris Cate 
City of San Diego  

Marni von Wilpert, Alt.  
City of San Diego  

May 5, 2022 

Delivered by Electronic Mail: 
Mark J. Hattam, General Counsel 
San Diego County Water Authority 
4677 Overland Avenue 
San Diego, California 92123‐1233 
mark.hattam@sdcwa.org  

SUBJECT:  Response to April 27, 2022 Letter  

Mr. Hattam:  

I write in response to your letter dated April 27, 2022 letter regarding my April 15, 2022 e‐mail 
to Fallbrook Public Utility District and Rainbow Municipal Water District  related  to  steps 
remaining to complete the administrative reviews of their detachment applications.   You 
take  expanded  issue with my  statement  that  it  initially  appears  the Class  20  exemption 
determined and filed by Fallbrook and Rainbow as the  lead agencies under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) applies.  Your arguments are misplaced.    

Consider the following. 

 San Diego County Water Authority did not challenge the two notices of exemption
that  Fallbrook  and  Rainbow  filed  in  conjunction  with  initiating  the  detachment
applications with LAFCO.

 Otay Water District did challenge the two notices of exemption, but LAFCO was not
a  party  to  either  action.    LAFCO  was  also  not  a  signatory  to  the  stipulated
judgments.     LAFCO  has  not  acquiesced  to  their  enforceability  to  alter  the
Commission’s duties and discretions as a  responsible agency under CEQA.  Staff  is
aware of no authority that a stipulated  judgment  in an action to which LAFCO was
not a party could, by  its express terms, purport to  limit LAFCO’s discretion.   If you
have authority to the contrary, please share and staff will consider it.

275



San Diego LAFCO  
May 5, 2022  
Letter to Mark Hattam 
 

 

2 | P a g e  

 

 Regardless of whether, as CEQA permits, LAFCO as a responsible agency relies on the 
Class 20 exemption found by the two applying agencies, I made it clear staff remains 
open to revisiting the initial position as the administrative review process continues.      

 
Your letter’s strident tone and misstatements of the facts and law are counterproductive.  
 
Proceeding forward, LAFCO staff will continue to process the applications and fully consider 
all public comments, including those from County Water Authority.  However, that staff may 
disagree with some of County Water Authority’s comments or positions does not mean we 
are ignoring them.   To the contrary, we have gone to great lengths to ensure all affected 
agencies  and  other  interested  parties  have  ample  opportunity  to  communicate  their 
concerns and comments to inform staff's evaluation and ultimate report to the Commission, 
your accusatory tone notwithstanding.  
 
Respectfully, 

 
Keene Simonds 
Executive Officer  
 
 
cc via email: 
 
Commissioners 
Holly Whatley, Commission Counsel  
Aleks Giragosian, Deputy Commission Counsel  
Priscilla Allen, Analyst  
Adam Wilson, Consultant and Ad Hoc Moderator  
Sandra L. Kerl, General Manager, County Water Authority 
Claire Collins, Counsel, San Diego County Water Authority  
Jack Bebee, General Manager, Fallbrook PUD  
Paula C. P. de Sousa, Counsel, Fallbrook PUD  
Nick Kanetis, Deputy General Manager, Eastern MWD  
Tom Kennedy, General Manager, Rainbow MWD  
Alfred Smith, Counsel, Rainbow MWD  
Bill Pellman, Special Counsel, Rainbow MWD 
County Water Authority Board of Directors 
 
enclosures: 
 
1. Mark Hattman Letter, Dated April 27, 2022 
2. Keene Simonds Email, Dated April 15, 2022 

276



�

�

�����

����

���������	��
�������
���
�����������������	������������  ������!��"��#��$����%�&��!���#���%�'���!�����$�����������((
�'� �)�������	���������(��!��"��#�	�$��*�+
,��-./����0�1
�023456789.���"�!�������������  ������������:��;��!��������������� ��)���<�!���� �������+(� ����%������=!��>�?�!���'!��>���@A��B���)����<�!���%����!�����!�������������&�'$����!  �!���?��@��#���	�!����)���%����!@������������������#!����#�$�C�A��;��!�������!���>��� �%�)���A��D����!����)���������%����!���������)���<�!���>� ����%����$�C�����!�@�	�!���?����������>��� �%�����!�)	������!����:�� E�FB����� %��!���!%������!�����)������������>��)�������!����������� ��?!���?��)����)��������� ���G������������:�$��%�� ��!��"��#�H�I!���%�$������J;"H�!���$��%�� �K�?!%A��L)���?��@�?����>������>%�!�����D���?��@��#�#�����M���	�N��!�	�����)	�!���&%��!O�!��������������%������?!%AP��QR�STUR�VWRUXYZ[\]�̂Y_R̀�_ST_�YZW�aRV_RbcRW�dede�fR[VŶ[R�̀R̂Y_R̀�_SR�R[_XbT_R̀�gX̂T̂hXT\�XbVTh_[�Ŷ�RThS�Yg�YZW�bRbcRW�TiR̂hXR[j��aRR�fR[VŶ[Rk�VVjlm�R_�[Rnj��QR�Yg�hYZW[R�oR�oX\\�VWYUX̀R�T̂]�T̀ X̀_XŶT\�X̂gYWbT_XŶ�_ST_�X[�̂RhR[[TW]�YW�SR\VgZ\�_Y�_SR�WRUXRo�VWYhR[[�]YZ�V\T̂�_Y�hŶ Z̀h_j��E�F��!��!����������#�p������  q����!��������)��$����%�;!�������)����%A��L)���?��@�?����>������>%��)�����D���?��@��#�#�����!��������������%������?!%AP��rSR�ZV[�T̂ �̀̀Yô[�Yg�oT_RW�YẀRW[�c]�YZW�bRbcRW�TiR̂hXR[�TWR�̂Y_�_SR�[ZcsRh_�Yg�T̂]�TVV\XhT_XŶ[�YW�X[[ZR[�VR̂ X̀̂i�cRgYWR�tuvwxk�TWR�̂Y_�WR\RUT̂_�T̂ �̀_SRWRgYWR�[SYZ\̀�̂Y_�iZX̀R�T̂]�tuvwx�̀RhX[XŶybTzX̂i�SRWRj��fTX̂cYo�T̂ �̀vT\\cWYYz�[XbV\]�bTzR�_SR�{WY\\yYgg|�TWiZbR̂_�T[�T�[_WTo�bT̂�_Y�̀Rg\Rh_�T__R̂_XŶ�gWYb�_SR�WRT\�X[[ZR�oSXhS�X[�_SR�gX̂T̂hXT\�XbVTh_[�Yg�_SRXW�Yô�TVV\XhT_XŶ[j��QR�STUR�WRVRT_R̀\]�̀R[hWXcR̀�_Y�tuvwx�_SR�[Zc[_T̂_XUR�̀XggRWR̂hR[�cR_oRR̂�{WY\\�Ygg|�T̂ �̀̀R_ThSbR̂_�X̂�_SR�hŶ_R}_�Yg�WRT\yoYW\̀�oT_RW�bT̂TiRbR̂_�T̂ �̀gX̂T̂hXT\�V\T̂ X̂̂ik�T̂ �̀oYZ\̀�TVVWRhXT_R�Ẑ R̀W[_T̂ X̀̂i�_SR�VWRbX[R�ZVŶ�oSXhS�]YZW�tuvwx�VWYhR[[�oX\\�cR�cT[R̀j��QR�oX\\�Yg�hYZW[R�VWYUX̀R�T̂]�T̀ X̀_XŶT\�X̂gYWbT_XŶ�_ST_�X[�̂RhR[[TW]�YW�SR\VgZ\�_Y�_SR�WRUXRo�VWYhR[[�]YZ�V\T̂�_Y�hŶ Z̀h_A���
277



�����������	
���
������������������������������
����	�
���
����������
����������� ��!����
����"#$�%��!�
�
���������!���%��
&'(�����������%!���
���

�)*�&����+���
��&�!�
������	�#�
��
��"+,-�
!�&�	������
�'��!��
���
��
��
����	.����
�����	�
�/&�
��%�
�������	����"#$���
���
��!�
�%��0. ��12�3452�4672489�:7;5<828�<=>;7?4@<;=�@;�ABCDE�82FG7<H<=I�3;J�@32�K1L�5;@<=I�7<I3@F�J<66�H2�G34=I28�4F�H2@J22=�@32�14@27�BM@3;7<@9�4=8�N4F@27=O��P22�Q2F:;=F2R�::O�ST�2@�F2UO��12�J<66�46F;�8;MH62VG32GW�4=9�<=>;7?4@<;=�K1L�:7;5<82FR�46@3;MI3�J2�3452�=;�724F;=�@;�H26<252�<@�J<66�H2�8<>>272=@�;7�<=G;=F<F@2=@�J<@3�@32�<=>;7?4@<;=�J2�3452�4672489�:7;5<828.��X;J2527R�9;M7�<=UM<79�8;2F�=;@�48872FF�@32�7246�<FFM2R�J3<G3�<F�@32�89=4?<G�:;6<@<G46�F<@M4@<;=�4@�K1LR�;=2�:47@�;>�J3<G3�<F�@32�6;=IF@4=8<=I�8<72G@�48527F<@9�;>�N4F@27=YF�624827F3<:�;=�@32�K1L�Z;478�4I4<=F@�P4=�L<2I;�D;M=@9�<=@272F@FO[����������		
�

���������
����������
�����!��\���,�����
!�&�	������
�'��!��
���
��
��
����	.���������������!��,�����+���
��
��
�%�
�
������
���
��!�
�%��0���	���������!�
�����
�
��0
����
�������������!�
���
���
���'
�
������
 ���	������!���
���
��
����������'�
�����. ��EM7�Q2F:;=F2�:7;5<828�2]@2=F<52�82@4<6�;=�@3<F�FMĤ2G@R�46F;�48872FF28�<=��=M?27;MF�62@@27F�J2�3452�J7<@@2=�FMHF2UM2=@69O��12�6;;W�>;7J478�@;�@32�14@27?4F@27YF�G;??2=@FR�4=8�J2�J<66�:7;5<82�4=9�488<@<;=46�<=>;7?4@<;=�@34@�<F�=2G2FF479�;7�326:>M6�@;�9;M7�725<2J�:7;G2FFO��_=�488<@<;=R�3272�<F�>M7@327�M:84@28�84@4�F3;J<=I�?4=9�?;=@3F�<=�à̀[V̀̀ �J3272�bPB�@724@28�J4@27�J4F�:7;5<828�@;�Q4<=H;J�4=8�C466H7;;WR�466�;>�J3<G3�c�<>�82@4G328�c�J;M68�3452�H22=�2]@74�82?4=8�;=�K1LR�4=8�@3MF�;=�@32�P@4@2�14@27�d7;̂2G@e��f4=O�̀à[�VV�D1B�H;MI3@�̀gh�BC�;>�K1L�@724@28�J4@27R�C466H7;;WiQ4<=H;J�H;MI3@�[R[Tg�BC�;>�D1B�bPB�J4@27R�?24=<=I�Tg̀�BC�;>�2]@74�82?4=8�;=�K1L�<>�82@4G328O����C2HO�̀à[�VV�D1B�H;MI3@�jST�BC�;>�K1L�@724@28�J4@27R�C466H7;;WiQ4<=H;J�H;MI3@�[R̀aj�BC�;>�D1B�bPB�J4@27R�?24=<=I�Tjk�BC�;>�2]@74�82?4=8�;=�K1L�<>�82@4G328O��K47G3�̀à[�VV�D1B�H;MI3@�T�BC�;>�K1L�@724@28�J4@27R�C466H7;;WiQ4<=H;J�H;MI3@�[R̀kk�BC�;>�D1B�bPB�J4@27R�?24=<=I�[R̀lh�BC�;>�2]@74�82?4=8�;=�K1L�<>�82@4G328O��L2G2?H27�̀à[�VV�D1B�H;MI3@�̀�BC�;>�K1L�@724@28�J4@27R�C466H7;;WiQ4<=H;J�H;MI3@�[RajS�BC�;>�D1B�bPB�J4@27R�?24=<=I�[Rajl�BC�;>�2]@74�82?4=8�;=�K1L�<>�82@4G328O�� �m�n����
����m���������!��*�����
�����������&	���
��

&�	���
���!����
���
�����"+,�����	�����!�����
����	�

!���!�
������	�����
�������
��
��
������
���
&
�������
���	��/&���'���%�
0������)o���
�����mpm�q�)��.���-�)�&	���o���
�-.���������������!�
����	���
���!��
������&	���
�	���
����	��!������&
�
����%�����!����!��
���������	�������	���
�����
��������
��
�����'��!��!p
��0����"+,���������
�����%����
�
��!������&

�	������m���4=8�@32�;::;7@M=<@9�>;7�488<@<;=46�<=@27>272=G2�F@<66�2]<F@FO ��)�&	���o���
������.�rr-.�����������������!���&	���o���
����&�	��!���%!����
�������%�
�/&�
�
��!����!��
��������������
������	����	��������	��
��������������������&������"+,s
�t���
���*�&�
�����	���
���
��
��!��
��o��	��o���
	��@32�K1L�H;478�?2?H27�72:72F2=@<=I�N4F@27=��������
��
������ �����
��
�	�%��!���	�����&����	��!����!��
�������s
�%�
0�����%�������
���������%!��!��
��&'������	��������	���
��
�
����������������,�����*�&���������!�u�%����
.��"
.�o���
	�����
�
�����%��!�#�
��
�s
����
�
������	��

�����������,�����*�&��������
�
�
��
�	������	�����&
�o�
���
�������	������������������
��"
.�u�%����
�����������!��!�	����0�	������	�����������
��������������%
����
s
�����
���.�$!����!��
�������
���&�	��!����!��������%�
�����
&'
��������	��'&��"
.�o���
	���	��!��t���
���*�&�
������
���
�����������	��!��
����
�!������ �����
������!������!����!��
�������
s
������&
���.�)�&	���o���
������.�r�-.���
�
����	�
������	������u�v*n������
�����	���
���
����������������'������
����
�������
�	����

��������������

��
��'�����	�'���	�
��!����%����"+,��%��!�������&
������������
��
�����
!�
������!������.��$!�
���
���!��:74G@<G46�<FFM2F�u�v*n����	
�������
�	�
�%!����

�

�����!��������������!��	���
����#�
��
���������,�����*�&���s
��������
��!�
����"+,�
!�&�	�	����!�����'�����
���	.� 278



�����������	
���
������������������������� ��������� ���!!�"#$�%&�'()�*� �$+�&,�-#.�)�/�)/0�1�)/�2�+�33%�&&456�7�%&1�%&�'()�82 *9�$+�&,�"#$�:;$�1�)/�2�</��7�'�989�$+�&,�/=)���0/<��0�&��-#.�7,�0/)�>(/0?��+/%������� ���!!�"#$�%&�'()��@9�$+�&,�-#.�)�/�)/0�1�)/�2�+�33%�&&456�7�%&1�%&�'()�82AB*�$+�&,�"#$�:;$�1�)/�2�</��7�'�82* C�$+�&,�/=)���0/<��0�&��-#.�7,�0/)�>(/0?��-��>(�� ���!!�"#$�%&�'()�*9B�$+�&,�-#.�)�/�)/0�1�)/�2�+�33%�&&456�7�%&1�%&�'()�82�*D�$+�&,�"#$�:;$�1�)/�2�</��7�'�@AA�$+�&,�/=)���0/<��0�&��-#.�7,�0/)�>(/0E��F�GH����
��I����J�KH�H�������	��I���L������I�M����I�
����N�����OI�	����O��I��P����I��
�O��Q��IR��
�LR���
����
P���N��
���H�P�IN�S�I�
��PIR�
�IN�
R�P�	�T���M
��U��JV�	�I�OREW��X(/�#�)/��$�)(&�7)���/>/�)3��3/���/0���,�>)�)(�)�1/�0&��&)�%/37/Y/�+�33%�&&4�/Y/��07Z>3&Z/0�)&�[$+"\]��)(�)�)(/�%7�07�'���0�̂�07>7�33���__�&Y/0�Z/))3/</�)��'�//</�)�%/)1//��+�33%�&&4���0�"�<_�̀/�03/)&���/a�7�/Z�b�7��>/�)�7��>7�>�<Z)��>/Z�b�,&��"�<_�/̀�03/)&��)&�_�&Y70/�+�33%�&&4�17)(�#�)/��$�)(&�7)��1�)/�?��$))�>(/0�7Z���>&_��&,�)(/�,/0/��3�>&��)�&�0/����0�Z/))3/</�)�_�7�)/0�&,,�)(/�1/%2�17)(�(7'(37'()7�'�1/��00/02�1(7>(�Z_/>7,7/Z�&���1�)/��'&7�'�cY7��̀/�03/)&�d�)&�+�33%�&&4�7��>/�)�7��>7�>�<Z)��>/Z?��;//�Z/))3/</�)�Z/>)7&�Z��?C?�2�*?�*2�*?�D2���0�*?�A?��X(7Z�1&�30�%/����&�!7ZZ�/�7,�%&)(��'/�>7/Z��/<�7��</<%/�Z�&,�)(/�#�)/��$�)(&�7)�2�%�)�1&�30��&)�%/��33&1/0�Z(&�30�+�33%�&&4�%/�&�)Z70/�&����'/�>�eZ�Z/�Y7>/���/�?��̀/�(�_Z�)(7Z��'�//</�)�1�Z�3�)/��>(��'/0f��1/�0&��&)�4�&1?��[$+"\�Z(&�30�7<</07�)/3���Z4�+�33%�&&4�)&�_�&Y70/�[$+"\���0�)(/�_��)7/Z�17)(��33�/,,/>)7Y/�Z/))3/</�)��'�//</�)�0&>�</�)Z���0�>&��)�0/>7Z7&�Z��/'��07�'�)(7Z�Z/))3/</�)�Z&�1/��33�4�&1�)(/�,�>)Z?��#/�(�Y/�)&30�[$+"\�<����)7</Z�)(�)�)(/Z/��__37>�)7&�Z���/�,���<&�/�>&<_3/=�)(���6�7�%&1���0�+�33%�&&4�(�Y/�)&30�[$+"\2���0�)(7Z�7Z�̂�Z)�&�/�/=�<_3/?��;7<73��3�2�1/�0&��&)�%/37/Y/2�0/Z_7)/�&���<�����/a�/Z)Z2�)(�)�[$+"\�(�Z��/)��Z4/0�6�7�%&1�)&�_�&Y70/��33�)(/�0/)�73�&��1(�)��//0Z�)&�%/�0&�/�7��)(/�Z&�)(/���_&�)7&��&,�7)Z�Z/�Y7>/���/�2�1(7>(��__��/�)3���/a�7�/Z�<�̂&��>&�Z)��>)7&��,&��7)�)&�/Y/��%/�Z/�Y/0�%��-#.�_7_/Z?��#/���/�Y/���>&�>/��/0�)(�)�[$+"\�Z)�,,�7Z�7'�&�7�'�)(/��>a�7Z7)7&��&,��/3/Y��)�,�>)Z�)(�)�07�/>)3��%/���&��)(/��__37>�)7&�?����F�GH�����I������		��	P��I��g�Q�

�	��h�THij
�K�g����k�
I�
��KSVEW��#/�1733�&,�>&��Z/�_�&Y70/�,��)(/��7�_�)��/>/ZZ����&��(/3_,�3�)&�)(/��/Y7/1�_�&>/ZZ��&��_3���)&�>&�0�>)?��l�P�IR���������I��
I�I��IR�������L�����
�I��Hkm�n��Gi���I���O�N�P�	��jI�
����M�Q��
���I�
�I��Hkm�E���I�IR�
�����I��o�	����I�M����Q��IR�
���
���NIR�������IR��
�O�
	��	��I��N���p
P���
I������
PM
I��I�Q������OI�L�

��I
�h�THi�	�Q��I�����
����I
�
�
���
�M�������ON�
������	�
���I�	�O��OP

��O��L�IR�N�P
�����O��
j����	���
��
����	�����O��
�IR�I���H��

�����q���I�������
��
��I��N�������
�P�	�
�Hkm�E��o�L����
�Q�
�I�IR�
���
�I����L�IR�H����

����H�P�
���
R�P�	���
PM
I��I�Q������OI�
�Q�����I
����IR
�P�R�IR��
�����	�
����IR���	����
I
�I�Q��
�Q��L
EW��
279



�����������	
���
����������������������������
��
���
���������������
�����������������	���������������
���
	 ��!�
���
������"#$%"&�����
���
�������
���
	��
���
	����'()����������*��������
�
�������������
�
�+��, �-��
�������	��.���
�/������
������������
�0�
���
�����	��������������

���.�����������*�����
������
��
����1�����
�*���	����
��
��*���
�	����	
����������/�
�����������
��
���/��2���3�����4���������
�
���������5���
����
�6
���
�
������
����
������
�
�����
�-���
�'�	����������78��,�9$�:9; ��<99�0�
���
����� �=8�9$�:9; ���	�,���9$�:9; ��>����������
���
������
�/��*�	���
���/�
�����������
��
�
���������
�/������������'()� ��� �����'()��?���	���
@�����������
���0�����*���	�A����
��B�����
������C
	�

��
���D�	��
�A
�1��
���	�E�	��������������3���������
��
�'��
�����������'()�����	���
���	�����>�����
����(.��������?����������������1�	��
�
����	�����������������3�����5�A'C��
���������
����������
�������
��
����������������6
�'()���������������������������*������������������	�������������0�
���	�����
�����������3�����'������-���
������
������
���
�������������������.���������0�
���	���������(�
��
��E���������-���
�3�
�
��� @F���
�����������������
�'����

����

���������������/��������*���
	�

��
�����������3���������
��
�'��
������
�����������	���
���	�>C(����5�A'C6
�������
G��3������'����

����

��/���B��*����������
���*��C
	�

G��F �(/������5�A'C�*�
�����������
������A����
��BH0�����*�'()��������
��*���������������	����
�I�	������C
	�

��������
�A����
��B���
�0�����*����B�����������������
�/��*�	������������	�������
��������
�I�����������
 ��J���'()��
�K��
�
�
������/�
���������
�/��* ����������
������0�
���
��L?0�
���
�@M���� �,���9$�:9; ��� ����
���
����'()���.���������������������
����
�	������	��������0�
���
������� �,������
�K ��8 �0�����*���
����
��
����I�
����
�
���������������������
�
/����
�
�����
��
�
/�����
��������
��������������
��
����	 ��N����
������
�/�	�	�����������������
����������*�����5�A'C������������������������*�����*����/��������	��������������
 ��<99����
��.�������0�
���
����� �,F����	�,�� ��>����/�
���������
�/��*����
����������
���/�������	��������������������
�B��*��	�� ���� ���
�K���������������������	 ��0�����*6
��������������N���
����������B������
���
�������������L����� �8O�M�
�/���
�������������	������������	�����.�������
�����
�/�	��0�����*�*�������	�������
�
������
����������
��O
��������
�
�
����
���
�I���
����
�
/����?�����
����/�������
��
����P0�����*6
Q�
�����
��
�
/�����
��@�	�
�������B�
����
�����	����	���
��	
 �����
���*����
�
�
����
�������	�
���*���������
�������������������
����	 ��*���
�����
������������
���*����������
���������*������������������
�K������ ��� �N��
��
�	�
���������������
��	�*���
��
�������������-���
��
�I������������0�����*���	�A����
��B�����	��������������.���
�����������
������
�������
��
�����
������*��������
��
�����	
���������������
�������
�����
�	�����
��
��
�����*���
���
���������������-���
��
�I��� ��L�����N����������	����
�������-���
��
�I��������� �FO�,����FO�8�P	�
���
����������������
�����������������
�����K������
�����
Q M����
������
�
������������*������	��������*�����������/�����������
��	�������*
�������
������	��������������
���������
������0�
���
����	��������
��
������

����5�A'C ��F�(.�����
������	���������
���������
������0�
���
� � 280



�����������	
���
������������������������� ���
�
�
����
��������
����������
������	�
�����
�����������
��
�	�
����������� ���
��
���!�
�"�
��#�����
����	���$�
�	�$����"��������%���
��
�&��������������
������	�������
��
�	�����
����������
���"��
����

�
���'"�
���
���
�����������	����
�����(�� �����"���������������
���
�)��
�	��������� ���
��
���!�
�"�
��#�����
����*	���$�
�	�$����"��������%���
��
�&���+���	� ���
��
����"��#���
�	��,�$�
�*	���$�
�	�$����"��#���
�	��,�$�
��)��	���+���!��������"�
�"�
�(����
�$�� �	�����-��.�/#0���
��	���
����� "��"�
����
��
�	�
���������������
��	� ���
��
����"��������%���
��
�&��������	�"�$��"�	
�����������	� ���
�)�������������
���*122�����������������	����
�������%���
��
�&�����������34�-����345�5�6	�
���
����������������
�����������������
����"�	
��������	� ���
�)������7�+����5��������
�
���
��(��	�������	���
����� "��"�
����
�&���� �������
����
�������������$�
����������������	����������������� ��"��������	��
�����������������
�
�����������	����	���
��"����
��
������$��	�����
�����������������$�
������������������8�
����"���
���
�	�	����"�������	�����9��������������������������� ��"���
������������
���������
����	�
���������
�����55��!���
��
���"�
�
�)��
�	������
�
���	�
�#:;��"�$������(������
��
��	�������
�	������	������
�,�
���
��������
�
��
�������"�������"�$������
��������
��	����	����#:;��	���
�����������
����
���������"����"�
���
�����<����"��������"��
���
	��	���������=
����
�������
�(
�����$��������� �

���
�.�/#0�	�$��������
�����
�
�
���
�(����������
������	�
�����	������

����� ��"����
��������
>����	���
��
����	��������
��"�����#��

�����9�����������
��
�������������
���	�
�#:;��?��0����������� �������
��.�/#0������
��
����
�
�)��
�	�#:;��	����
���	�
��"���� �������%��
�
�����������
@��"��������.�/#0�
��������	��"��#����

����

���
����������
�	�
��"���

��
�
����	��(�$����'"��@�������������������
��������A�
@�B��8������C���
���#���
����:����
�
��� �(Omitted in this correspondence) 

281



�����������	
���
������������������������������������������������������� �!"#�$���
���"�%�
����	������
�����	�����"���������&�	�
���
����� �!"#�"����

����

����	
�� '���
���$���
���&�����
������(�����"�%��������
��%���
����"���
��"�����
��"�%�
��������(�����"�%��������
��%���
�����)��*�+�,����$���
���&�����
��!���,
��*��-(����%���"'��'�	����%
���"�%�
����!���,
��*��-(��.��*�������
��(��%���$���
���&�����
��/�
��
��&�(��0��������	���$���
���&�����
��1���,�2�&�(�����
�	��������"�%�
����1���,�2�&�(������
��%���
����+��
	����(�
����

��

282



From:
To:
Cc:
Bcc:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Simonds,Keene
Jack Bebee; Tom Kennedy
Lauren Eckert; Holly O. Whatley; Aleks R. Giragosian; Allen, Priscilla; Adam Wilson 
Simonds,Keene
RE: Correspondence Sent on Behalf of Jack Bebee and Tom Kennedy
Friday, April 15, 2022 10:13:00 AM

Hi Tom and Jack  –

Thank you for the joint-letter from yesterday confirming you will be providing payments 

for the final invoice from Dr. Hanemann in completing his assigned work from the Ad Hoc 

Committee.   I am sure Dr. Hanemann appreciates it too.  

I also want to respond to your requests for more specifics on next steps needed to 

complete the administrative reviews of your agencies’ respective proposals to detach 

from the County Water Authority and annex to Eastern MWD.   With the qualifier that 

things can come up, I nonetheless offer up the following outline of remaining and unique 

tasks that need to be addressed to complete the administrative reviews of these two 

proposals:

Identify ratepayer impacts should one or both proposals proceed forward within 

three specific jurisdictions: City of San Diego; Valley Center MWD; and City of 

Poway.   This work will be led by an Ad Hoc working group (Kim, Brian, Keith, and 

Lydia) and is currently underway.

Evaluate existing “roll off” impacts on the County Water Authority.   This work will 

be led by the Ad Hoc working group and is currently underway.

Verify/disclose any material “voting” changes at MET with respect to the two 

subject agency wholesalers (County Water Authority and Eastern MWD) should one 

or both proposals proceed.   A related request was emailed to MET earlier this 

week.

Address any material impacts on the Bay Delta should one or both proposals 

proceed.  An email to the Delta Watermaster was sent earlier this week and among 

other items seeks clarification on his earlier “observations” made on the proposals 

in September 2020.

Confirmation USMC Camp Pendleton will not be materially impacted in continuing 

to receive their wholesale supply from County Water Authority should Fallbrook 

PUD detach.

283

mailto:Keene.Simonds@sdcounty.ca.gov
mailto:jackb@fpud.com
mailto:tkennedy@rainbowmwd.com
mailto:leckert@fpud.com
mailto:hwhatley@chwlaw.us
mailto:agiragosian@chwlaw.us
mailto:Priscilla.Allen@sdcounty.ca.gov
mailto:adwilson858@yahoo.com
mailto:Keene.Simonds@sdcounty.ca.gov

















—
Fallbrook Public

Utility District





Complete an addendum to Riverside LAFCO’s MSR on Eastern MWD.

Presentation of a draft EO report on the reorganizations to the Ad Hoc for 

feedback before the document is finalized and sent to the Cities and Special 

Districts Advisory Committees (presumably sometime in September-October 2022).

One topic you don’t see above relates to CEQA.   At this point, I do not believe there is 

anything in the record identifying/suggesting a substantive impact warrants LAFCO 

deviating from its responsible agency role and related concurrence with your agencies’ 

findings as lead agencies that a Class 20 exemption appropriately applies under CEQA.    I 

will revisit this position with Commission Counsel should a substantive impact reveal itself 

through the remainder of the administrative reviews.

I hope this email is helpful and please follow up with me with any general items or 

observations.  Should you have more specific questions on the Ad Hoc and its working 

group please direct these to Adam Wilson.  Specific questions on the proposals’ 

processing should separately be directed to Priscilla Allen. 

Keene

____________________________

Keene Simonds, Executive Officer

San Diego County
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO)
Subdivision of the State of California | Regional Service Planning

2550 Fifth Avenue, Suite 725

San Diego, California 92103

T | 619.321.3380 Main

     619.321.3381 Direct

E | keene.simonds@sdcounty.ca.gov

284

https://www.instagram.com/sandiegolafco/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCqVVn89UiMDjiJ7Nh_bxPFQ
https://twitter.com/sdlafco
https://www.facebook.com/SDLAFCO
mailto:keene.simonds@sdcounty.ca.gov


 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
May 12, 2022 
 
VIA EMAIL 
 
Keene Simonds, Executive Officer 
San Diego County Local Agency Formation Commission 
2550 Fifth Avenue, Suite 725 
San Diego, CA 92103 
(Keene.Simonds@sdcounty.ca.gov) 
 
Re:    CEQA Compliance  
 
Dear Executive Officer Simonds: 
 
We are in receipt of your letter of May 5 responding to our letter of April 27, 2022.  We 
appreciate that you have reviewed our correspondence and responded to us.   
 
Though your letter says that our correspondence contained “misstatements of the facts 
and law,” you only address a single issue:  the Superior Court Judgments.  You point to 
no other issues at all, and you provide no information how anything we outlined in our 
detailed letter constituted “misstatements.”  If you believe we are presenting facts that 
are in error, you should explain to us what facts are wrong and why.  Simply making a 
blanket allegation of “misstatements” serves no productive purpose. 
 
In regards to the Superior Court Judgments, the sole stated basis for LAFCO’s position 
that it can ignore the Judgments is that it was not a party to the cases.  However, there 
are errors in this premise: 
 

• The LAFCO applicants stipulated that their CEQA findings and Notices of 
Exemption “may not be utilized or relied upon by the San Diego LAFCO or any 
other agency for the purpose of that agency’s CEQA compliance in connection 
with any potential detachment by Respondent from the San Diego County Water 
Authority, or for any potential annexation by Respondent into Eastern Municipal 
Water District.”  While LAFCO itself was not a party to the lawsuits, the LAFCO 
applicants were parties and they agreed that their CEQA documents could not be 
used in the LAFCO process.  They are therefore barred from having them as part 
of their applications to LAFCO.  LAFCO cannot simply "rubber-stamp" 
exemptions and findings that were expressly stipulated not to be usable in this 
proceeding by the agencies that prepared them.  
 

• Even if one were to seek to use the actions by Rainbow and Fallbrook, they 
simply evaluated the effects of submitting applications to LAFCO, not the effects 
of the actual detachments and reorganizations, which must be reviewed by 
LAFCO. 

285



Keene Simonds 
May 12, 2022 
Page 2 of 4 

 
We are pleased that you state that in your letter that “staff remains open to revisiting the initial 
position [on CEQA exemption] as the administrative review process continues.”  Your comment 
is directly relevant to the letter LAFCO just recently received from the Delta Watermaster, 
Michael George, who informed LAFCO that (emphases added): 
 

• “Fallbrook and Rainbow’s proposed combined de-annexation from SDCWA is 
directly counter the State’s policy of reduced reliance on the Delta as a water supply 
source.” 
 

• [T]the two agencies would be increasing reliance on the Delta because they would 
abandon a less Delta-dependent supply mix (available through their SDCWA 
membership) in favor of a more Delta-reliant supply mix (available under the contract 
with Eastern MWD).” 
 

• “SDCWA’s decades-long diversification of its water supply portfolio to include “E-
water” (based on IID’s senior Colorado River allocation status) as well as 
desalination, reservoir expansion, and other drought-resistant sources demonstrates 
the long-term wisdom of adhering to the State policy of reduced reliance on the Delta.  
The combined de-annexation petitions, in contrast, appear to be expedients which 
trade away the greater reliability of SDCWA, primarily to escape the immediate and 
near-term costs associated with that reliability.” 
 

When evaluating the environmental effects of the proposed detachment and annexation, LAFCO 
cannot limit its analysis to the evidentiary record that Rainbow and Fallbrook supposedly 
reviewed before approving their CEQA exemptions.  Instead, LAFCO must consider all evidence 
presented prior to the close of its public hearing on the proposed detachment and annexation.  
(Pub. Resources Code, § 21177, subd. (b); Guidelines, § 15202, subd. (b); and Bakersfield 
Citizens for Local Control v. City of Bakersfield (2004) 124 Cal.App.4th 1184, 1201 [new 
environmental objections could be made until close of this hearing].)  If LAFCO ignores 
substantial evidence of significant environmental effects, “it does so at its own risk.” 
(Bakersfield Citizens, supra, 124 Cal.App.4th at p. 1201.) 
 
Also, LAFCO seems to be under the mistaken assumption that it is a “responsible agency.” It is 
not.  For one thing, an agency can only assume the role of a “responsible agency” after an 
environmental impact report (EIR) or negative declaration has been prepared by a lead agency. 
(CEQA Guidelines, §§ 15096, subd. (a); 15381.)  There is no equivalent “responsible agency” 
process following the approval of a CEQA exemption. (Cf. CEQA Guidelines, § 15052 [process 
for other agencies to assume the role of lead agency when another agency prepares an inadequate 
exemption].)  Also, we note that even if one were to accept Fallbrook and Rainbow’s alleged 
exemptions, they cover only the actions of Rainbow and Fallbrook – not the acts of LAFCO, 
which must make its own decisions as to the overall reorganizations, and for which there is no 
applicable exemption (as we have detailed before). 
 
LAFCO must independently disclose, analyze, and mitigate the environmental impacts 
associated with the proposed detachment of Rainbow and Fallbrook from San Diego County 
Water Authority and the annexation of these entities into Eastern Municipal Water District.  

286



Keene Simonds 
May 12, 2022 
Page 3 of 4 

 
(Fullerton Joint Union High School Dist. v. State Board of Ed. (1982) 32 Cal.3d 779, 796-
797 [a Local Agency Formation Commission’s approval of an annexation or de-annexation is 
a “project” that must be evaluated in an appropriate CEQA document when the annexation or 
de-annexation “may affect the environment.”].)  In other words, LAFCO will be the lead 
agency. 
 
Here, LAFCO must prepare an Environmental Impact Report ("EIR") to disclose, analyze, and 
mitigate significant environmental impacts of the proposed detachment and annexation. (Pub. 
Resources Code, § 21083, subd. (b)(2), (3); Guidelines, § 15065, subd. (a)(3), (4).)  As stated by 
the Delta Watermaster, and as you know because we have explained it many times, the proposed 
detachments and annexations would result in increased reliance on water from the Bay Delta. 
Rainbow and Fallbrook would be forced to obtain a greater quantity of water from the 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, which imports a significant portion of its 
supply from the Delta through the State Water Project.  LAFCO has an obligation to 
independently evaluate the potential environmental effects of the detachment and reorganization. 
(See Pub. Resources Code, § 21082.2 [“The lead agency shall determine whether a project may 
have a significant effect on the environment based on substantial evidence in light of the whole 
record.”]; see also Guidelines, § 15064.) 
 
LAFCO's analysis must also disclose, analyze, and mitigate whether the detachments and 
annexations will have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable. 
(Guidelines, Appendix G, subd. XXI [“ ‘Cumulatively considerable’ means that the incremental 
effects of a project are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, 
the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects”];  see also (Pub. 
Resources Code, § 21083, subd. (b); Guidelines, § 15065, subd. (a)(3).)  Here, the cumulative 
effect of successive detachments and annexations, as well as the cumulative effects of successive 
infrastructure enhancement and replacement projects, will have potentially significant 
environmental effects and those effects have not yet been reviewed or considered by any agency. 
 
We again urge LAFCO to not rely on an inapplicable CEQA exemption, and alleged “findings” 
by Rainbow and Fallbrook that were ordered not to be used in this proceeding, while ignoring 
the many detailed filings with LAFCO showing the numerous CEQA issues which exist.  This 
includes the increase in dependence of water from the Bay-Delta that the applications would 
entail, just as stated by the Delta Watermaster. 
 
We respectfully ask that you, LAFCO staff, and the Commissioners carefully consider the issues 
stated above.  Thank you.        

 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Mark J. Hattam 
General Counsel 
 
 

287



 

 

 
 
 

 
 

Administration 
Keene Simonds, Executive Officer 
2550 Fifth Avenue, Suite 725  
San Diego, California 92103‐6624 
T  619.321.3380   F  619.404.6508 
www.sdlafco.org 
lafco@sdcounty.ca.gov 

Chair Jim Desmond 
County of San Diego  
 

Joel Anderson 
County of San Diego  
 

Nora Vargas, Alt. 
County of San Diego   

San Diego County  
Local Agency Formation Commission 
Regional Service Planning | Subdivision of the State of California 

Jo MacKenzie 
Vista Irrigation  
 

Barry Willis  
Alpine Fire Protection  
 

David A. Drake, Alt. 
Rincon del Diablo 

Vice Chair Paul McNamara  
City of Escondido  
 

Mary Casillas Salas 
City of Chula Vista  
 

Kristi Becker, Alt. 
City of Solona Beach  

Andy Vanderlaan 
General Public  
 

Harry Mathis, Alt. 
General Public  

Chris Cate 
City of San Diego  
 

Marni von Wilpert, Alt.  
City of San Diego  

May 13, 2022 
 
 
Delivered by Electronic Mail: 
Mark J. Hattam, General Counsel 
San Diego County Water Authority 
4677 Overland Avenue 
San Diego, California 92123‐1233 
mark.hattam@sdcwa.org  
 
 
SUBJECT:  Response to May 12, 2022 Letter   
 
 
Mr. Hattam:  
 
Thank you for your letter dated May 12, 2022.   
 
I remain content with my referenced position on CEQA at this time as it relates to processing 
the detachment proposals filed by Rainbow Municipal Water District and Fallbrook Public 
Utility District.   I will – nonetheless – continue to consider your comments on the topic as 
LAFCO staff proceeds in the administrative reviews.  
 
Respectfully, 

 
Keene Simonds 
Executive Officer  
 
 

  

288



San Diego LAFCO  
May 13, 2022  
Letter to Mark Hattam 
 

 

2 | P a g e  

 

cc via email: 
 
Commissioners 
Holly Whatley, Commission Counsel  
Aleks Giragosian, Deputy Commission Counsel  
Priscilla Allen, Analyst  
Adam Wilson, Consultant and Ad Hoc Moderator  
Sandra L. Kerl, General Manager, County Water Authority 
Claire Collins, Counsel, San Diego County Water Authority  
Jack Bebee, General Manager, Fallbrook PUD  
Paula C. P. de Sousa, Counsel, Fallbrook PUD  
Nick Kanetis, Deputy General Manager, Eastern MWD  
Tom Kennedy, General Manager, Rainbow MWD  
Alfred Smith, Counsel, Rainbow MWD  
Bill Pellman, Special Counsel, Rainbow MWD 
County Water Authority Board of Directors 
 
 
Enclosures:  none  
 

 

289



Keene Simonds 
May 12, 2022 
Page 4 of 4 

 
cc via email: 
 
Holly Whatley, LAFCO General Counsel 
Adam Wilson, Ad Hoc Committee Moderator 
All LAFCO Commissioners 
Sandra L. Kerl, General Manager, San Diego County Water Authority 
Claire Collins, Counsel, San Diego County Water Authority  
Jack Bebee, General Manager, Fallbrook PUD  
Paula C. P. de Sousa, Counsel, Fallbrook PUD  
Nick Kanetis, Deputy General Manager, Eastern MWD  
Tom Kennedy, General Manager, Rainbow MWD  
Alfred Smith, Counsel, Rainbow MWD  
Water Authority Board of Directors 

290



5/16/2022

1

Fallbrook Public Utility District
Engineering and Operations FY22

Board Meeting May 2022

Water PAYGO CIP FY22

2

291



5/16/2022

2

Water SMRCUP CIP FY22

3

Wastewater System CIP FY22

4

292



5/16/2022

3

Total PAYGO CIP FY22

5

Total CIP FY22

6

293



5/16/2022

4

Wastewater Treatment

• Wastewater System Violations

• Reclamation Plant PMs Completed

• Energy Cost per MG

• Recycled Water – Time Out of Service

7

Reclamation Plant Recycled Water

Wastewater Treatment System 
Regulatory Compliance

8

Analyses 
performed: 
Daily
Monthly 
Quarterly 
Semi-annually 
Annually

SRWQCB 
Compliance:
NPDES
WDR

294



5/16/2022

5

Reclamation Plant –
Preventative Maintenance Work Orders

9

Equipment Service/Inspection Site Maintenance

Reclamation Plant –
Energy Usage (KWh/MG Treated)

Formula =
Total Plant Energy Demand

MG Treated Flow

10

295



5/16/2022

6

Recycled Water – Time out of Service (Hours)

11

Water Operations

Regulatory Compliance

Preventative Maintenance Work Orders

CUP Deliveries

12

296



5/16/2022

7

Water System Regulatory Compliance 

13

• UV Plant 
Operation 

• Routine 
Sampling

Water Preventative Maintenance Work Orders

14

297



5/16/2022

8

15

CUP Deliveries

Meter Services

Meter Exchange 
Program

16

298



5/16/2022

9

Meter Exchange

17

Wastewater 
Collections

Total Wastewater Spilled

Non-Recovered Wastewater Spilled

Odor Complaints

18

299



5/16/2022

10

Wastewater Collections
Sewer Overflows

19

Wastewater Collections
Wastewater Spilled

20

300



5/16/2022

11

Reclamation Plant & Wastewater Collections
Odor Complaints

21

Wastewater
Collections – Preventative Maintenance Work Orders

22

301



5/16/2022

12

23

Construction/Maintenance
• Efforts continue in replacing valves with the greatest impact on water loss 

and customer outages during large main breaks. 

• With new valves, crews will be capable of shutting down smaller controlled 

areas faster, impacting fewer customers while losing less water and 

completing repairs sooner.

• Our goal is to replace 100 valves per year. FY22, 32 valves have been 

replaced through March 2022. We currently have 6821 valves in the system 

with 165 known to be broken.

Main Line Valve Exercise Program

24

• Improve reliability

• Reduce impact of 
planned and 
emergency shutdowns

302



5/16/2022

13

Main Line Valves Replaced

25

Rolling Total Broken Valves (4” and above)

26

303



5/16/2022

14

Planned Water Outages > 4 Hours
# of Customers Affected

27

Unplanned Water Outages > 4 Hours
# of Customers Affected

28

304



 

M E M O 
 
 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: David Shank, Assistant General Manager/CFO 
DATE: May 23, 2022 
SUBJECT: Financial Summary Report – April 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose 
 
Provide an overview of changes in the District’s financial position. 
 
Summary 
 
The graph below shows the District’s year-to-date Revenues, Expenditures and Net 
revenues. 
   

 
 
Revenues are on budget while expenditures continue to diverge from the Budget levels.  
These trends are driving net revenues to be slightly better than budgeted.  Non-operating 
revenues are higher than budget driven by the receipt of the second refund check issued 
by the San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) and grant funds from the State 
Arrearages Program.  With PayGo CIP expected to ramp up this spring, net revenues are 
expected to trend towards budget levels.  Water sales are expected to continue to trend 
under budgeted levels.  Staff are carefully tracking the District’s financial position.  After 

305



 

adjusting for expected State reimbursement, Net Revenue is trending better than Budget 
largely due to CIP underspending.   
 
The graph below shows the District’s bank holdings reported in the Treasurer’s Report 
at the end of the current and prior month. 
 

 
 
Overall the District’s financial holdings remained relatively flat.  The Long-term Investment 
Portfolio beginning balance was adjusted for the prior month’s reporting error that omitted 
$29.9k in Money Market funds.  The Long-term Investment Portfolio balance remains low 
due to the lack of State reimbursements for the SMCUP costs.  The amount due is ow 
over $4 million.  The District’s PARS investments reflect recent market volatility. Overall, 
these investments continue to perform in line with the capital markets.     
 
Recommended Action 
 
This item is for discussion only.  No action is required. 

306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



 

M E M O 
 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: David Shank, Assistant General Manager/CFO 
DATE: May 23, 2022 
SUBJECT: Budget Status Report for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose 
Provide a Budget Status Report (BSR) to the Board. 
 
Summary 
The BSR shows the District’s financial performance compared to the budget for the month 
of April, Year-to-Date and the annual budgeted amount.     
 
Total revenues year-to-date are under budget by 0.1%.  Water sales remain below budget 
due to lower than budgeted water demands.  This month water sales were at budgeted 
levels.  Despite this month, the year to date water sales are 6.8% below budget.  Spring 
weather and potential for water supply restrictions will be the driving forces behind water 
demands this spring.  With only a few remaining months in the current fiscal year, water 
sales are not expected to recover keeping sales projections under budgeted levels.  
Recycled water sales have been adjusted to reflect a billing issues identified for a major 
user.  The issue was related to the account settings in software that put the decimal place 
in the wrong position causing a significant under read for a prolonged period.  The 
adjustment brings sales and revenues to just over budget levels.    
 
Non-operating revenues are over budget driven by the receipt of the second refund check 
issued by the San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) and the grant funds from the 
State Arrearages Programs.  These one-time funds are pushing the District’s non-
operating revenues higher than budget levels, while the recurring revenues are in line 
with the Budget.  Year-end total non-operating revenues are expected to be higher than 
budget levels.   
 
The District’s year-to-date total expenditures are under budget due to the lower than 
budgeted water purchases and operating expenses.  Water operating expenses are 
expected to remain under budget due to the lower than budgeted production at the Santa 
Margarita Groundwater Treatment Plant.  Wastewater and administrative services are 
expected to trend towards budget as the year progresses.             
 
Total revenue is $33,021,994 or 0.1% under budget and total expenditures are 
$26,694,986 or 1.7% under budget.  PAYGO CIP expenditures are 35.1% under budget 
but are expected to trend towards Budget levels.  Adjusting for expected State Loan 
proceeds, the District’s financial results are above Budget levels. 
 
Recommended Action 
This item is for discussion only.  No action is required.  

316



 

 

 

317



Monthly Budget Report for April Favorable Variance Shown as a positive number

Actual Budget Actual Budget Variance % Budget Remaining Balance %
Operating Revenues: Year remaining 16.7%

Water Sales 1,403,982       1,354,724         14,239,103        15,150,007       (910,904)          -6.0% 18,695,785        4,456,682                23.8%
Water Meter Service Charges 673,926          692,367            6,541,609          6,615,953         (74,344)            -1.1% 8,000,687          1,459,078                18.2%
Wastewater Service Charges 527,246          508,783            5,178,468          5,451,618         (273,150)          -5.0% 6,469,183          1,290,715                20.0%
Recycled Water Revenues 386,138          102,480            930,447             918,624            11,823             1.3% 1,175,173          244,726                   20.8%
Other Operating Revenue -                 917                   -                     9,167                (9,167)              -100.0% 11,000               11,000                     100.0%
    Total Operating Revenue 2,991,293       2,659,270         26,889,627        28,145,370       (1,255,742)       -4.5% 34,351,829        7,462,201                21.7%

Non Operating Revenues:
Water Capital Improvement Charge 124,197          120,280            1,207,209          1,202,799         4,410               0.4% 1,443,359          236,150                   16.4%
Wastewater Capital Improvement Charge 94,044            98,390              981,054             983,898            (2,844)              -0.3% 1,180,678          199,623                   16.9%
Property Taxes 725,267          208,265            2,205,933          2,066,320         139,613           6.8% 2,122,467          (83,467)                    -3.9%
Water Standby/Availability Charge 49,269            50,030              177,802             189,781            (11,979)            -6.3% 204,000             26,198                     12.8%
Water/Wastewater Capacity Charges 11,214            7,183                151,136             71,833              79,303             110.4% 86,200               (64,936)                    -75.3%
Portfolio Interest 9,621              10,304              190,626             103,042            87,584             85.0% 123,651             (66,976)                    -54.2%
Pumping Capital Improvement Charge 946                 2,730                11,083               27,297              (16,214)            -59.4% 32,756               21,673                     66.2%
Federal Interest Rate Subsidy -                 -                    51,292               49,968              1,324               2.6% 97,977               46,685                     47.6%
SDCWA Refund/Covid Relief Grant* 38,811            -                    815,405             -                    815,405           NA -                     (815,405)                  NA
Facility Rents 30,606            18,750              221,383             187,500            33,883             18.1% 225,000             3,617                       1.6%
Fire Hydrant Service Fees -                 -                    18,313               -                    18,313             NA -                     (18,313)                    NA
Other Non-Operating Revenues (2,500)            2,500                101,130             25,000              76,130             304.5% 30,000               (71,130)                    -237.1%
    Total Non Operating Revenues 1,081,473       518,432            6,132,366          4,907,439         1,224,927        25.0% 5,546,087          (586,279)                  -10.6%

    Total Revenues 4,072,766       3,177,702         33,021,994        33,052,809       (30,815)            -0.1% 39,897,916        6,875,922                17.2%

Expenditures
Purchased Water Expense 1,187,666       697,967            10,640,159        9,693,671         (946,489)          -9.8% 11,547,729        907,569                   7.9%
Water Services** 474,082          473,550            3,604,069          4,408,839         804,770           18.3% 5,355,939          1,751,870                32.7%
Wastewater Services** 318,655          267,037            2,907,893          2,937,402         29,509             1.0% 3,471,475          563,582                   16.2%
Recycled Water Services** 38,102            40,554              343,447             446,094            102,647           23.0% 527,202             183,755                   34.9%
Administrative Services** 668,562          531,066            5,578,300          5,841,727         263,427           4.5% 6,903,859          1,325,559                19.2%
    Total Operating Expenses 2,687,068       2,010,173         23,073,869        23,327,732       253,864           1.1% 27,806,204        4,732,335                17.0%

Debt Service Expenses
SMCUP SRF -                 -                    974,071             1,038,424         64,353             6.2% 1,038,424          64,353                     6.2%
Red Mountain SRF -                 -                    395,851             395,851            -                   0.0% 395,851             -                           0.0%
WW Rev Refunding Bonds -                 -                    1,729,884          1,729,884         -                   0.0% 1,729,884          -                           0.0%
QECB Solar Debt 258,883          258,883            521,312             521,312            -                   0.0% 521,312             -                           0.0%
Total Debt Service 258,883          258,883            3,621,118          3,685,471         64,353             1.7% 3,685,471          64,353                     1.7%

Total Expenses 2,945,951       2,269,056         26,694,986        27,013,203       318,217           1.2% 31,491,674        4,796,688                15.2%

1,126,815       908,646            6,327,008          6,039,606         287,402           4.8% 8,406,242          2,079,234                24.7%
Capital Investment
Capital Investment

Construction Expenditures 583,326          794,409            3,577,212          5,513,682         1,936,469        35.1% 7,288,000          3,710,788                50.9%
SMRCUP Expenditures*** 7,972              -                    6,088,262          8,450,000         2,361,738        27.9% 8,450,000          2,361,738                27.9%
SRF Loan Proceeds Draw (Capital Project Funds)**** (7,972)            -                    (4,767,874)         (8,450,000)        (3,682,126)       43.6% (8,450,000)         (3,682,126)               43.6%

Net Revenue/(Loss) 543,489          114,237            1,429,407          525,924            903,483           171.8% 1,118,242          (311,165)                  -27.8%

*Includes SDCWA Refund of $625,250.63, California Water Arrearage Payment Program grant of $151,343.14 and California Wastewater Arrearage Payment Program grant of $38,811.01
**Includes share of $300,000 PARS transfer.
***CIP expenditures related to the SMRCUP have been updated based upon contractor draw scheduled and are funded by SRF Loan proceeds.
****YTD Actual amount adjusted to reflect expected State Reimbursement for reporting purposes.

Year-To-Date Annual Budget

Net Revenue/(loss) From Operations and Debt Service

Current Month

318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



 

 

May 7, 2022. 

 

Dear Noelle & Fallbrook Public Utility District, 

On behalf of Rally for Children, I would like to thank you for your 

participation in this year’s Arts in the Park on May 1, 2022. The event was 

a wonderful success thanks to organizations like yours who gave of your 

time to plan a great craft for the kids (Wonderful water conservation 

pins!), provide volunteers and even provide materials. We saw many happy 

faces on children and their parents/grandparents as they worked their 

way through the park’s 25+ activities! 

Please extend a thank you to all of your volunteers who gave willingly of 

their time during the day to help with set up, hands on instruction to kids 

and cleanup. 

Thank you again for choosing to be a part of this very special day for kids! 

We’re hoping you will want to join us again next year. If your contact 

information changes, please don’t hesitate to let me know. If you have 

suggestions for ways to improve our event, please let us know that as well. 

 

With Appreciation,  

Donna Reisbeck-Stoewer, Participants Chair, Arts in the Park 

327



328


	2022-05-23 - Agenda
	A - Findings to Continue Holding Remote/Teleconference Committee Meetings Pursuant to Assembly Bill 361
	B - May 2022 Employee of the Quarter
	C - Years of Service
	D - New Employee Announcement
	E - Introduction of New Operations Manager
	F - JPIA Professional Development Program Completion
	G - Approval of Minutes
	H - 2022-23 Appropriation Growth Rate - Resolution No. 5027
	I - Consider Advance Approval to Attend Meetings
	J - Notice of Completion – Santa Margarita Conjunctive Use Project
	K - Rate Study Update
	L - Review Preliminary Draft Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating and Capital Budget
	M - Employee Satisfaction Survey Results
	N - Consider Reappointing the General Manager to serve as the District’s Representative to the San Diego County Water Authority Board of Directors, and Adopting Resolution No. 5028
	O - SMRCUP Change Order
	P - Update of Emergency Declaration for Pipeline Replacements
	Q - Consider Declaring a “Water Shortage Response Level 2 – Water Shortage Watch”
	R - Consider Approval of Memoranda of Understanding (MOUs) with FPUDEA and FMEA (effective July 1, 2022-June 30, 2027) by adoption of Resolution No. 5029
	S - Internship Program
	T - Request for Approval to award one-time paving project to Asphalt & Concrete Enterprises, Inc.
	Reports
	SDCWA Representative Report
	Engineering & Operations Report
	Financial Summary Report
	Treasurer's Report
	Budget Status Report
	Warrant List

	Public Affairs Specialist Report
	Directors Comments/Reports on Meetings Attended




